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By Jeanne Newby

"Ancestors, Legends and Time" is a column in the weekly publication of the Webb City Sentinel Newspaper by Jeanne Newby. 

I have been writing this column since October of 1989. This book contains a selected number of the weekly stories that I have researched and printed concerning the history of Webb City and the surrounding area.

Webb City is such a special place with a wonderful past. I hope future generations will appreciate their heritage. I don't claim to be an expert about Webb City's history, just an interested bystander with a love for local history. If there are flaws in the information, please be understanding. History changes with each passing day as tomorrow becomes yesterday and the future is soon the past.

I really enjoy reliving those "Good Ole Days"! I hope you have as much fun reading this book as I did putting it together.





Sincerely, Jeanne Newby



Printed in September, 2003 

                   


Dedication

This book is dedicated to the citizens of Webb City and the surrounding area and to those who share the love of our historical background. I would like to thank the many special people who helped me with the research, the people who trusted me with their treasured photographs and those who were so generous to give me such wonderful treasures of Webb City's past.

A special thanks to Bob Foos and Laurie Shaffer, who gave me a chance and the confidence that I needed. And thanks to the special ones that kept after me as I procrastinated in getting this book compiled. The list of friends and supporters is too long to mention, but you all know who you are and I hope you know how important you are to me.

Much of the information in this book is due to the foresight of many people who wrote their personal histories or kept memories of special events. Businesses who kept historical files and legends that have been kept alive from one generation to the next have been a treasure trove. It is our responsibility to record our personal history for the future generations.

A special thanks to my husband who was my major support in getting this book completed and who put up with many late nights of listening to the click of computer keys. And thanks to Maxine Miller (deceased) who always reminded me to "keep it clean and you will never have to be ashamed!" 

Many of the special people who helped me with my column throughout the years have passed on, but they will never be forgotten. Their stories are in print forever! I feel a special closeness to each one and I can't thank them enough for taking time to share memories and information.








Jeanne Newby

          A Brief History of Webb City





       "Our Heritage"


  Printed 2002 in the Webb City Area Chamber of Commerce Business Directory

Destiny stepped in that bright sunny day in June 1873 when John C. Webb walked the half-mile to his field to do some plowing. As the plow dug through the rich soil, a bright shiny rock surfaced with the turn of the dirt. As the sunlight bounced off the rock, it seemed to come alive in Webb's hand. He knew what he held in his hand. There had been quite a commotion to the south in Granby and Joplin, where lead had been discovered, but Webb wasn't sure he wanted to turn his farm over to the mining frenzy he'd heard about. He set that rock aside for about a year, until the fall of 1874, when a man named Murrell talked Webb into digging a hole. Because of many complications with water filling the shaft, Murrell gave up and sold his share of the mine to W.A. Daugherty for $25.


A very smart young man named Grant Ashcraft, stepped in with some ideas on how to control the water. Webb leased the land to Daugherty and Ashcraft, and within two days, Ashcraft uncovered a 1,000-pound chunk of lead. That was the beginning of the Center Creek Mining Company, which eventually shipped more than $13 million worth of ore all over the world.


The word spread and miners moved into the area from around the world. The town of Webbville had begun. Within a few years, the city needed to incorporate to establish some law and order. The town was platted on December 15, 1875 with Webb reserving one block for a church and a school. On December 8, 1876, Webb City was incorporated under the statutes of the State of Missouri.


Webb City was the center of the lead and mining district of southwest Missouri. There was more lead and zinc mined within a radius of 3 1/2 miles than any other similar area in the world. From 1894 to 1904, the mines produced $23 million worth of ore. During the First World War, at it's mining peak, there were over 50 mines in operation around Webb City.


The wooden buildings were soon replaced with brick, some three stories high. Webb City boasted of paved streets, electric lights, good water works, a complete sewer system, two telephone companies and the best-equipped interurban electric railway in the west, connecting Webb City with the surrounding towns in every direction. There were 18 churches of different denominations, a reliable fire department, an Opera House seating 1,500 and many beautiful homes. There were two railroad depots, four banks, and a YMCA.


Many businesses were established during the beginning years of Webb City, some of which are still in existence today. The Webb City Sentinel was established in 1879, the Webb City Bank was established in 1882 by John C. Webb and his son E.T. Webb. The Webb Corporation incorporated in 1895.


After World War I, the mining industry declined because of the low price of ore and the discovery of Oklahoma ore pockets. Webb City's enterprising citizens, led by the Chamber of Commerce, turned to industry and brought many factories into town. Webb City had a leather factory, shirt factory, shoe factory, cigar factory, box factory, and a casket manufacturer. In 1920, Webb City attained the distinction of increasing her industries more than any other city in the United States, with an increase of 250 percent.


Another prominent feature in Webb City's growth and national recognition was the gravel industry. Countless tons of gravel, chat, and sand have been shipped to every state in the Union for building roads, forming ballast for railroads, as well as concrete and stucco construction.


Webb City put great energy and zeal into establishing one of the best school districts in the state. From the very beginning, the citizens of Webb City have shown loyalty to their schools by voting for the money necessary to keep pace with progress in education and the rapidly increasing demand for teachers and larger buildings.


As we take this journey into Webb City's past, we see the building blocks that have formed this wonderful community. A town that is noted for it's amazing school system, continuing growth, community pride, great leadership, and proud heritage.

                      



Pioneers





      "Name dropping"





   Published September 2001

As Mining Days begins the celebration of Webb City's 125th birthday, it seems only right that we do a little name-dropping! Here are a few names from Webb City's past with a short biography to remind us of the wonderful forefathers who helped establish our town.


Of course, we can't drop names without mentioning John C. Webb, the founder of (Webbville) Webb City. Webb moved here from Tennessee in 1856, uncovered a chunk of lead in 1873, and established the town of Webb City in 1876. Webb built the first brick house, the first brick business building, the first hotel.  John and his son E.T. Webb started the first bank of Webb City in 1882.


W.A. Daugherty lived just SW of John C. Webb on what is now Colonial Road. He stepped in to get a piece of the mining action when Webb and a friend, Murrell got discouraged with trying to mine the first mine shaft in what would soon become Webb City. Daugherty also became the founder of Carterville. He built the first home in Carterville other than the Carter farmhouse, which was located way out on the backside (northeast) of what would soon become Carterville.


Granville P. Ashcraft was known as the "man of first" in Webb City. He was in partnership with W.A. Daugherty and they were first to uncover a large chunk of lead in what would become Webb City, bringing up 15,000 pounds the first week. He was the first to market the lead and first to ship it out. His daughter Bernice was the first child born in the new incorporated town of Webb City. He built the first frame house in Webb City (located where the Senior Citizen Building is located) as John C. Webb and Daugherty were living in log cabins at the time. Ashcraft also purchased the first automobile in Webb City.


James O'Neill came to Webb City in 1879 at the age of 43. He had become quite wealthy in the Pennsylvania oil fields by investing in land rich in petroleum. He began investing in land in Jasper County and Kansas and once again, struck it lucky. He decided to take on a new business against all of his friends' advice. He started the Webb City Water Works. Once again, his investment paid off.  He was also built the Newland Hotel.


Elijah Lloyd came to this area from Kentucky in 1867. He was a civil engineer, worked for the railroad and did surveying. Assisted in laying out the town of Joplin in 1871, then he was employed by John C. Webb in 1874 to survey and plot a town, which would be called Webbville. He leased a mine in 1874, struck payload in 1882.


James E. McNair had the distinction of being the first executive officer (Mayor) of Webb City. A position he held for one month and two days before being honored with the position of the first Postmaster. Before moving to Webb City in 1875, McNair had served on the legislature of Tennessee, elected as a delegate to the Southern Loyalists convention and worked for the St. Louis & San Francisco Railway as a bridge carpenter. He built Mr. Webb a home at what are now Tom and Daugherty streets.


George W. Ball came to town without a penny to his name or shoes on his feet but with a dream to strike it rich. It didn't take him long to realize that only the mine owners got rich, not the miners. He was offered a mine that kept flooding.  He corrected the leak and struck it rich. He built a beautiful home on the SW corner of Daugherty and Washington. 


A.H. Rogers established a horse-drawn street car line from Carterville to Webb City and then in 1893, he consolidated with the Joplin Electric Railway and the Jasper County Electric and established the Southwest Missouri Railway which took miners as far away as Oklahoma.


Jane Chinn was well known for her donation to the city that allowed the construction and furnishing of the Jane Chinn Hospital. But Elizabeth Jane Webb Stewart Chinn was a strong independent lady who had a sharp business mind. She owned several mines and invested in many more.


Thomas F. Coyne came to Webb City in 1876 with his parents. He attended the Sedalia Business College and began working at the W.C. Bank. He soon realized that to become wealthy meant owning a prosperous mine. Coyne began investing and soon became one of Webb City's wealthy people. He opened the Coyne Lumber Company which was located at 308 Main (Broadway) and one in Miami, Oklahoma. His success in business is attributed to the fact that he was a fair man. His home was located on the SW corner of Ball and Broadway.


James A. Daugherty was the son of W.A. Daugherty and he was helping his father farm the land, which is now Carterville, when they discovered that the farmland was loaded with ores and minerals. Although his father owned the mines, it was James' brains behind the successful mines. James donated generously to the W.C. College. He became a business partner with W.S. Gunning in the mining and mill business. Several well-known family names united with James A. Daugherty's children. His daughter Nancy married W.A. Corl; his daughter Myrtle married C.R. Chinn, Jr.


There have been many more well known names in W.C. history such as A.D. Hatten, Judge Watson, H. Hulett, C.E. Matthews, George W. Moore, J. C. Stewart, and many more too numerous to mention.  There isn't enough room to put all the wonderful names that add up to Webb City. 


Have a great time at the Mining Days 125th Birthday Party and take a moment to remember those who have left us with such a wonderful legacy!

                               "Boom town drew many hoping to get rich"                   

                                                   Published October 12, 2001


W.L. Hatcher came from a fairly large family. He had four brothers, Anthony, Grover, Roland, and George. Two sisters in the midst of the five boys were Mollie and Dora. W.L. Hatcher and his wife Mary were living in Arkansas when they made a very important decision in their lives… they were ready to move and start a new life. They loaded up their family of two daughters and two sons and journeyed north to Missouri, settling in the pleasant community of Webb City. The year was 1918.


W.L. Hatcher was a carpenter by trade and he found contentment in this small town that provided a warm environment for his family to flourish. Their home at 409 S. Tom was the gathering place for the family, even as they headed out into the world to start their own families.


One of W.L.'s sons, George Hatcher found employment with Hercules Powder Company. George and his wife Mazie had two children Phyllis Hope Hatcher Trent and Jack Hatcher; (does that name sound familiar?). George and Mazie lived in the family home at 409 S. Tom after the death of George's father in 1928 and raised their own family.  


After the death of George and Maizie, Jack continued to live in the family home until just recently when Jack made the move to the high-rise.  


William Henry Aul was born in Pennsylvania, July 7, 1864. At the age of 18, young Aul made the journey from Pennsylvania to the booming Tri-State mining fields to make his fortune. He helped to develop the Webb City-Carterville-Oronogo Fields. He eventually opened his own company, the W.H. Mining Company.


In 1888, W.H. married Miss Martha Francis Vaughn in Webb City. They purchased a home at 325 South Oronogo, just across the street east from the old Eugene Field school house which was located on the northwest corner of Oronogo and Fourth Street.


The Auls had two daughters, Lula (May), and Murl E. Webb City didn't hold fond memories for the Aul family. In 1908, sixteen year old May Aul committed suicide in the Eugene Field outhouse by shooting herself in the chest and running home to fall at her mother's feet on their front porch.    


At her sister's dying request, Murl Aul married her sweetheart, Loraine E. Johnson. The invitations had been sent out two weeks previously. After lingering for 56 hours, May passed away during the wedding ceremony, but Murl was not told of her sister's demise until after the wedding. 


The Aul's eventually bought a home in Joplin at 101 S. Conner and both lived to be in their late 70's.


Young James Barnes worked in the Sunflower mine north of Carterville. On a Thursday in 1911, 23-year old James had a rough night when he dreamed a boulder fell down a shaft and hit him in the head. The dream was so vivid, that James mentioned it to his wife and a friend at work the next morning.  


Later on that day, James, who normally worked as a shoveler, was told to work the tub hooker's place. A little while later a bucket fell down the shaft, just missing James. He laughingly remarked, "Well, that's the end of my dream!"  At 2:55 PM, a boulder fell from the tub that James was working with and struck him in head, ending his life, just as he had dreamed the night before.


Jerry Clark came from a very large family. His father, Thomas Clark and his mother, Nancy Combs had twelve children and at the time of their deaths, they had one hundred and forty grandchildren plus great grandchildren and great great grandchildren. And Jerry's maternal grandmother lived to the ripe age of 108 years.


Jerry managed to get a good education and even attended a private school in Arkansas for one year in 1868. After his graduation, Jerry taught school for one year, decided that wasn't what he was cut out to be and tried his hand at farming as his father had done before him.  


In 1871, Jerry heard about the mining going on in Granby. He decided that might be the line of work he would like to try. Eventually heading into Webb City as the mining excitement began. He proved to be very talented in the mining business. He became a third partner in the Maud B. mine and a second partner in the Mosley mine. The Maud B. turned out to be a wealthy investment and Jerry became financially comfortable. 


Jerry and his wife Elizabeth Jones Clark had a daughter Roxie May who was born in Webb City in 1876 and graduated from Webb City High school. Roxie married a druggist by the name of R.M. Jones. Thus having the same name as her mother's maiden name.


The Clarks were well known in Webb City and thought of in the highest regard. Jerry continued his good success in the mining industry. 


John Wesley Earles was in partnership with Jerry Clark in the ownership of the Maude B. mine. John was a schoolteacher in Ohio until he enlisted in the Civil War and served under General Sherman. He never missed a skirmish and quickly rose from Private to Captain. Even being wounded twice, Earles remained in service until his honorable discharge in 1864. He returned home to Ohio and was elected Sheriff for two years and in 1867 was appointed United States Deputy Marshall, a position he also held for two years. He then headed to Kansas to try his hand at farming and finally came to Jasper County and got involved in mining. His investment in the Maud B. Mine was his best move.




    "The Webb City Name Game"

                                                     Published August 27, 1999

Names are with us forever. Some folks are remembered long after they have left this earth, usually because something is named after them or someone is named after them and the name carries on.

When we hear the name, John C. Webb, most of us know that he was the founder of Webb City, built the first brick building, established the first bank and of course uncovered a chunk of ore, between Webb City and Carterville, right about where the railroad tracks are located on the south side of the road.

If you hear the name of E.T. Webb, you think of that little alien in the movie "E.T." or you think of John Webb's son.  And when you think of John's son, you can't help but think of that beautiful house behind the Central Methodist Church at Liberty and Broadway streets. E.T. also was in the banking business with his father. E.T. gained national fame with his collection of valuable paintings.

W.A. Daugherty, brings to mind the street that runs east and west through Webb City and continues on into Carterville. Daugherty lived on what is now Colonial Drive in the Corl home, and he went into the mining business with John C. Webb. He also bought land from Carter and started a little town, which appropriately named Carterville.

There are many names that I could "drop" such as:  A.D. Hatten, Colonel James O'Neill, George Ball, J.C. Stewart, J.P. Stewart, W.S. Chinn, Joseph Aylor, C.E. Matthews, Andrew McCorkle, Colonel A.A. Hulett, S.L.Manker, C.M. Manker, W.A. Ashcraft, Grant Ashcraft, W.S. Gunning, George Bruen, J.M. Burgner, H.C.Humphreys, E.E. Spracklen, W.A. Corl, G.F. Corl, W.E. Patten, L.J. Stevison, S.H. Veatch, James Roney and many more.

I could go on and on with names that depicts the history of Webb City. And believe me, I really could go on for many more pages, as it is one of my favorite subjects.

But I also want to do a little name dropping of a different type. If you heard the name George W. Waring, would you know that he was a Webb City citizen who became nationally known as a chemist?   "Keeping up with the Jones" might be a little tough if you are competing with Elmer T. Jones, a one time Webb City Citizen who became the president of the Wells Fargo Company.

Judge Ray Watson and Captain Fred Nesbitt were distinguished in World War service. Mrs. Rosine Morris Bachrach hailed from Webb City, but most folks didn't know it as they listened to her play for the Minneapolis Symphony Orchestra.

Webb City's very own Zoe Thralls wrote several Geography books, some even used for the schools. (I wonder how you go about writing a geography book? Do you travel or do you go by old maps?) Either way, she helped put Webb City "on the map".

Robert Landrum was a tenor soloist on the National broadcasting system of New York City. I know that we have many young people who have gone on to become great singers and entertainers or great newspaper reporters, television correspondents and many other careers that seem rather glamorous. But we know that many long and hard hours go into making those careers.

A great botanist, Ernest Jesse Palmer who was a professor at Harvard, became well known when he wrote a couple of books. One was called "Catalogue of Plants in Jasper County," and he co-wrote "A Catalogue of All Known Plants of Missouri".
We've had a few inventors from Webb City and some wonderful artists who still reside in Webb City. There are musicians, actors, singers, and businessmen who have made a name for themselves and still call Webb City their hometown.

And as Webb City continues to grow, there are many who have made their fame and fortune elsewhere, but who have decided to settle in Webb City and call it home. It doesn't matter if you were born here or were a transplant, Webb City is proud to have such wonderful citizens.

***Additional information on Ernest Jesse Palmer He once maintained a herbarium in Webb City that contained 20,000 species.  He published a book of poetry in 1958 when he was 83 years of age. 

                                                           The Webbs




              John Cornwall Webb 

                                    "Webb began in log cabin"





      Published May 17, 1991

 
Those of us who have lived in the city most of our lives, find it hard to imagine what it must have been like for John C. Webb and his wife, Ruth, to come to this area in 1856 and only see land as far as the eye could see.  It must have been a beautiful sight, because Webb decided that this was where he wanted to raise his family.


Webb's first project after obtaining the land was to build a log cabin for shelter. Cabins in those days were made from unhewn logs, usually from the trees that were cut down on the land to allow for the planting. The roof was made from clapboards, held in place by heavy boards. Clapboards were thin narrow boards with one end thicker than the other. Nails were used only when absolutely necessary. Nails were made by hand and were too expensive to use if you had other means to serve the purpose.


Stone wasn't readily available; so most chimneys were made of mud and sticks. But, Webb was able to uncover enough stones on his land to eventually replace his chimney.


It was many years before glass windows were added to cabins. Transporting glass was tricky business. Glass could be obtained in St. Louis, but that was an eight-week trip by horseback and even longer by wagon. It wasn't a very gentle ride either.


As more and more families moved into the area, cabins became fancier. You know, even in those days, everyone was concerned about "keeping up with the Jones." One marked sign of "aristocracy" was whether your cabin had a dirt or wooden floor.


This area was the perfect place to live. There was plenty of prairie land for the farmer and timbered land for the hunter. Wild game included deer, turkey, squirrel, rabbits, and small birds, not to mention lots of rivers for fishing and traveling.


We owe a lot to those hardy pioneers who were adventurous enough to make that journey into the unknown. And we should be grateful that they had the endurance to withstand many obstacles and determination to make something of the land. So, this week, I give special thanks to all those men and women who left family and security to venture into a new world. They have a special place in our hearts and in our history.





             Colleen Belk 

A letter received from Colleen Belk of Joplin, gives a genealogy record of the Webb family in response to a question of a possibility of Indian bloodlines in the Webb family. Colleen was active in the Joplin Historical Society and helped to catalog most of the cemeteries in the area.

A lady called me and told me you had an article in the paper (Webb City) about the Webb family...that is my family line...have been researching it for several years and along the way have made contact with 8 other researchers of the same line...from offshoots in Tennessee and North Carolina. I am descended directly from Mary Anne Webb Terry, a sister of John Cornwall Webb, the founder of the city.


We have traced back to William Warren Webb, who died an old man (I have the estate) in 1783, Orange County Virginia. Had a large family. Then one of his sons, James Crittenden Webb, migrated to North Carolina. Had a large family, I have his list of children. One of his sons, Benjamin C. Webb born in North Carolina and his wife Jane Coffey (daughter of Reuben and Sally Scott Coffey) migrated to Overton County Tennessee (died in 1824, I have the estate).


Two of his sons, migrated to Jasper County in the 1850's: Elijah C. Webb, father to John C. Webb and my great, great, great grandfather, along with James C. Webb, the father of Jane Chinn.


Also from Tennessee came Thomas C. Webb who lived where the Mt. Hope Cemetery is now located, and Solomon H. Webb. So, four lines of the same tree came here. Since my Great Grandparents Erasmus Webb and Eliza Jane Terry Webb were cousins, I'm also descended from the above listed Thomas C. Webb. We also have the female lines of the family tree. We have never found any Indian tribal lines in any of the lines, although I would not say there is none. 


The Harmony Grove cemetery east of Joplin, is the Webb family cemetery. All four lines are represented there and the parents of John C. Webb are there (died 1859). John Cornwall Webb was named for his maternal grandfather, John Cornwall Johnson who was the son of John Boswell Johnson, a Revolutionary War veteran.


John C. Webb was originally buried in Harmony Grove Cemetery in 1883, but after the formation of Mount Hope Cemetery his first wife; a son and John C. Webb were removed to Mt. Hope.


John C. Webb had a younger brother, William J. whose first wife died young, leaving three little girls. The young wife was a dark eyed German (Schubert) and eventually the coloring of the children created an Indian story...until research proved they were pure German.







Regards, Colleen Belk.

Colleen has since passed away. I really appreciate her letter; it is nice to have this information directly from the family. 

                                   "Founder's grandson dies"




                Published May 22, 1998

 
In researching history, it is so wonderful to stumble upon the genealogy of a family. It seems to complete a story and make it so much more interesting. Genealogy is becoming more and more popular as the years go by. Some may not be interested at all in their family lineage, but let me tell you, when you get bitten by the genealogy bug, it bites hard and you can't seem to get enough information.


I received a phone call that there has been a loss for our city. It seems that the last remaining direct descendent of our city founder has passed away. He was John Cornwall Webb's great grandson, Thomas Hall Webb.


John C. Webb's family is traced back to William Warren Webb who lived in Orange County, Virginia and died in 1783 after a very long life. One of his sons from his large family, James Crittenden Webb migrated to North Carolina and he also had a very large family. James' son, Benjamin C. Webb migrated to Tennessee, along with his wife Jane. Benjamin was a participant in the Revolutionary War.


Two of Benjamin's boys, Elijah C. Webb and James C. Webb decided to migrate to Jasper County, in 1855. They settled on a farm just east of what would one day be Joplin. Elijah had left grown children back in Tennessee, and it wasn't long before they decided to join their father in his adventure to this new land.


John C. Webb and his wife Ruth, lived on Elijah's farm when they first moved to Missouri in 1856. But within a year, John had located the sight where he wanted his farm. It was beautiful land, where any direction you looked, there were green meadows. The wooded streams carried lots of cool, clear water. The hills of the Ozarks could be seen off in a distance.


John's younger brother, William J., who was 9 years old when his parents moved to Missouri, grew up on the Webb Farm, east of Joplin, but when the town of Webb City was formed, he moved into town and started a blacksmith business.


Two of John's cousins, Thomas C. Webb and Solomon H. Webb, also moved into the area. There were several branches of Benjamin Webb's family living in Jasper County.


John C. Webb and Ruth had three children, Elijah (E.T.) Webb, Martha Ellen Webb Hall and Mary Susan Webb Burgner. The children lost their mother in 1877, just one year after Webb City was incorporated and John died in 1883.


John's only son, E.T. had one son, Ernest Webb, the father of Thomas Hall Webb, who just passed away. Thomas and his wife Sally have been living in Texas. They visited Webb City several years ago and he recalled days of his youth visiting his grandparents in their grand home at the southwest corner of Broadway and Liberty Street. Thomas has a stepdaughter Lee Anne and sister Alice who also live in Texas.


There are many Webb's still living in the area and some are related to the brothers and cousins of John C. Webb, but this is the end of the direct line of our founder.


Our sincere sympathy to the family of Thomas Webb. He will not be forgotten as Webb City strives to keep recalling the glorious history that has made our town such a great place to live. 


A special thanks to Rusty Stanford for keeping me informed.

A letter was received from Alice Spradley, Thomas Webb's sister dated August 24, 1999 in which she corrects some of the above information.


The enclosed article concerning my brother in particular and the Webb family in general was much appreciated by the family. I apologize for being so tardy in writing about the column. Truly, I did not discover the error that I would like to correct until very recently, when I re-read the article.


You say in the column that my brother has a sister, which is correct and therefore negates the next paragraph, which indicates there are no remaining direct descendents of John C. Webb. In fact, there are eight of us living now. I am Alice Webb Spradley, the great granddaughter of John C. Webb and the granddaughter of E.T. Webb. I have three children in their 40's. The eldest is Ernest (Webb) Spradley, then Charles D. Spradley and a daughter Alice Spradley Alex. Webb has a daughter, Rachel Hay Spradley; Charles has two sons, Walter Bowles Spradley and Martin Webb Spradley; Alice has one son, Ronald Marshall Alex, Jr. 


My children and I have always been proud of our Webb City heritage and have been pleased to see the Webb house, the Methodist Church and other things of note when we have been there for my brother's funeral (1998) and my mother's funeral in 1968. I would like, for the record, it be noted that there are direct descendents who wish to keep in touch with this part of our heritage always. Also, I would note the headline to the article, though it doesn't really matter...my brother was the great grandson of the founder. It is true, of course, that my brother is the last of the direct line to carry the Webb name as a surname.


Thanks again for your attention to this. Please include it somewhere in the records of your paper. I'll send a copy of this letter to the library, where other records are kept. 







Alice W. Spradley







Dallas, Texas

   


      Granville P. Ashcraft

                          
      "Ashcraft marketed first ore"





      Published June 22, 1990

Granville P. Ashcraft also known as "Grant" had quite a reputation in Webb City.  Ashcraft decided to live in Webb City after he got upset over a deal in Oronogo...a deal that he took quite a financial loss over. (Gave up a lease on a mine for $50 that two weeks before he had purchased for $1500).

When he arrived in the area soon to be known as Webb City, he found out about J.C. Webb's mining difficulties at the Center Creek Mines. They needed someone to sink the shaft. A little bit of ore had been removed, but the mine kept filling with water.

Ashcraft had seven horses and he worked each one for two or three hours each as they kept the pump going. As soon as the pump quit, the shaft would fill up and over flow. But, Ashcraft was still able to get enough lead to make several sales. They were the first marked loads of ore to come out of Webb City.

Grant Ashcraft had made a name for himself: the first man to sink a shaft in Webb City and the first to market the ore. He watched that industry grow until over $10 million worth of ore had been shipped from the Center Creek Mines.

Ashcraft was not only the first to sell ore in Webb City; he was also noted for building the first frame house. When he arrived in Webb City (the town had not been incorporated yet) there was nothing in sight but John C. Webb's log house. By the time the town was incorporated in 1876, Ashcraft had purchased several city lots in a block area to the west of Pennsylvania, south of John (Austin), north of Daugherty and east of Ball. (The area is now Memorial Park and the Senior Citizen Center.)  On the corner of Pennsylvania and Daugherty, he built the first frame house.

Samuel Ashcraft, Grant's brother, made the comment that Grant always backed his own judgement, rarely told anyone what he intended to do in business matters and never asked advice of anybody. He was a hard man to persuade into anything, but once he gave his word, everyone knew he could be relied upon to do just what he said.

Granville P. Ashcraft was another of the great pioneers who made Webb City the wonderful town that it is today. Progress came at a rapid pace. It must have been difficult with constant changes each day, but Webb City was on the upward move and the city officials were able to accept the challenges and allowed Webb City to grow.





Granville P. Ashcraft 



  "Ashcraft was true pioneer in many ways"





    Published July 30, 1993

A pioneer is someone who goes before, preparing the way for others. It's also defined, as being one of the firsts of its kind. Well, both of those definitions fit the description of Granville P. Ashcraft. His pattern in life seemed to be that he was always the first to do something.

Granville, or Grant as he became known, was born December 13, 1842 in Cass County to Eli and Abigail (Plummer) Ashcraft of Kentucky. They were pioneers of that portion of Bates County, which later became Cass County, Missouri as of 1836. They had moved to an area still inhabited by the Indians and wild animals.

Living in the wilderness as they did, Grant didn't receive a formal education. He began work at an early age in a sawmill. He drove the horses, which furnished the power to the mill. He earned only $10 a month and he saw no chance for advancement, so after four months, he quit. With the money he made, he bought a suit of clothes from a store in another town. His was the first suit of ready-made clothing worn in that part of Missouri. This gave Grant a prominence in the neighborhood that was pleasing to him. Thus it became his desire to be first at many accomplishments throughout his life.

At the tender age of 17, Grant made a trip to California over the Santa Fe Trail. The journey took over five months, meeting danger and hardship along the way. While in Stockton, California, Grant hardly gave himself but a few hours rest before he went to work as a painter. But, an adventurer such as Grant could not live that close to the "California Gold Fever" without catching it himself. He went to work for Mr. Fair and Mr. Mackey and the one of the four men who dug the first shaft on the famous Comstock Lode, which made millionaires for the men he was working for.

Five years later, Grant headed back to Missouri after a visit from his brother Sam. He got sidetracked along the way in Denver, Colorado and did a little successful mining there. But, the longing for home overpowered the need to continue his mining. He had stayed in Colorado for eight years (quite a detour) on his trip back home. It was 1872 when Grant arrived in Joplin, then a small developing community of only a few houses and businesses.

Almost immediately upon arriving in the area, Grant got the mining fever again. He originally bought into what was later known as the Oronogo Circle Mines, but got mad about a deal he was involved in and left Oronogo for what was later named Webb City. He remained here until his death in 1911. 

Grant bought some of the Webb City land and was the first to bring in lead from the Webb City mines. The first week alone, he took out 15,000 pounds. He was also the first to ship ore out of the area. In 1874, Grant married Theresa Belle Baker, a native of Springfield, Illinois. 
They were the parents of three children: Bernice (Burch), another daughter who married Allen Hardy, Jr. and a son, Eli Ashcraft. Bernice was the first child born in the new town of Webb City.

Upon arriving in the area of the Webb mines, the only thing in site was John C. Webb's log cabin. Grant purchased several lots, a great number of them in the area surrounded by Daugherty Street, John (Austin) Street, Pennsylvania and Ball Street. On one corner he built the first frame house, adding others at a later time.

It's been stated that he even bought the first automobile in the Webb City area. I thought that honor was contributed to A.D. Hatten, but I was informed that Hatten had purchased the first colored (red) automobile.

Grant's brother, Sam seemed to be a guardian angel to Grant. He went to California to bring him home and was always there to assist Grant. Sam married Mary Margaret Worsham, and they lived across Ball Street from the block of houses that Grant had built. Their address was 216 North Ball.

Grant may have been first in a lot of his achievements, but he was definitely first in the eyes of the citizens of Webb City. His death on July 24, 1911 was deeply mourned. The statement was made that it was the death of "one of the most prominent and highly honored of the citizens of Webb City and southern Missouri."

It's another example of one more pioneer who made Webb City the wonderful town we live in. The descendants of Grant and Sam Ashcraft should indeed feel proud to be related to such strong men who helped build a city.

(Mary Margaret Ashcraft Berrian and her daughter Mary Margaret (Meg) Berrian say they are proud to be descendents of Grant and Sam Ashcraft).

Additional Information about Granville Ashcraft.

Granville was named after a neighbor, Granville Swift who later gave Grant a home in California on the Swift Ranch where Granville Ashcraft learned about horses which became a major hobby throughout his lifetime. Sam Ashcraft once said, "Grant knew a good horse as well as any man in Jasper County, perhaps and no end of stories could be told of his venturesome and daredevil exploits. "One day, in the early days of the old 'Red Plan' a Frisco train was passing when he was on his way to Webb City. He made a bet with the man who was riding with him that he could beat the train to town. No doubt he did his best to win the bet, as was shown by the fact that in his mad race he killed a cow on the roadway and had to pay the owner for the loss of the animal, besides getting unmercifully 'joshed' by his friends for years afterwards."

                          Webb City needs more like James O'Neill





Published September 13, 1991

In talking about well-known forefathers, we have to repeat what some of you have known for years, but there are a few people who have never heard the story of James O'Neill. The story of "poor boy becomes rich man" applies to James O'Neill.

He was born in New York on October 31, 1836, to poor immigrants. At an early age, James began to show a talent at succeeding in most anything he attempted. He began working at the early age of 12. His first business adventure was driving along the waterway of the Erie Canal for $9 a month. At the end of three years, he was given a position on a freight boat and was a valued employee.  

At the age of 29, James took his hard-earned savings and headed to the Pennsylvania oil region to invest in land. It was a wise decision on his part; the land proved to be rich in petroleum.

In 1879, at 43 years of age, James O'Neill came to Jasper County to invest once more in land, only this time he was investing in lead and zinc. He also bought 1,500 acres in Kansas to become involved in coal mining. He purchased land in Newton County for mining and farming. 

As if he wasn't busy enough keeping track of all of his investments, James O'Neill decided to take on a new business that all his friends considered a hazardous undertaking…The Webb City Water Works. He had to invest a lot of money with only a small amount of return possible. Well, his foresight paid off. As the community developed so did the water works, which became a necessity for both the city and the mining industry.

Being the smart businessman that he was, James O'Neill owned all but one-twentieth of the stocks associated with the Water Company. His son-in-law George H. Bruen, was the secretary and Henry O'Neill was the Vice President with James as President.

To add to his list of accomplishments, James was half-owner in the Webb City Ice & Storage Company. He also built the famous Newland Hotel. And he was involved in many organizations in the community. He also started the first gas service in Webb City

James was married to Lucy Bachelder (from New York) and they had two children; Grace who married George R. Regdon in Pennsylvania and Jennie who married George H. Bruen in Webb City. James' second wife was Ora Hubbell of Cedar County, Missouri and they had one son, Robert Newland O'Neill.

I think James O'Neill rightly qualifies as an honored forefather and ancestor of Webb City history. If we had more dedicated people today who were concerned with Webb City's future, we would see a flourishing metropolis. We do have those who are concerned, but only a handful can't accomplish something that needs the support of the entire town. I would like to see our city working together as a unit instead of being torn apart by opposition.

Additional information: The O'Neill Building was the home of the Water department, 9 1/2 South Webb Street. The water works system cost O'Neill $100,000 in 1890. James O'Neill had the title of Colonel, but I don't know how he came by that title.

                                        Joseph Wheeler Aylor

                                                    "Mansion still pretty" 

                                                    Published November 30, 1990

Joseph Aylor had a lot to show for his life. Never having an education didn't stop this wonder man from finding his destination.

Leaving his home state of Virginia in 1859, Joseph came to the state of Missouri. In 1861, he became a member of the army with Pindall's battalion of Sharp Shooters. He was active in the battles of Lexington, Pea Ridge, Prairie Grove, Pleasant Hill and Jenkin's Ferry, plus many more.

Joseph became involved in mining with Andrew McCorkle. Along with the mining company with McCorkle, Joseph had a fine farm with 120 acres and 117 acres of mining land on Turkey Creek.

In 1866, Mr. Joseph Aylor married Miss C.M.E. Webb. He built a beautiful mansion in the heart of Webb City for his lovely wife. The home was prestigious and close to the business (Merchants & Miners Bank) that Joseph was so fond of. The house still stands today at the southwest corner of Webb and Daugherty streets. It is a well-preserved landmark of our glorious history.





 Joseph Wheeler Aylor



         
"Now that was a good investment"





          Published in 2001

Joseph Wheeler Aylor left quite an impression in Webb City with his unusual home on the southwest corner of Webb and Daugherty Streets. Born in Rappahannock County, Virginia, September 29, 1839 to Stanton Aylor and Malinda Quaintance Aylor, Joseph of one of 14 children.

Despite having been to school for only 2 months and 19 days in his entire lifetime, Joseph became smart in business through actual experience and keeping a cool head about him. His word was as good as a bond.

In 1859, at the age of 20, young Joseph ventured west to the new territory of Missouri. By 1861, Joseph found himself to be a member of the army with Pindall's Battalion of Sharp Shooters. Under the command of General Parson, who was attached to General Price, Joseph was actively engaged the battles of Lexington, Pea Ridge, Prairie Grove, Jenkin's Ferry, Arkansas, Pleasant Hill, Louisiana and numerous other places, serving under the Confederate Flag. 

After the Civil War, in 1866, Joseph Aylor found himself in Texas with only $5 to his name. He invested it all in a horse and waited until he could sell the horse for more money. In the meantime, he proposed to and married Miss C.M.E. Webb who hailed from the state of Texas. With the extra money he made from the sale of the horse, Aylor and his new bride made the trip back to Jasper County.

Joseph invested the rest of his horse money in purchasing some farmland here (in the Jasper County area, later to be known as Webb City) and the land was rich in minerals. Going into partnership with Andrew McCorkle, the two men bought as much land as they could and mined a good portion of the land. Both became quite wealthy, as they began mining as early as 1869 in the neighboring towns. Joseph, at the time, lived out on the hill across from what would soon become Mount Hope Cemetery. (That hill was later leveled and became the location of a shopping center).

Joseph Aylor opened the Merchants & Miners Bank of Webb City and served as President. Being a very paranoid man, Aylor built his a grand three story brick home directly behind the bank, on Webb Street so he could keep an eye on any activity around the bank. But to add to his worries, he was always afraid someone would kidnap him to find out the combination to the bank safe. When he built his new home, he put a beautiful etched glass window on the second floor that allowed him to view who was at the door when the maid answered. He felt confident that if it were someone up to no good, he could make a hasty retreat before they were even in the door.

In the basement of his home, Joseph had a tunnel that went south to John C. Webb's home at 112 N. Webb Street, which was right next door. The tunnel was used for the young ladies to travel from one house to the next without worry of messing up their clothes or hair. It also served as a hasty retreat for Aylor, if he felt threatened in any way. Aylor also kept a safe under the stairway of his home to keep his personal papers and spending cash out of harm's way.

As Aylor's wealth continued to grow, he invested in more land and built a beautiful home in Carthage and a million-dollar estate in Kansas City. He let his daughter Ada and her husband, S. Nilson, live in the old Aylor home on Webb street and he lived mostly in the Carthage home which he loved. His son, Ben with his wife Blanche, had a tendency to live in the Kansas City mansion.

One day, in 1912, as Aylor was taking care of his garden in Carthage, he had a seizure and landed in the fire he was tending. He wasn't badly burned, but he had inhaled the smoke and flames to the extent that his health was greatly impaired. He died in Kansas City in April of 1917, at the age of 77. 

At the time of his death, he owned the Webb City home, the Carthage home, the Kansas City estate home, 2,000 acres of land in Jasper County and 29 sections of land in Texas. His net worth at the time of this death estimated to exceed $2.5 million. Just imagine...he started out with $5 after the Civil War.

                     "George Ball's Webb City mining dream comes true"




               Published January 1990

During Webb City's mining era, many men lost what little money they had saved and wound up with only sore hands and aching backs. But there were some that struck it rich. Many times the deciding factor in making it or breaking it was simple common sense. One such story of common sense was about a young man named George Ball.

Ball came to Webb City at the age of 16, barefoot and seeking employment. He applied at one of the many mining companies in the area and was put to work in one of the large mines north of Webb City. George was a strong, husky boy and made his average wage of $2 per day, except when the Devil Water filled the mine and work was cut back. This put a strain on the finances of the mine operators and they decided to dispose of their interest in the mine.

The mine owners had been keeping an eye on the spunky George Ball and noted his unusual amount of "horse sense". This prompted them to offer to lease the mine to him on a royalty basis. They explained that George could make more money, working half the time. George liked this idea, but he wanted to think it over.

In the meantime, he was determined to find out why the mine filled with the Devil Water.

George found a large crevice in the rock bed of Muddy Creek. Ordering loads of baled hay, he filled the crevice with them, over which he poured a thick layer of concrete. When Muddy Creek filled with water, his lead mine, which had now leased, remained dry. George Ball, just another miner, became a millionaire in Webb City.  



                    Gunning invested in Webb City





Published September 13, 1996


William S. Gunning was born in Farmersville, Ohio in the year 1867. By the age of two his parents made the move to the uncharted area north of what is now Oronogo.

William grew up in a very industrious territory. He watched men get rich off the mines and he observed those who lost everything they owned when their mines failed.

The first business adventure that William delved into was a livery stable in Oronogo. Business was good and William was happy with his choice, but in the back of his mind he yearned to try his hand in the mining business. Making some choice decisions, William went into mining with another industrious young man by the name of Walter Claude Ball.

You will recall from a previous story that George Ball came to town without a penny to his name and no shoes on his feet. By doing a good job and showing what a hard worker he was, he was given a chance to take over a mine that kept filling up with water and was of no use to the present owner. Using his skills to figure out the problem, Ball was able to get the water under control and became quite wealthy in the mining business. George's son was named Walter Claude Ball.

Ball and Gunning owned several mines together; one of the most famous was the Oronogo Circle. Others included the Little Mary, Dinger Mine, Bird Dog Mine, and the High Five Mine.

William and his wife Sarah moved to Webb City in 1900. William had the chance to enter into another business adventure. He and J.W. Boyd bought the S.H. Veatch Milling Company at Austin and Madison Streets. The business was going great when the name changed to Boyd & Gunning Milling Company. W.S. Gunning was the manager and his goal was to continue the reputation that the milling company had with the Veatch family of "honesty in their products and fair dealings with their customers." Gunning did that and then some as he gave his personal attention to the business.

Boyd eventually sold his share of the milling business to W.C. Ball and the name changed to Ball & Gunning Milling Company. Gunning continued to manage the mill and business continued to flourish.

William Gunning invested his money in several other mills in the area. There was the Monett Milling Company and a grain business in Fort Smith, Arkansas. He also invested in real estate in Webb City, as he knew that the land would always be worth money.

W.C. Ball and W.S. Gunning must have had a lot of mutual respect for each other besides being good friends, because they continued as investment partners. They not only shared the milling company and several mines; they also shared interest in the Joplin Globe Publishing Company. 

It's a shame that such a good business mind had to leave us at such a young age. By the age of 58, in 1925, William S. Gunning passed away from heart disease. His wife continued to live in Webb City for another 25 years. Their farmhouse was located right where McDonalds sits today. In talking with Eddie Vaughn, who is W.S. Gunning's grandson, I learned that the Gunning home was move to Prairie Flower Road. Of course, after the Gunning home and before McDonalds at that location, there was the Ozark Motel and Restaurant.

William and Sarah had three daughters, Fern who married Lawrence Vaughn, Lola who married Earl Beale and Treva.
    
         Where did mine owners come up with those names?





Published September 20, 1996

W.S. Gunning was in partnership with W.C. Ball with mines named the Oronogo Circle, Little Mary, Dinger Mine, Bird Dog Mine, and the High Five Mine.
The names of mines have always been fascinating to me; especially low they got their names. I have been able to locate some information on how some of the mines received their names.

One mine known as the Black Seven just happened to be owned by seven black men. A mining camp known as Ragville was so named because the miners were formerly "rag-tailed farmers". They named their mines farm names such as; the Red Rooster and the Blue Goose. But one farmer changed that tradition when he struck ore and named his mine "Sweet Reliefs".

One of the most well known mines in our area was the Yellow Dog. As the story goes, the original owner, who was deep into politics, labeled one of the candidates, whose politics differed from his, Yellow dog. At the same time, as this campaign, his mine failed him and he decided to call the mine Yellow Dog. Eventually the mine did a great job, but the name still stuck.

Around 1911, the mines ran a dog cycle with most of the new mines being named after canines. In addition to Yellow Dog, there were the Bird Dog, White Dog, Red Dog, and Bull Dog. One mine operator decided to be different and named his mine Green Dog. And we can't forget the Black Cat.

Names were also derived from the events. The Old Shoe mine was named after its owner found an old shoe. Starting the operation on Friday, led to the naming of the Friday Mine. You'd have to use your own imagination to figure out how they came up with names like Navy bean, Hill Billy, Leather Neck, Wild Pat, Holy Moses, Great Scott, What Cheer and the Little Hope. Although the last paints a picture of what the operator was feeling at the time of naming.

Some names had positive feelings like the Good Enough and the Ideal Mines and Electrical Mines. There was the Feel Good and we can't forget the first mine in Webb City, the Center Creek mine.

Some were named after family members or famous people such as McKinley, the Billy Sunday, Bob Ingersoll or Uncle Joe. Lincoln Mine, Davey Mine and a few others were people's names.

In Leadville Hollow, the group of mines had names such as, Ino, Uno, Damfino, Damfuno, and Hell -on-Earth. Sounds as if they were a little discouraged as they began mining that area.

But no matter what the name or how it got there, mining was our history. And if anyone knows how Sucker Flats got its name, please let me know. 

       "Brennemans' large greenhouse was located at Broadway & Roane"





Published September 3, 1993


Samuel S. Brenneman was born December 2, 1846 in Rockingham County, Virginia. When he was 21, he moved to Jasper County with his parents in the fall of 1867. In June of 1879, Samuel married the lovely Miss Kate Haycroft.

Some people have a green thumb when it comes to raising fruits and vegetables and I guess this couple must have had green hands. Everything they attempted to grow would blossom beyond compare. Samuel and Kate had a 120-acre farm. They grew fruit and vegetables to sell in town. According to the History of Jasper County, he sold as many as 2,000 quarts of blackberries in one year. He had melons, peaches, and apples. He would net about 500 bushels of apples and 100 bushels of peaches from his orchards.


Along with fruits and vegetables, the farm also consisted of a dairy of 12 cows. Now, this area was Kate's expertise. She handled the dairy farm. She would yield about 40 pounds of butter each week, which she molded and sold for the highest market price. Kate enjoyed the care and feeding of the dairy cattle. 


With Samuel doing so well with the agriculture and Kate doing so well with the dairy it was only common business sense that allowed them to pay off the farm. Samuel decided to set up a florist and greenhouse in town. Located at 604 Joplin (Broadway), SW corner of Roane and Broadway, it was one of the largest in Jasper county.


Brenneman Florist consisted of seven greenhouses, 50,000 feet of glass. Along with the florist business here in Webb City, there was also a retail florist business at 408 Main, in Joplin. S.S. Brenneman and his lovely wife Kate had a hand for farming and a head for business. They sold the business in 1910 to Julius E. Meinhart. 

                                           Doctor Lincoln Curtis Chenoweth


Born March 20, 1862 in McDonald County, Lincoln Chenoweth continued a family legacy and became the fourth generation of his family to practice medicine. He graduated from the Missouri State Medical College (later known as the Washington University) in 1887 and started his practice in Pineville, Missouri. One year later, 1888, Dr. Chenoweth and his wife, America Levina (McNatt) Chenoweth moved to Webb City.


His wife Levina was born in 1868 in one of the first houses built in Aurora, Missouri before her family moved to McDonald County where her father built and operated McNatt's Mill and founded the town of McNatt. Levina attended a seminary for girls in Pea Ridge, Arkansas. She married Doctor Lincoln Chenowith on July 10, 1887 just after he graduated from medical school.


In 1905, Dr. Chenoweth established the first hospital in Webb City in the residence of  Captain S.O.Hemenway  on the NW corner of First and Webb Streets. A pioneering physician of the "boom" era of the Webb City mining field, the doctor had a colorful career in administering to miners injured in accidents and explosions.

Later Dr. Chenoweth established a hospital at the Salvation Army building on East Main (Broadway),                                     




                      The Chinns





            Jane Chinn

                           "A name that should be remembered fondly 

             in the city she cared so much about."                                                    




 Published October 6, 1995


Elizabeth Jane Webb was born June 27, 1829 in the state of Tennessee. She was married at the age of 19, to her cousin, Ben C. Webb. They lived in Jasper County until the beginning of the Civil War, at which time, they moved to Texas to be close to family. After the war was over, they settled in what would later become Webb City.


Ben passed away a few years after they moved back to Jasper County (he is buried in the Harmony Grove cemetery in Duenweg. After about five years of widowhood, Elizabeth Jane married Daniel Stewart. They built a beautiful home on the SW corner of Third and Pennsylvania Streets, 302 S. Pennsylvania. Mr. Stewart died in the late 1880's; he is also buried in Duenweg. Then, in 1897, (age 68) Elizabeth Jane Webb Stewart married Charles R. Chinn, Senior, and that's the name she is most remember by...Jane Chinn.


Jane Chinn was a remarkable woman. A strong, independent lady, who had a sharp business mind. She was involved in mining in the area. She owned several mines and invested in others.


But what she is remembered for the most is the hospital. In 1910, (age 81), Jane and Charles realized that a hospital was needed in their fast growing community. They supplied the $60,000 needed to build the hospital and supply the equipment.


One can't help but wonder if the hospital had not been named Jane Chinn, would we have forgotten this strong women born before her time? Would we have remembered her for her business ability? Most women in that time era weren't allowed to use their brains for business matters. It was considered unlady-like to think of anything but charity events, household problems and raising children.


Recently the name of Jane Chinn has been tarnished by the publicity surrounding the dilapidated building that once was a triumph for Webb City. How sad that not only is a beautiful historic building going to waste, but so is a grand name in Webb City history...Jane Chinn.

Additional information about Jane Chinn... Jane Chinn passed away December 31, 1913, just 3 years after the building of the Jane Chinn hospital. Jane had two brothers, Thomas Columbus Webb and John Webb of Texas (not John C. Webb founder of Webb City). Her father was James C. Webb. She was related to C.M.E. Webb who married Joseph Aylor. The Harmony Grove Cemetery east of Joplin, near Kensor Road is the Webb family cemetery.





     Published March 7, 2003

With the recent opening of the apartments in the old Jane Chinn Hospital, it has renewed an interest in the "Lady of Webb City" known as Jane Chinn. Many of the early pioneers of Webb City's history have their names on buildings, streets, businesses, etc. Most of those pioneers are men. Very few women left their mark in Webb City's past, except Jane Chinn and that was because she had a hospital named in her honor.

The sad part is, the lady did so much more than just donate $60,000 to have a hospital built. She was a remarkable woman with a business mind that put many men to shame. She seemed to have complete control of her life, starting with her early marriage at the age of 19.

Elizabeth Jane Webb, daughter of James C. Webb (uncle to John C. Webb, founder of Webb City) from the state of Tennessee, moved as a family to Jasper County in the 1850's. With not too many families living in the area at that time, Jane married her cousin, Ben C. Webb. They had a happy home in Jasper County until the Civil War began, and they went to Texas to be close to family during the conflict. After the war, Jane and Ben returned to Jasper County, but Ben died just a few years later. 

The widow Jane Webb, proceeded to invest her money in the mining industry. She bought mines as they became available and she invested in others. A smart move, as the mining industry continued to grow and so did Jane's bank account. After five years of widowhood, Jane married Daniel F.Stewart. 

Jane and Dan built a beautiful home on the southwest corner of Third and Pennsylvania, 302 S. Pennsylvania. The filigree design made the home quite a showplace, surrounded by a wrought iron fence.

Jane continued with her mining investments and her involvement in the community and the Methodist, South church. As her business became more involved and continued to develop, Jane became known as the "wealthiest woman in the county".

Not having any children of their own, Jane and Dan became foster parents to a young lady named Pearl Stewart who married Roy Gale. Jane was also closely involved in the lives of her many nieces and nephews on the Webb family side, such as: Ada Aylor Nilson, Ben C. Aylor, Eliza Webb, Lee Webb, Sam Taggert, Victoria Bushear, Clara Gage, Eli Glasscock. 

Daniel passed away in the late 1880's, and Jane, being the independent woman that she was continued in her business endeavors and continued to succeed. 

After many years of being a widow, Jane married Charles R. Chinn, Sr. another pioneer in Webb City's history. Chinn, the youngest of ten children moved with his parents to Missouri where his father W.S. Chinn helped to establish Shelby County, Missouri. In 1877, Charles and his wife of 24 years, Milissa, moved to the new town of Webb City and opened the largest dry goods store in town, Chinn's Dry Goods. 

The widower Charles Chinn,Sr. married at the age of 64 to the widow Jane Stewart age 68 in 1897. They moved into Jane's home on Pennsylvania and lived a very peaceful and happy life. Thirteen years later, at the age of 81, Jane and Charles Chinn decided that the growing city was in need of a hospital. So in 1910, they donated $60,000 to build and supply the hospital. They also made necessary arrangements to keep the hospital financially stable. They had the miners donate 50 cents a month and the mine operators paid $5.00 a month, which was enough to keep the hospital operating. In honor of the generous donation, it was deemed that the hospital would be named Jane Chinn and if for some unforeseen reason, the hospital should no longer exist, the building would be left to the heirs of Jane and Charles Chinn. (Jane and Charles' pictures hung in the entryway of the hospital).

The Chinn family was connected to many other Webb City pioneers. Charles' son W.S. Chinn married Minnie Manker daughter to S.L. Manker a pioneer hardware merchant. His grandson, Charles Jr. married Myrtle Daugherty daughter of James Daugherty and granddaughter of  W.A.Daugherty mining pioneers and founders of Carterville. 

In an article written in 1995 about Jane Chinn, I posed the question...One can't help but wonder that if the hospital had not been named Jane Chinn, would we have forgotten this strong woman born before her time? Would we have remembered her for her business ability?

Jane Chinn passed away December 31, 1913, just 3 years after the building of the Jane Chinn Hospital. A memorial to a fine lady! 

**Note...I just talked with a lady named Phyllis Sanders and she said she use to have a "Jane Chinn cookbook" that she has passed on to her grandson. There's a piece of history! Do you have one?




             Charles R. Chinn, Sr.


Charles R. Chinn born August 17, 1833 in Henry County, Kentucky to W.S. Chinn whose family had come from Virginia. W.S. traveled west with his family settling in Missouri where he helped to establish the county of Shelby, which named in memory of his Kentucky home of Shelbyville. W.S. became one of the first judges of the county court.


C.R. Chinn was the youngest of ten children. He married in 1853 to Miss Milissa Sodowski of Kentucky. He engaged in the mercantile business in Kirksville, Missouri in 1855 at the age of 22. In 1860, he was elected treasurer of Adair County. In 1877, seeing a favorable market in the newly incorporated town of Webb City, C.R. opened the largest dry goods store in the city. His son W.S. Chinn, born January 16, 1855, was a partner in the clothing firm of Parker, Chinn & Co of Webb City. W.S. married Minnie Manker.


After the death of his wife, Milissa, Charles married Elizabeth Jane Webb Stewart in 1897. (Jane Chinn)





            W.S. Chinn


W.S. Chinn was the son of Charles R. Chinn, Sr.  W.S. was born January 16, 1855. He was a partner in the clothing firm of Parker, Chinn & Company of Webb City. His wife was Minnie Manker daughter of S.L. Manker a pioneer hardware merchant of Webb City.





 Charles R. Chinn, Jr.


Charles Jr. was the son of W.S. and Minnie Chinn and grandson of Charles R. Chinn, Sr. He was born December 29, 1882 in Webb City, Missouri. After graduating from Webb City High School, Charles went to Kemper Military School at Boonville where he graduated in 1901. He then attended the University of Missouri. He then returned to Webb City and entered employment with the Webb City bank as a clerk. At the death of his father, W.S. in 1909, Charles was promoted to succeed his father as cashier. He eventually made it to be President of the Webb City Bank from 1915 until he retired in 1929. He also served as the city treasurer. 


Charles married Myrtle Daugherty on June 10, 1908. Myrtle was the daughter of James Daugherty and granddaughter of W.A. Daugherty. Myrtle was born on the Daugherty farm west edge of Webb City, which is now part of the airport property.


Charles and Myrtle had two children, a daughter, Mary Elizabeth who married Thomas McCrosky, Jr. and a son, William R. Chinn. Charles passed away in 1940 and Myrtle in 1950. They made their home at 204 S. Webb Street.





         The Corls





     William Alfred Corl


Born in Gold Hill South Carolina in 1863, W. A. Corl moved to the new town of Carterville in September of 1883 at the age of 20. He went to work for his brother, G.F.C. Corl in his frontier type general store. Later he moved to Webb City and started his own mercantile business. He operated a bookstore at 10 1/2 Main Street for many years. He was the president of the Inter-state Grocery Company, the Independent Gravel Company and the General Steel Products at the time of his death in 1938. He had previously served on the Board of Directors and the Secretary of the Merchant & Miners Bank of Webb City.


W.A. was married to Nancy E. (Daugherty) Corl, the daughter of James Daugherty and the granddaughter of W.A. Daugherty. 





    George F.C. Corl


Born in North Carolina in 1846, George was 29 when he came to Jasper County in 1875 and opened a general store in the area where Carterville would eventually be located. In March of 1890, he moved to Webb City to open a larger store.


When Webb City was incorporated in 1876, George Corl was right there as one of the leaders helping to organize the town. He became one of the six directors with the other five being: C.C. McBride, A.A. Hulett, W.E. Foster, George Robinson, H.C. Gaston and J.P. Stewart as treasurer. George served as a Justice of the Peace. He was a brother of W.A. Corl.


George died in November of 1930.





   Thomas F. Coyne

                          " Coyne on board that helped develop Chinn hospital "





  Published October 25, 1991

Thomas F. Coyne was born in the state of Wisconsin, and with his Irish parents moved to Webb City in 1876. Thomas' father worked the mines as most immigrants to the area did. Thomas graduated from Webb City schools, then took a course at the Sedalia Business College in 1889. Next, he went to work for the Webb City Bank. He worked as an assistant cashier for nine years. Finally, Thomas decided the only was to make money was to get involved in the mining business not as a miner but as an owner.

Thomas Coyne found out the big money was in the buying and selling on mining property. He had interest in the Mosley Mine, which was sold at a very large profit. After erecting a mill at the Coyne Dermott mine on Center Creek, this property brought a healthy profit to Thomas. He also opened a mine in the Center Valley, which he sold. Thomas was also Superintendent of the Ada Mining Company and the Stevenson Moore mine, which was purchased for $33,000 and later, sold for $60,000.

It seems that Thomas Coyne might have been one of those men who touched something and it turned to gold. Later, Coyne opened the Coyne Lumber Company which was located at 308 East Main (Broadway) Street. He also had a lumberyard in Miami, Oklahoma. His success in business was contributed to the fact that Thomas F. Coyne was a fair man. He sold his goods strictly upon their merit, nothing could be said against the quality or the price of the merchandise at the Coyne Lumber Company.

Until the opening of the Jane Chinn Hospital, there was an organization that was known as the Webb City Hospital Association and the president of this organization was Thomas F. Coyne. This association had $2000, which they donated, to Jane Chinn Hospital for the support of the institution.

Thomas Coyne married Louise Miller from Wisconsin and they had two children, Roy Raymond and Mary Louise. This prominent family of Webb City lived on the southwest corner of Broadway and Ball. 

I'm sure if Thomas F. Coyne would have the opportunity to come back to this era for a visit, he might be surprised at Jane Chinn Hospital as the Webb City Band Boosters host their annual Jane Chinn Spook House. But, then again, maybe a few influential members of our past are visiting the Jane Chinn Spook House and having some fun of their own!

Additional information on Thomas F. Coyne. His parents were both native of the Green Isle of Erin (Ireland). The Coyne Building is located 110 West Broadway. Thomas Coyne's sister Sadie married Amos D. Hatten in 1888.







Frank Forlow:

                    "A name Webb City history buffs should be familiar with"





      Published August 27, 1993

Frank L,. Forlow is not a name that we are familiar with. There isn't a street named in his honor or a building with the Forlow name in the cement or many of our residents with the name of Forlow. But, that name in the late 1800's and the early 1900's would have sparked a conversation of respect and admiration for Frank L. Forlow.
Frank was born in Defiance, Ohio on October 21, 1858. His parents were Amos and Eliza (Myers) Forlow. Amos had been born in Ohio and Eliza came from Pennsylvania. Frank grew up on the family farm and attended school in Defiance. He went on to the Northwestern University and graduated in 1878. He started his career as a schoolteacher, but only as a way of earning money to obtain his true desire to become an attorney.

After teaching for five years, in 1883, Frank gave up teaching and entered a law office in Defiance to complete his preparation for admission to the bar. He came to Joplin, for a short time after he received his law degree, in 1885 and met a fine young lady named Miss Ida May Harmony, daughter of W.S. Harmony on Jackson Avenue in Joplin. They were wed on September 16, 1885. It must have been a whirlwind romance. After the wedding, the couple moved back to Defiance for Frank to get established in his legal career.

In 1894, after nine years with the law firm Thompson, Forlow & Company, Ida and Frank moved to Webb City. Frank had an urge to be with a growing and developing territory and Webb City definitely fit that description. He opened his legal office at 112 North Main and that is where his business remained until the day of his death on March 28, 1927.

Throughout the years, Frank developed a reputation as an honest, upright citizen. He was involved in the community and according to the resolution made a this death, "He performed well all of his duties to his community, state, and government." What a nice way to be remembered. It also stated, "He had a high regard for his profession and conducted himself in a way to gain respect."

His duties to the community included six years on the Board of Education with which he was a voice and an active participant in raising the standard of the schools. He was on the school board during the time of the bond election to build a new school. He was a member of the Elks Lodge (first joining in Ohio). He was President of the National Bank, starting out as just a member of the board before becoming vice-president and moving on to president. He was president at the time of the consolidation of the National Bank and Webb City Bank. 

At the time of his death, Frank had served 10 years as president of the county bar association and was a Democratic member of the state board. Frank has such a good reputation as a prominent attorney that there wasn't enough time to accept all the cases presented to him, but those that he did accept were treated with the utmost respect and courtesy.

Mining was such a strong force in the area that Frank couldn't help but become involved in that line of activity. His efforts were rewarded. Mostly his success was due to the fact that, prudence and foresight governed his investments. Frank Forlow was always the master of the situation with all its powers and opportunities in his control.


So, as you walk or drive past Taylor's Men's and Ladies Wear, remember that there use to be the upstairs office of Frank L.Forlow for 33 years from 1894 to 1927. 


          "Charles H. Craig, doctor, active citizen"



             Published March 21, 1990

Charles Henry Craig and his wife, Lucy, moved to Webb City on August 19, 1890, from Jefferson City. In Jefferson City, Craig had been the assistant prison physician at the state penitentiary for three-and-a-half years.

Born, June 8, 1857, Dr. Craig came from a poor family, the oldest of ten children, so he had to work hard to earn money to make it through medical school. He graduated from the state University of Missouri in Columbia and the Missouri Medical College of St. Louis. He became a Medical Doctor in 1887.

Dr. Craig was active in the community. He was a Master Mason, an Odd Fellow, and a Woodman of the World and a member of the Order of Knights and Ladies of Security. He was a Democrat and a Methodist.

He went on to continue his education by attending the College of Physicians and Surgeons in Chicago in 1907. Dr. Craig became known and recognized as one of the leading physicians and surgeons of southwest Missouri. He was the railroad surgeon for the Kansas City Fort Scott & Memphis and the Frisco railroads.

Both of Dr. Craig's sons were born in Webb City. Charles Maurice was born September 23, 1895 and Joseph Franklin was born October 12, 1901.

Dr. Craig was of Scotch-Irish descent. The first of his line to come to America was his great-great-grandfather, Reverend John Craig. He arrived in America on August 17, 1734. He established two churches in Virginia. Reverend Craig married Kitty Kennerly and had a son, George Russell Craig, Jr., who married Polly McMullen.
George Jr. was the Craig who made the move from Buffalo, Virginia (which is now West Virginia) then to Fulton, Missouri in 1835. That's where most of the Craigs still reside. George and Kitty had a son named Joseph L. Craig who married Mary E. Jones. These two are the parents of Dr. Charles Henry Craig. 

Additional information about the Craig family.  In 1978, Helen and Dick Woodworth purchased the Craig home at 711 West Broadway where Dr. Craig also had his office. The house had been empty for many years and when the Woodworths entered the home, the only thing left inside was a box full of photos of the Craig family. There was one newpaper clipping in the box and it was of Dick Woodworth when he was a boxer. Spooky! Also in the box was Dr. Craig's Medical Certificate.

Dr. Craig married Lucy Wren, of Fulton, Callaway County, Missouri, October 31, 1888. When the Craigs first moved to Webb City, they lived at 122 North Liberty and his office was on North Allen above Wright's Drug Store (Bruner's drug).

   "Frank Dale's mechanical people helped sell many products, memories"






Published July 9, 1992


When you think of inventors, you automatically think of men like Thomas Edison, Eli Whitney, etc. Well, Webb City had a famous inventor. Born in the small community of Prosperity, Frank Dale proved to the world that even small town people could be an asset to the world.


The small town boy moved to the big city of New York to work for the Quaker State Oil Company. While employed as sales manager, Frank put together a mechanical man made out of oil drums and oilcans. He used this mechanical man at a meeting to promote Quaker State Oil. It created such a sensation that Frank Dale decided to experiment a little more. He eventually set up a workshop in the basement of his home in Pleasantville, N.Y. 


In 1938, Frank Dale founded Mechanic Man, Inc. of New York City. Once his creative juices started flowing, there was no stopping this genius of invention. Business slowed down during wartime, because of a lack of material to work with, but as soon as the war was over, full-scale production began again. 


Frank's specialty was to promote trademarks to increase sales. Many brand names were advertised with the help of Frank's mechanical dolls. There was a child in pajamas carrying a candle advertising it was time to "Re-Tire with Fisk tires". A mechanical butler would smile and offer some Ballantine's Ale to passersby. A high-stepping majorette promoted Chesterfield cigarettes; a young girl would kick a spark plug (Auto-Lite) into action. But the most famous of all was the lifelike baby lying in the basket with arms and legs waving. This baby was mostly used to advertise baby clothing, medical supplies, and diapers. Many merchants and production companies were seeking help from Frank Dale, the Mechanical Man, Inc.


Frank had an even better idea, and he contacted Mae West and signed a contract for worldwide use of her "face", figure, and costumes" for advertising. The cost of the first Mae West mechanical figure was $3,500. The doll looked just like Mae West and the latex skin was remarkably lifelike. Although plans were to create many of the Mae West dolls, only two were actually produced. One is in Gabe's Doll museum in Tombstone, Arizona and the other just recently sold at an auction in Scottsdale, Arizona.


Gabe's Doll museum is home to many of Frank Dale's famous dolls. They stand as a memorial to the famous man who started a new enterprise that was a benefit to many advertising companies. Before Frank Dale, mechanical mannequins were so complex and expensive, that most merchants couldn't afford them. Frank Dale not only was able to make them more affordable; he even worked out a leasing operation so that even the small businessman could have special displays to promote sales. 


If we were to commemorate the famous inventor from our community, we would have to memorialize: his birth place in Prosperity; his home in Pleasantville, N.Y.; his Webb City residence for many years, 510 North Webb Street; and the building on the Northwest corner of Daugherty and Tom Streets where he had his office. There are probably more places that haven't been mentioned, but we should be proud to have such an important man associated with our history.


A special thanks to Bob Hunter for the information on Frank Dale and his many accomplishments. And if you are heading west on vacation, don't forget to stop by Gabe's Doll Museum and let them know...you are from Frank Dale's hometown.




                    The Daughertys





       W.A. Daugherty

                  "These are the men Daugherty Streets were named after"





Published September 17, 1993

William Armstrong Daugherty was born August 19, 1829 in McMinn County, Tennessee. In 1847, he married Nancy (Nina) Riggs, who was born in 1827 in McMinn County, Tennessee. W.A. was a farmer and cattleman. Trying to take care of his wife and seven children convinced W.A.  to move to greener pastures. They moved to Washington County, Missouri in 1864 when W.A. was 35 years old. They then moved on to Austin, Texas in 1867 where Nancy passed away in July of that year. With the hardship of raising a family alone, W.A. moved to Jasper County in October of 1867. He resumed his profession of farming and stock operations. 

In 1870, W.A. purchased 260 acres of land just west of what would later become Webb City. He soon purchased 320 acres east of Webb City. His farm and mines began to pay off and he eventually owned 4000 acres of mining and agricultural land in Jasper County. The property east of Webb City became the city of Carterville (of which W.A. is one of the founders along with his son, James).

Life had been a difficult struggle for W.A. as he tried to raise his family. Even though he possessed some land there was not always necessary funds to take care of the needs of the family. But perseverance paid off, and he began to reap the rewards of his years of hard labor. 

The oldest of his children was a son named James Alexander Daugherty, born August 30, 1847, in McMinn County, Tennessee. James was a levelheaded young man with ideas and knowledge that helped his father to achieve the rewards he so greatly deserved. 

In 1874, William A. Daugherty wandered over to his neighbor's farm, John C. Webb's, and observed the mining endeavors of Webb and a partner, Murrell.  Seeing Murrell's frustration over the mine filling with water continuously, Daugherty offered to buy Murrel out for the hefty sum of $25. Murrell jumped at the opportunity. Webb leased the land to Daugherty and Grant Ashcraft, which was the beginning of the Center Creek Mining Company.

W.A. Daugherty and his son James formed a partnership with C.C. Allen, W.M. McMillin, and T.N. Davey to form the company known as Carterville Mining and Smelting Company. This company opened the North and South Carterville Mines, which proved to be the richest in the Webb City and Carterville districts.




              James A. Daugherty


          "These are the men Daugherty streets were named after"





Published, September 17, 1993

James A. Daugherty was assisting his father in cultivating the farmland east of Webb City, when they discovered the farmland was loaded with ores and minerals. 

James married Susanna Freeman of Ashley, Illinois on December 30, 1867. They had eight children. 1. Nancy Elizabeth Daugherty, who married W.A. Corl with the W.C. Merchantile Company, 2. William Alva Daugherty, a mining superintendent, 3. Charles Whitworth Daugherty with the First National Bank of Webb City, 4. Dora May Daugherty , 5. Lee A. Daugherty, 6. J. Arthur Daugherty, 7. Myrtle Daugherty who married C.R. Chinn,Jr., 

8. Lula Alice Daugherty. Their mother, Susanna died December 29, 1908 and James married Mrs. M.E. (Boone) Parker on April 20, 1910.

James was a gentleman of great ability. He could operate a business of great magnitude with such ease. He became quite well known for his work with mining companies. The mines belonged to his father, but James was the reason the mines were successful. He followed in his father's footsteps to become the president of the National Bank of Carterville and vice-president of the Interurban Ice Company of Carterville.

Being an advocate of education, James was generous in his donations to the institution of learning, especially the Webb City College. William A. Daugherty was a man of eminent ability and he passed this great attribute on to his son James. Under his instruction, James learned the mining industry, but James went one step further and soaked in all he could learn about the mining business from anyone willing to teach him. James became a universally respected and admired citizen. He was known for his honesty, great business ability and high character. 

They were two great forefathers to be proud of and each one can be remembered each as we see their name on the street signs in Webb City and Carterville. They deserve to be recognized for their many contributions of time and energy to the growth and development of our area.

Additional information about James A. Daugherty: He served as an associate judge of the western district of Jasper County for two terms, as a member of the legislature one term, and as school director of his school district for a period of twenty years or longer. In November 1910, he was elected to the national House of Representatives from the Fifteenth congressional district.




              Louise J. Daugherty


                 "Growing up in the town your dad founded"




                 Published April 18, 1997

One of the early pioneers to our area was Edward M. Burch. He came here from Virginia and was proud to say he heralded from stanch English stock. Being active in mining, it's no wonder that Edward should come in contact with one of the most eligible young ladies in the district, Miss Louise J. Daugherty, daughter of W.A. Daugherty. Daugherty was the smart businessman who went into partnership with John C. Webb when the first chunk of lead was unearthed on Webb 's land. Then they added Grant Ashcraft to that great venture in mining. 

Edward and Louise settled in Carterville, the town that Louise's father had founded. Edward continued his interest in mining and showed an expertise in farming. To this union, four children were born, but I only have information on three: W.C. Burch, Earl A. Burch and Annie L. Burch Gass.
Annie L. Burch married Frank L. Gass and they lived a very comfortable life. Frank came to this area from Indiana in 1900 at the age of 28, but he was only here for a short stay. He left to continue his education, receiving his law degree at the University of Indiana. He must have liked what he saw while visiting here, because he returned in 1910 and set up his law office in Carterville. He became Cartervilles city attorney from 1916 - 1924 and became probate judge in 1922 and continued in that capacity until his death 12 years later in 1934 at the age of 61. 

Frank and Annie lived at 329 East Main in Carterville. Annie continued to live there after Frank's death and later her brother Earl came to live with her.

Earl A. Burch was born in 1873. He was a mine operator as his father had been and he also married into a strong mining family. In 1898, at the age of 25, Earl married Bernice Ashcraft, daughter of Grant Ashcraft. Earl dealt in insurance and real estate but his heart was in mining. Along with his father-in-law, he was an associate with Ashcraft and Burch in association with Standard Lead & Zinc in Prosperity.

Earl's wife, Bernice, seems to have been a very strong willed lady. She was a bookkeeper at the First National Bank of Carterville and known as a lady of knowledge and quite a social leader.

I don't know if the marriage was a success or not because Earl moved in with his sister Annie and passed away at Annie's house in 1931 at the age of 51.

Now the oldest son of Edward Burch was William C. Burch. He seems to have been the child with the head on his shoulders. Born in 1872, in Carterville, William was only nine years old when his father passed away. Leaning on his grandfather for support, William became a bookkeeper in the mining industry for about 2 years, when he decided to work for his grandfather's bank instead. Starting our as a clerk in the First National Bank of Carterville, William worked his way up to assistant cashier and eventually moved on to become vice president of the Webb City Bank and on up to be President. That's quite a climb up the ladder. He also started a real estate and insurance office located at 124 N. Webb.

William married in 1907 at the age of 35 to Miss Jessie Ethel Litteral. Jessie's father was Jacob Litteral, a farmer and miner. He made sure that his daughter was well educated. She had attended Central College in Lexington, Kentucky and Forest Park University in St. Louis. 

William and Jessie settled in a beautiful house in Carterville located at 410 East Main (The home is still standing and has been well preserved. It was recently the home of Steve Gannaway, but they sold it last month). The Burches did a lot of entertaining in their home and it was the location of their daughter's wedding. Halycon Anne Burch was married in 1932 to Henry Hook Harris and the newspaper account of the wedding suggests this was the wedding of the century. With four bridesmaids, four groomsmen, and the works. The yard and home were overflowing with the 150 guests who attended.

Jessie and William also had two other children, Mary Louise Burch who married William Wilson Waggoner and W.C. Burch, Jr. who married Mary Margaret Davis.
In the History of Jasper County, it states that "William C. Burch was one of the best known and enterprising citizens of Carterville. Mr. Burch's individuality and energy have left a permanent impression for welfare and upbuilding of the town."

Some may say that having a well known grandfather like W.A. Daugherty, the founder of the town you grew up in might have influenced the progress one makes in life, but I think William succeeded on his own, because personality makes a major impact in life also. Just because you are related to someone rich or famous doesn't mean people have to like you, but the people of Carterville respected William. And William did the Burch name proud.

                       
       "Dermott sought the American dream"





Published September 30, 1994


It was the dream of just about every Irishman to go to America. Fantastic stories circulated by letters told of the riches to be found, and some even contained a little Irish blarney about the streets lined with gold. Each letter would make one more Irish boy dream of a trip to America.


James Dermott was one such lad who was determined to go to the land of opportunity. As he made preparations, he soon found that he wouldn't be traveling alone. He was taking his younger brother with him. His parents knew that life would be better for the young lad with his older brother. So, at the age of seven, young John Dermott headed to America with his brother James.


In 1889, James and John made their way to Webb City. John, who was born with a determination to make a success of anything he did, became a mining operator for such companies as Margerium, Pleasant Valley and Oronogo Circle. 


Not wanting to put all of his apples in one basket, John expanded his interests to include real estate and many other businesses. In 1900, John built an impressive building at the northwest corner of Allen (Main) and First streets. It even featured his name on the front of the building. He also built another building on Allen (Main) that was known as the Zinc Ore Bulding, which is the Webb City Sentinel building today.


In 1907, John Dermott laid out city plots in an addition to the city of Webb City that also bears the name Dermott. There was also a Dermott Street located west of Madison where 4th Street is now located. 


John had one child, a daughter, named Belle. Belle Dermott married Thomas J. Roney, a state representative.


John kept his business office in the Zinc Ore Building in room one and his home was located at 110 North Ball Street.


John's brother James made his home in Lamar, but they were always close as brothers. In 1912, at the age of 73, John passed away. His name however, will live on in the city plots and in the two buildings that still stand on Main Street of Webb City.





     The Fullmers

                    "Precious, fond memories of simpler time and folks"





Published September 20, 1991


Around the late 1800's, many families migrated to this area. Daniel and Caroline Fullmer moved to the Prairie Hill district in Jasper County in about 1877. It was about the same time that Milton and Nancy Jane Newby decided to make the journey to Jasper County and settle near Carl Junction.

Just a few short years later, Katie Jane Fullmer, daughter of Daniel and Caroline, married John Cyrus Newby, son of Milton and Nancy on October 5, 1890.


Katie and John lived on a farm and raised 12 children. The children remembered that there was never a dull moment in their large happy family. They didn't have a lot of luxuries, but they were never hungry or without shelter.


Those children were: Ruth Jackle, Lucy Yearwood, Gladys Frazier, Marion Newby, Daniel Newby, Grace Klein, John Cyrus Newby Jr., Myrl Newby, Alvin Newby, Helen Kelley, Lois Lammlein, and George Newby.


Here's a memory shared by one of the grandchildren of Milton and Nancy Newby. 


At the end of the day, after chores are done, we take the spring wagon and ride the one mile to Grandma's. The mile seems extra long because the horse has worked all day and Daddy won't push it faster than a walk.


As we near the big gate at the road, the children hop off the wagon to open the wooden gate. Mama and Papa drive on up the lane and we children race to see who can get to the house first.


Grandma and Grandpa have just finished milking and you can hear the deLaval cream separator working in the smokehouse. The cellar is just off the smokehouse and the dirt walls are lined with rows of canning jars filled with blackberries, jams, jellies, beets, yellow tomato preserves, and lots of other goodies. Strings of last year's red peppers and dipper gourds hang on the walls.


Several tabby cats are waiting patiently to have their wooden bowls filled with milk. Grandma draws up a fresh bucket of water from the well, we all take a drink with the dipper made from the gourds. In another bucket, Grandma puts a jar of milk along with some freshly molded butter and lowers it back into the well. Everything keeps fresh and cool down in the well.


As it begins to get dark, the mosquitoes chase us all indoors. Grandma lights the kerosene lamp, on the kitchen table. The table is already set for breakfast with the plates turned upside down. The plates remain upside down until after Grandpa blesses the food.


The living room floor is covered with a rag carpet. Grandma has just finished cleaning the carpet, swept up all the old straw and put fresh straw underneath.


Back in the kitchen, everything feels so homey. There in the corner is the wood and coal cook stove. The stove is polished nice and shiny black. In the cupboard drawer, Grandma keeps her box of soda cards (some have pictures of dogs). On Sundays, sometimes, Grandma lets the children play with the cards. She also has some paper dolls and paper furniture that she got from  Arbuckle Coffee. And she has so many delightful trinkets that she got out of boxes of Victor Toy Oats.


As Grandma and Mama talked about how many eggs their hens laid, Grandpa and Papa talk about their crops. And a quiet evening draws to an end. Grandma gives the children a half-gallon syrup bucket filled with fresh milk to take home with them and they can't wait to get home to drink that cool fresh milk.


What a pleasant memory. Everything seemed so calm and simple. No stress of the fast-paced life of modern days.





The Dickson Family

                             "Faithful wife followed husband to New Mexico"





Published November 8, 1991


In the early morning light, you could hear the sound of milk truck moving along from house to house in Webb City. The jingle of glass bottles broke the morning silence. The stray cats in the neighborhood followed along, hoping to be close by in case some milk should spill.


As Josiah Dickson made his deliveries, his mind would wander back to the day he married his lovely bride, Elmira Louisa Obert Dickson. She had looked so beautiful in her lacey wedding dress, and he was proud to share his name with her. Together they had produced a family of nine children (including two sets of twins). Elmira was always ready to follow Josiah in his many whims, even when it took them all the way to New Mexico. That had been in 1913, and their fifth and sixth children (the first set of twins) had been born in the new territory they were visiting.


The trip back from New Mexico was rather tedious, with the small twins, a 2-year old and a 4-year old. The two oldest boys, ages 9 and 11, helped with the covered wagon. That's the kind of trip that determines what pioneers were really made of. 


Once back in good old Jasper County, Elmira and Josiah decided this was the place to stay. They had married in Carthage in 1901, and started their family in that beautiful city. The last of their three children were born in Carterville and then they moved to Webb City. With such a large family, the perfect place to raise them just happened to be the old W.A. Daugherty home on what is now Colonial Road.


Raising a large family was a tough job, but it became even tougher for Elmira when Josiah passed away in 1924 at the age of 48. The youngest girls, (twins) were only 3 years old. Elmira continued to work the farm with the help of her oldest boys 22 year old Bill and 20 year old Leo. Once again, she showed the stamina that was necessary for early pioneers.


The nine children of Josiah and Elmira were William, Frank Leo, Fern Elizabeth, Josiah Cecil, Marion Lee, Mabel May, Ray C, Helen Jeanette and Hazel Annette. Each of these children grew up with great respect for their parents who suffered great hardships to raise their beautiful family.


Reverand William Dickson (1797-1884), Josiah's grandfather, had the family bible, which he passed down to his son, who passed it along to his youngest daughter and after she passed away, the bible couldn't be located. Well, just recently, a young man in Oklahoma found the bible in a bookstore in Oklahoma City and he purchased it, thinking some family would be searching for it. He advertised it in a genealogy magazine, but his ad went unanswered.  A year later, a member of the family was going through old issues of the magazine and found the ad. Taking a chance that he still had the bible, a phone call was made and the bible was finally returned to the Dickson family. That prized possession won't get lost from the family again!  


                 "You could find what you want at Geiger's"





Published September 26, 1997

John and Rachel Yergey Geiger worked hard every day on their little farm in Pottsville, Pennsylvania. John came from a farming family having been born in Pennsylvania in 1814, and his lovely wife came from a farming family near Pennsylvania's Dutch colony.

Farming was not an easy profession, and even though it was passed down from generation to generation, there were some that just didn't "cotton to it". One of those was John and Rachel's son, George W. Geiger. George was born January 10, 1864, on the Geiger farm. He didn't take too well to school and his parents needed his help on the farm, so he left school at an early age to assist the family.

His mother died in 1877, when George was only 13 years old. Life on the farm changed after his mother was gone, but George was only looking for an excuse to leave a lifestyle in which he didn't feel comfortable. So, at the age of 16, he headed out into the world to learn a trade. He didn't go far at first, apprenticing himself to C.O. Swinhart in Pottsville as a tinner. He was a good student and learned quickly. He finished his apprenticeship in Mahoney City, Pennsylvania and continued to work there for one year, and then his journeys began.

George traveled from one place to another, lighting in different towns only long enough to get a job, save a little money and then venture on to the next chapter in his life. For 16 years, George traveled from the Atlantic to the Pacific and from Canada to Mexico. He hit all four corners of the United States. Exciting, as his life seemed, George began to have a desire to settle down and have a family. So, in August of 1897, at the age of 33, George arrived in Webb City. He worked for Harrison & Lloyd and within a year, he was married to Julia McCool. George was the father to two children, Anna and Lee.

George went to work for A.V. Allen in Joplin as a tinner and when the tin line was slack, he took up employment in the mines earning $1.25 a day. He worked hard to make extra money which he saved up with a goal in mind. Finally, in 1904, he had saved enough to fulfill his dream and he purchased his own tin shop.

He soon discovered there wasn't enough business in tinware alone to do more than barely gain a living, so he added furniture and hardware to his stock. His hardware became one of the best in the area. His store was located at 109 S. Main (where Cake & Bake is located today, only it was a different building at the time).

After the death of his wife, Julia in 1912, George remarried, and he and his new wife Mary lived at 102 S. Tom Street just around the corner from the store. Because of his extensive traveling as a young man, George had many stories to share about his journeys. Some of his friends began to bore of his stories, so he learned to keep the stories short and sweet to keep his audience. He quoted an old wheelwright who said, "the longer the spoke the bigger the tire".

Along with the hardware, new and used furniture, and tin work, George also sold and repaired stoves. His motto was, "You can find what you want at Geiger's".

Well, in 1926, George was hard at work transferring part of a furnace from Webster School to Eugene Field School. He was riding down Fourth Street on the back of a truck holding the furnace in place. He lost his balance and fell, striking his head on the pavement. At least, he died doing the work that he loved. After 16 years of searching for his niche in life, he had spent 22 years in the hardware business and 29 years in a little town called Webb City. His reputation of being an honest man to do business with shows that he loved his work and he loved the people of his town. At the age of 62, George left his mark in the world.





        The Gretz Family

                                        "Appreciating the men of the mines"

                                                  Published September 23, 1994

Fred Gretz was born in Germany in 1855 at a time in German history when the country seemed to be constantly at battle. There were many uprises. At a young age, Fred made the journey to the New World, the United States of America where hopes and dreams were meant to come true. Every one knew you could find happiness if you could just get to America.

Landing in New York, Fred found that it was such a busy place, a new immigrant could easily get lost in the shuffle. Surprisingly, most immigrants that were eager to leave their own countries always seemed to gather together and make small communities of their own nationalities. It was just such a community that Fred met a lovely young German named Laura who had come to America with her parents.

After Fred and Laura had been married awhile, Fred heard about money being made in a small community in Missouri. So the small family loaded up and made the long journey by wagon to Webb City, Missouri, in 1884. Laura's mother and father were saddened to see their daughter leave, knowing they would probably never see her again. She was heading into the unknown just as they had done by heading to America.

The young Gretz family joined the many others who were waiting in line for a chance at employment in the mines. The city of Webb City was growing at such a fast pace that there was a shortage of housing. Many families were housed in tents on the edge of town. Food was not always available but Fred was on of those determined young men who always managed to find the right path to follow.

After a short mining career, Fred found himself in a new line of work, which seemed to suit him fine. Fred became an employee of the Southwest Missouri Railroad Company, which was a wonderful job for such a talented young man. Fred was superintendent of the undermining. He was in charge of keeping the right of way clear and unthreatened. Fred held this job with the Southwest Railroad Company for 25 years before retiring. 

The Gretz home was located at 333 S. Ball and the Gretz's had six beautiful children. Family was an important commodity in this land. There was Charles Gretz who worked the mines. He worked the sludge table. Charles was married to Gertrude and they had three sons, Carl, Paul, and Walter and two daughters, Lora Rose and Ruth Oldham. Carl's sweet wife, who is 84, said the Gretz family was just good common folk who worked hard for their money.

There were two other sons in the Fred Gretz family, Harry and Fred, Jr.  Fred Jr. worked in the mines until he was 47 and health reasons forced him to leave. He had Bright's disease.

Now, there were three girls born to Fred and Laura. Minnie May Gretz married Albert Michie (more on that family in the future). Albert was Postmaster in Webb City for awhile. Lena Gretz became Lena Sanderson and Mary gave up bookkeeping to become Mrs, Mary Fehrenberg.

Of this hardworking family, the only ones left in this area are Mrs.Carl Gretz and her son Melvin and his family. But the Gretz family was part of the backbone that made Webb City the community it is. Too often, we focus on mining tycoons who had the money to back the mines, but those mines wouldn't have made any money without the miners who gave more than their time in the mines. Many gave their health and lives.





        William E. Hall

As you may recall from previous articles, I'm always trying to figure out just how the different streets received their names.  Well, I think I may have figured out who received the honor of having Hall Street carry their name!


William E. Hall, was a name known to many in Jasper County.  His parents, Winston and Jane Robertson Hall were married not too long after their families moved to Jasper County.  Both families were well known in North Carolina.  Arriving to this area in 1838 and 1840, it wasn't long before the young couple was married.


Winston and Jane settled in a very comfortable hand hewed log cabin upon a tract of unimproved land.  Even though the area was highly populated with Indians, the young couple had a fairly uneventful life other than the normal hardships and trials of frontier life.  They eventually accumulated 140 acres and lived there until Winston's death in 1863.


Their son, William E. Hall, born in 1845, grew up on the land his parents had cultivated and made into an impressive farm.  He worked the farm during the summer and attended school in the winter.  When his father passed away, William was 18 years of age and the oldest, therefore he took upon himself the responsibility of caring for the farm.  This role brought out his best and showed his strength of character.


Not long after taking on this great responsibility, William took on the challenge and cast his lot with the Confederate Army.  He served under General Shelby, General Standwaite and later General Cooper.


Receiving his honorable discharge at the end of the Civil War in 1865, William joined his mother who was then living in Texas.  He made a short trip back to Jasper County and married Miss Margaret C. Glasscox and they returned to Texas to take care of Jane Hall.  Jane passed away in 1869 and a year later, William's wife, Margaret died.  William immediately returned to the familiar territory he called home... Jasper County.


Having found a favorable career in stock industry, William would buy cattle in Texas and drive them back to Jasper County.  A very profitable enterprise for a young man of 25.


Having finally settled down near what would soon become Webb City, William visited often with John C. Webb, a farmer whose family had been in the area as long as the Hall family.


In May of 1871, William E. Hall married Martha E. Webb, daughter of John C. Webb.  They lived on a farm that was next to the Webb farm in Mineral township.  In 1874, William was elected to the office of township assessor, then in 1878, two years after the establishment of Webb City in 1876; William was elected to the office of county collector.  Finding the commute to be too much of a hardship, William and Margaret moved to Carthage to be closer to the courthouse.  At the end of his term, William took up an interest in farming and mining.  In 1883 they moved to their 800 acre farm and lived there until 1889 at which time they moved back to Carthage although William still managed his farm... a farm that was well stocked with cattle and horses.  Many of the states finest trotters and saddle horses came from the farm of William E. Hall.


In 1894, Jasper County established the United Confederate Veterans Camp.  Since W.E. Hall was one of the first to enlist in the regiment that the county sent to the front, it was only right that William hold the honor of being elected as treasurer and he held that position until his death in 1907. 


Being the son-in-law of the founder of Webb City, and owning land close to the Webb farm, leaves no doubt in my mind that Hall Street is named after William E. Hall.

And what a distinguished gentleman he was!

                                            

A.D. Hatten

                                                             Published May 11, 2001

This time of year as you drive around town, lovely irises are in full bloom, with such a variety of colors.  They seem to stand so tall and proud.  I, myself, can't think of irises without thinking of A.D. Hatten.  


Amos Davis Hatten built a lovely home, "out in the country" which is now know as the "Hatten Home" located on a square block bounded by Ball, Sixth, Roane and Seventh streets.  Being, "out in the country", Hatten had planted an orchard behind his home, but the most spectacular plantings were his irises on the north side (Sixth street) of the house.  Hatten was well known for his wonderful display of color.  He was even known to spend as much as $30 for a start of an iris that he didn't have in his garden.  I don't know if his garden was known world wide, but he was known nationally.  These beautiful flowers of varied colors were also referred to as "flags", which brings us to one of the old tales as to how Webb City became the "City of Flags".  


Each year, when the irises (flags) were in full bloom, Hatten would have a public viewing, which allowed anyone in town the opportunity to walk through the Hatten flower garden.  At the end of the season, Hatten would thin out his plants and he would advertise in the paper that he was giving away starts.  There would be a truckload and folks could come by and help themselves.  What a generous man!


After doing this for several years, many homes around Webb City had the beautiful plants in the yard.  During the blooming season, you could drive all over Webb City and see the most spectacular view as flowers were blooming in almost every yard.  Hence the name, "Webb City, City of Flags".  (Now there is another version to how W.C. got the name and I will have that story in June around Flag Day.)


A.D. Hatten was a well thought of gentleman, and he is known for more than just his irises, but during this time of the year, it is only right, that we pay tribute to the man who spread his love of irises all over the area.  




              Our Hero: A.D. Hatten





        Published June18, 1993

In the Wild West Days, every town had its heroes. There were such figures as Wild Bill Hickock, Wyatt Earp, Bat Masterson, etc. Well, Webb City had its heroes also. And one of those was Amos D. Hatten (or Uncle Pete as he was affectionately called.)

Amos D. Hatten was born September 7, 1859 in Wayne County, West Virginia to Milo and Emmeline Newman Hatten. Both of Hatten'sparents came from old West Virginia families. They were content to stay on the family farm. In fact, Milo was born, lived and died on the same farm. Unlike his dad, Amos had the spirit of adventure.

When Hatten was 19 years of age, he made his way to Nevada, Missouri. He found a job working on a farm and when the summer was over, he made his way to the mining district around Webb City. No jobs were available, but that didn't stop Hatten from checking out the territory and learning everything he could about the district and the mining business. He went on to Colorado, and after three years, decided that Jasper County is where he wanted to establish his residency.

In partnership with his Uncle Alvin, Hatten began his career in the mining business. Throughout the years, he organized several mining companies, a real estate and loan company, insurance company, and many other businesses. If Amos D. Hatten was involved in a business proposition, you could be assured that it was an upright and honest business. He didn't make his fortune by taking advantage of the out-of-luck businessman or miner. Just the opposite...Hatten usually helped out those who were down on their luck. One such time was when the Mineral Belt Bank went defunct. Hatten made a large deposit in the Webb City Bank, and each and every depositor of the Mineral Belt Bank was able to obtain his or her money through the Webb City Bank. Hatten had deposited well over $67,000 just to cover the deposits. He also covered any outstanding debt the bank had.

On November 8, 1888, Amos D. Hatten married Sadie C. Coyne, daughter of Patrick Coyne and sister of Tom Coyne (one of Hatten's business partners.) Amos and Sadie were both well thought of in the community. Never a sour word was said of either one.

Hatten's love for Webb City was obvious, especially with his donations to the city. Hatten donated the land where the old football field was located (where the high school is now.) Mr. Hatten felt that if he cut up the land into building lots, the school children would be deprived of the area where they loved to play, so he donated it to be used for football and baseball, with the only stipulation that it be known as "Hatten Athletic Field". That was January 13, 1930.

Mr. and Mrs. Hatten also deeded the city some land on the west side of the city to be used as a park. Mike Evans, a mine operator owned the area, and he cooperated with Mr. Hatten to obtain a clear title for the city. The land was originally the campus and grounds of the Baptist College. Plans were immediately formed to use the basement of the college for the Webb City Public Swimming Pool. There would also be four tennis courts, a croquet ground, playground, picnic area with camp stoves, and a bathhouse. The land was deeded on May 1, 1933 and the work on the park began May 2, 1933 to be completed by June 15, 1933. That was fast work (not like construction today!)

Almost everyone knows of the Hatten house that sets in the middle of a block between Ball and Roane streets. When Hatten started building his home, he decided he wanted to live in the country, so he built the Hatten House. Needless to say, it is no longer considered the country. It cost $5,000 to build the mansion. ***

Hatten was very fond of irises. Rumor has it that is how Webb City became known as the "City of Flags". Hatten had so many irises that people came from miles around just to look at his yard when the irises were in bloom. Hatten was known to have spent as much as $30 for some of his iris starts. Whenever he thinned his plants out, it would be advertised in the paper and truckloads of iris starts would be given away to the citizens. Soon, the city was full of beautiful irises (or flags as they were commonly called.)

This man did so much for Webb City that many more articles could be written about him. He left a legacy to Webb City that cannot be matched. The newspapers were always reporting little tidbits of information on this wonderful man who had the "Midas Touch". Not only did everything he touch turn to gold, but everything he touched brought happiness to those around him. Webb City was lucky that he chose this city to call his home.

A special thanks to the relatives of A.D. Hatten, who wrote to remind us of what a wonderful forefather we were letting slip from our memories. You have someone to be very proud of and we are proud of him also.

***A former neighbor of Amos Hatten came into the Sentinel to state that the reported construction price for the Amos D. Hatten house was wrong. He said it cost $25,000 - not $5,000. Jeanne isn't one to area, but says she got the figure from a newspaper story in A.D. Hatten's personal scrapbook. Both Jeanne and the former neighbor say the cost figures they stand by were consistent with the cost of similar houses constructed in the same era.




    Hitners (John, Frank, Robert)

                     "Department store owner was promoter of Webb City"





  Published May 31, 1991

Each depot began to look the same to Frank Ewing Hitner, as he made his way across the country. He would stop at each little community, check into a hotel and show his line of silk and lace to merchants. He was a manufacturer representative for an import company out of New York.

Hitner had been born in Taylorsville, Kentucky on December 5, 1874, to John K. Hitner and Phoebe Broderick Hitner. (Phoebe's mother was married to the Governor of Kentucky).

After graduating from Westminster College in Fulton, Hitner began his career with the import company. Even though the long dusty trips were monotonous, Frank still managed to have a good time occasionally. On one scheduled trip to Carthage, a department store owner, Mr. Rose, introduced Frank to a lovely young lady at a dance. There was no question in Frank's mind that he had found the woman of his dreams, Dorothy Moore.

After a short move to St. Louis, where they enjoyed the pleasures of the 1904 World's Fair and exposition, Frank and his lovely wife moved to Carthage to be near family.

A couple of years later, the opportunity of a lifetime came into view. Frank Hitner and Frank Payne, as partners, bought the Humphrey's Mercantile of Webb City. Humphrey's was already established as a well-known department store. It employed approximately 35 to 40 employees and the building took up half a city block.

Business continued to be good for Hitner and Payne until the end of the mining era. This disaster prompted Frank Payne to tell Hitner he wanted out. Hitner bought out Payne and continued the business. Payne went on to California with J.C. Penney and ultimately died a millionaire.

Meanwhile, back at Humphrey's, Frank was striving to make it a success. Humphrey's had everything imaginable. A quote from the Daily Sentinel stated, "We will endeavor to make Humphrey's store such an institution that no one will need to go out of the city or send out of the city to buy a single article."

Frank Hitner was an asset to the community. He would go out of his to promote Webb City. Whatever he did for the store, he did for Webb City. Frank was president of the Chamber of Commerce, Director of the YMCA, an officer in the Jasper County Fruit Growers Association and an elder in the First Presbyterian Church.

An active man, Frank still found time to spend with his family. Many an outing was made to Lakeside Park. Baseball was his favorite pastime. He was a lefthander and often would pitch for both teams and umpire at the same time. A valuable player!

At a time in Frank's life, when he should have been resting for his health, his main concern was still for the welfare of Webb City and his department store. Frank passed away on January 29, 1933, of what was known as "Flu Heart." Webb City lost a great deal.

A resolution written by W.W. Wampler and J.D. Baldridge states: "The community has lost a valued citizen, one whose services were ever at call of any movement for the betterment of the community. To know him was to love him."

Frank's son, Robert, shared these special memories with us. 

"Civil War soldier was later father of W.C. businessman"




               Published October 11, 1991

On March 14, 1862, a young man, 23 years of age, answered the call to arms to support the grand and glorious state of Virginia. John K. Hitner was convinced of the righteousness of Virginia's cause.

The General Recruiting Officer paid John $50 "in full bounty for enlistment for the War." John's personal friend and trusted leader was Stonewall Jackson and it seemed only fittin' that his commanding officer should be Jackson himself. Mrs. Jackson reportedly made John's uniform for him.

John was assigned to the First Brigade of the Rockbridge Artillery. It was reported that the Commander of the Army of Northern Virginia (and Stonewall Jackson's leader) was none other that General Robert E. Lee Jr. (This information came from Henry Kyd Douglas' book, "I rode with Stonewall.")

It seems that John K. Hitner had joined Stonewalls First Brigade just in time to get involved in a lot of action. He took part in 16 pitched battles of the Shenandoah Valley campaign receiving injuries several times with the most serious injury at Antietam. The Battle of Antietam was one of the fiercest battles of the Civil War. There were more casualties than any other one day in American History (12, 410 Union and 10, 318 Confederate soldiers were killed or wounded).

John continued on in his military service. He was engaged in battle at the 2nd Battle of Fredricksburg, Gettysburg and Spottsylvania Court House. He sustained many injuries, being listed at hospitals in Richmond, Lynchburg, and Charlottesville. While in Richmond, he was placed in the dreaded "Dead Room" from which very few survived. Twenty men died around him the first night. That was when John K. Hitner made his pact with the Lord. He told Jesus Christ that if he got out of there alive, he would preach for the rest of his days.

One day, during the war, John and Stonewall Jackson were fortified in the woods, waiting for the Union attack. John asked the General if he didn't think a word of prayer was in order. Both were very religious and the General agreed. When John stood up to pray, General Stonewall Jackson told him to "get down or he'd get his head shot off." John informed the General that Presbyterians stand to pray. Stonewall was also Presbyterian. I don't know which one won that stand off.

Walking with a limp, John left military service on April 11, 1865 and began his ministry for the Lord. Many times, he made the rounds of eight to twelve churches, preaching three to five times on a Sunday and walking three to five miles to each of the pulpits.

Reverand John K. Hitner married Phoebe Cox Broderick (daughter of the Governor of Kentucky) on June 5, 1873. They had three sons and one daughter. One of those sons was Frank Ewing Hitner, well-known businessman of Webb City.

On a moderate stone marker in a little Confederate sector of the Spring Hill Cemetery in Huntington, West Virginia, reads this epitaph:

Reverend John K. Hitner, 1839-1927

A loyal soldier of Stonewall Jackson

A faithful follower of Jesus Christ

The path of righteousness is as the Shining Light

That shineth more and more unto the Perfect Day

Proverbs 4:18

A special thanks to Robert M. Hitner for sharing the glorious story of his grandfather with us. He's one more Civil War hero who wasn't a Webb City resident, but greatly contributed to our history in a round about way.

                                      "Those were the days"




                Published March 11, 1994

A special thanks goes out to Robert Hitner of Florida for sharing some of his special memories of Webb City with us. In Robert's words...

"In the early 1900's, Webb City was indeed a rough mining town. Business houses lined both sides of Allen (Main) Street. I was always instructed to walk down the west side of the street because the east side was composed of bars, pool halls, movie houses, and pawn shops. It still seems strange after all these years for me to walk down the east side of Main Street.

My father's store, Humphrey's Mercantile, was north of the Bradbury Bishop Drug Store, which was on the northeast corner of Daugherty and Main. Roy Teel's Drug Store was on the northwest corner (where Bruner's Pharmacy is located). Roy bought my production of lead soldiers, which he used as premium giveaways with his ice cream sodas.

The Post Office was at the corner of Liberty and Daugherty, and Mr. Thomas, my barber, was across the street next to the movie house. 'Runt' Magill's newsstand was at the corner of Webb and Daugherty. Everyday, as I picked up the mail for the Webb City Bank, I would stop and Runt and I would flip a coin for a Coca-Cola."

While working for the Webb City Bank, Robert was assistant cashier, treasurer of the School board, and President of the Junior Chamber of Commerce. One of his duties for the bank was to go over to Joplin to the Conqueror First National Bank for currency. He said a garage owner from Carterville would stop by the bank to pick up Robert and away they would go. (Robert thinks that would be a little too risky nowadays).

Before his good paying job at the bank for $125 a month, Robert worked for the S.H. Kress and Company on Main Street. His salary was only $13 a week, but he was in training. Along with his training he was allowed to sweep daily, trim windows, stock the shelves in the warehouse, pull the merchandise upstairs on the hand-powered elevator and take the merchandise down to the girls at the counters.

Trimming the windows was an exciting part of Robert's employment. "The windows were trimmed" by stacking glass shelves and vases some six-foot high, on which to display all kinds of merchandise. Sometimes, a streetcar would come down Main Street and the window display would wind up on the floor in a heap of broken glass and rubble. 

But, Robert's fondest memories are of the days when his dad would take the day off, load up a bunch of boys in the "Saxon Six Buick" and head for Lakeside for a game of baseball. His dad was a left hander who would pitch for both teams and umpire at the same time. A good time was had by all.




              Henry C. Humphreys 




               Published December 8, 1989


The year is 1899 and Henry C. Humphreys moved to Webb City with $4000 worth of merchandise to start a business. Within the first year, his business had brought in $17,000. Henry had a growing business and he needed a building as impressive as his business. The building that housed his business was the largest and most imposing in the city. It was located in the 200 block of North Main (Allen) street. The building, which now contains the Bradbury-Bishop Deli and Vickie's Cake and Bake, plus apartments upstairs.


Henry's business continued to grow and was reported to have made as high as $300,000 annually. (That was a lot of money in the early 1900's) Humphreys' department store was the most extensive business of it's kind in this part of the country. The company employed 35 to 40 employees on the average. 


Henry also owned other business and residential property in town. He was very active in real estate. But Henry was never too busy to help out in the community. He was always concerned with the city's welfare.


Henry's son, Cordell followed in his father's footsteps and became a prominent Webb City real estate broker.


It would be nice to have a business like Humphreys' in Webb City in this day and age. To feel the hustle and bustle on Main at Christmas time.


I don't remember Humphreys' but I do remember The Hub and Kress' Dime Store. I do remember when our little town put a Christmas tree in the middle of the intersection of Broadway and Main. We had Christmas lights strung across the street and Webb City bank played Christmas Carols. 


You couldn't help but feel the "Christmas Spirit" and feel love for your neighbor. We almost had that warm feeling during the Webb City Appreciation Days last month and a little bit of nostalgia was relived on Main Street

    "Haskin Brother's Hardware store stood strong during economic crisis"





  Published November 11, 1994

Nowadays, businesses seem to come and go with much speed. For a business to say they have been established for more than 10 years is quite an accomplishment. The economy makes it tough to keep a business going.

Although the economy has its dips and curves, many past businesses were able to scrape by and survive. One of those businesses that seemed to last forever in Webb City was Haskin's Brothers' Hardware Store.

Frank E. and George Haskin set up their business in June 1900, when they purchased the building at the southeast corner of Main (Allen) and First streets for $2,500. They bought it from Koonz Trading Company. (More on Koontz at a later date.)

Frank E. was married to Judge Solomon Kerr's daughter, Elizabeth, who came to Jasper County in 1867, settling out by the old water plant. Frank and Elizabeth lived at 1124 S. Jefferson street.

George's first wife was named Pattie. After her death, he married a woman named Ida. They lived at 327 S. Roane Street.

The Haskin brothers kept their business alive through the mine shutdowns and the depression era. There was a lot of competition to face. Many hardware stores came and went.

As the new automobile was introduced, the Haskin boys began to handle auto supplies and tires. They had a good business going up until they retired and sold the building for $3000 in 1946 to Fred Casada (C&W Furniture).

For 46 years, the Haskin Brothers did a business with the residents of Webb City. That building was sold to Edith Richards in 1971, who in turn sold it to the Sweets (Home Rug and Furniture) in 1973. We mostly remember it as the American Legion Hall until they built their new facility. Now the Duke Mallos family owns the building, and it is the home of the New Testament Church.

Recently I had a gentleman call and ask for information on the O.A. Bottling Company. That company (also known as Bright Bottling Co.) was owned and operated by Oran A. Bright out of his home at 315 North Ball street. Evidently a very quiet man, there wasn't much information I could find about him. His bottles were mostly the original pop bottles with the cork that made the loud popping sound when opened. They were a heavy thick glass.

(Note: The building that housed the Haskin Brothers' Hardware Store, 111 South Main originally was the home of the very first hardware store in Webb City. Owned and operated by S.L. Manker, it was deemed the largest hardware house in Southwest Missouri. Manker's business began in 1877. It is noted that he had to rebuild his building in 1883 when damaged by high winds.)

                                                        The Hardy Family

                     "Webb City's Hardy Boys built some long-lasting homes."





Published July 02, 1999

In watching old movies, you can't help but run across an occasional "Hardy Boys" adventure. When I hear "Hardy Boys", I automatically think of the Webb City Hardy boys.

In 1873, Joseph Allen Hardy and his wife, Emily, who he had been married to for 11 years, decided to move to Jasper County. Joseph was in the mining business. In 1882, they settled in Webb City. The J.A. Hardy home was located at 122 North Ball Street. They needed that big house, as they had 10 children - six girls and four boys. Two of the boys also built large homes in Webb City. (Some of the other children may have built homes in Webb City also, but these are the only ones that I have information on at this time.)

J.A. Hardy Jr. built a big two-story home on the west side of South Madison at a time when Madison Street was a rural area. Most people heading to Joplin went out Joplin's North Main Road. J.A. Hardy, Jr.'s home has changed a little through the years as the top floor was removed and then a few years ago, Steve and Becky Walker added dormer windows.

Another son, George Hardy, built a Victorian home at 302 S. Ball Street. George had five children to fill his home. It has become better known as the Carney home for many years.

Joseph Hardy, Senior, had many children and grand children and great grandchildren that continued to live in Webb City and carry on the great "Hardy" tradition. I don't want to attempt to name them all, but I will mention a few; Helen Myers, Mary Bennett, Emily Kramer and J. Philip Hardy. These are just a few that I have had the privilege of coming in contact with through the years. So now when you hear the Hardy Boys mentioned, maybe you'll think of Webb City's very own Hardy boys!



                           Published March 22, 1991





 Photo of the Hardy family

Joseph Allen Hardy (122 North Ball) and his grandchildren included Granville Hardy, Helen Hardy Myers, Charley Hardy, Margarete Cummings, James Hardy, and Joseph Hardy. There was Josephine Cummings, Jamie Aylor, Bill Hardy, Agnes Hardy, Maria Aylor, Mary Lois Hardy, Catherine, Martin Tracy Walker, Emily Hardy, Agnes Cummings, Paul Hardy, and Allen Walker. The babies were J. Philip Hardy and Joseph Hardy.

                        

    "Life was successful for the Hardys"




             Published August 31, 1990

Joseph Allen Hardy was born near Hannibal, Rolls County, Missouri in August of 1840. Joseph's parents were Joseph and Julia Ann Gardner Hardy and his grandfather was Casper Hardy. Joseph came from a family with integrity and prominence. At the early age of 14, Joseph was working in the lead and zinc mines along side his father and older brothers in Shullsburg, Wisconsin.

In 1862, Joseph took Miss Emily Edstrom as his bride. Together, they had 10 children, four sons and six daughters: Harriet Hardy McKanna, Mary Hardy Tyree, George Hardy, Alice Hardy Burgner, Catherine Hardy, Anna Hardy Aylor, Joseph Hardy Jr., Thomas Hardy, Agnes Hardy and Herbert Hardy.

Joseph and Emily moved to Jasper County in 1873 and Joseph continued to mine and learn every detail of the business. Then, in 1882, they moved to Webb City from Oronogo and opened the Hardy and Lillibridge Mine. The mine sold quite profitably in 1891.

During the early 1880's, Joseph was instrumental in convincing Bishop Lillis of Kansas City to establish the Sacred Heart Catholic Church in Webb City. Joseph was a liberal contributor of the Parish. He was also on the board of directors for the purchase of land for Mount Hope Cemetery and served as the first president of the Cemetery Association until his death in 1917.

Joseph often remarked in his early mining days how he worked much of the time for little or nothing. He was highly pleased when he earned a dollar a day. His earnings were carefully saved, however, and in time he became an investor. His thrift and sound judgement made him a man of means and influence.

 In 1891, he developed the Richland Tract, which was later sold to the Richland Mining Company. He also mined some Duenweg property for about four years before selling that to move on another piece of land known as the Porter Tract, and selling it to the Cordell Lead & Zinc Company, of which he was president and manager. 

This is one more fairy tale come true of a man-made success. It was more than being in the right place at the right time. It had a lot to do with knowing when to buy and well and when to hold on to the right investment.

A special thanks to Emily Hardy Kramer for sending the information about grandparents, Joseph and Emily Hardy. Emily said she has a brother in Joplin, a sister, Mary Bennett in Webb City and nieces, nephews and cousins in the area. So, this is one forefather who still has many family members around to honor him.





The Polens/ Hughletts

                

                  Stone's Corner facts       



         
                  Published June 13, 1997

When Bob Polen took Minnie Ellison to be his wife in 1915, little did he know of the struggles ahead. The economy of the nation was at an all time low. Jobs were scarce and times were rough. He had farmed the family homestead until 1920 and then we went to work in Antioch, Nebraska in a potash plant, but the plant closed because potash was cheaper in Germany.

The Polens had a little candy store in Antioch, but people didn't have money to spend, especially after the potash plants were shut down. But, Bob had a family to take care of, he needed the work. He did contract work with an irrigation system at Bridgeport, Nebraska, until he heard about the dam being built in Arkansas on the White River. So, he moved his family to Arkansas. As luck would have it, they delayed that project. It wouldn't be in effect for another 20 years.

Bob went to work in the lead and zinc mines in Lawton, Kansas in 1923. For the next few years, life was quite a struggle and Bob did mining, insurance work, and grew wheat. The depression was bad and work was hard to find, but bob was one of those who could work in almost any field.

In 1931, he moved his family of six children, Charles, Jack, Bill, Marguerite, Alma and Mary to Asbury, Missouri and he worked as a blacksmith. He also did work as a grain elevator operator and a bookkeeper.

Finally in 1938, after 23 years of moving from job to job, Bob bought some grocery supplies from Harold Coleman and opened a grocery store in Asbury. Life seemed to take on a more stable atmosphere. Minnie became well known in the area as she taught the women how to can corn in tin cans instead of glass jars. The corn canned in the tin cans, lasted longer and tasted better.

Meanwhile, back in the 20's, Dr. William Stone, over at Glen Elm (Stone's Corner), had opened a little grocery store on the southwest corner of the intersection. His wife Ora, ran the store while he took care of his veterinary business.

Bob Polen's daughter, Mary had married in 1938 to Bill Hughlett (in later years he became our County Tax Collector). Mary and Bill had purchased the Stone Grocery and were operating it. But Bill was going to do his patriotic duty during WWII and joined the Navy. So Mary's parents, Bob and Minnie purchased the store from Bill and Mary. With two stores to run, Bob and one of his children would run one and Minnie with the help of another one of their children would run the other. This went on until they could sell the store in Asbury.

The store at Stone's Corner had living quarters above and an added bonus of indoor plumbing. Although Bob was embarrassed that a customer in the store could hear the gush of water that revealed what he was doing upstair!

Later, Bob and Minnie bought some land a little ways to the south of the store and moved three houses there. They lived in one, and used the other two as rentals. That property is still in the family as it is now the home of their grandson, Steve Hughlett, (Steve's Transmission).

After Bob and Minnie retired in 1957, their son Bill and his family took over Stone's Grocery. And I finally got an answer to my question; yes! The name of Glen Elm was changed to Stone's Corner because of Dr. Stone and his veterinary office and grocery store.

I can't finish this story without further mention of Bill and Mary Hughlett. They were such a special couple. They raised six children, Bill Jr., Steve, Mike, Joe, David, and Elaine. Bill and Mary cared for people and in turn, people cared for them. And even though he was an elected official, Bill was still a highly respected person. At both of their funerals, the number of people who turned out to pay their respects attributes to the many peoples' lives they touched in some way!


                   "Henry Long had a long streetcar career"




                 Published April 13, 2001

In 1888, just 12 years after Webb City was established, a young man named Henry Long left his home in Hamilton, Ohio and came to this prosperous mining community in Southwest Missouri. Twenty-year-old Henry had many dreams and plans for his future. He settled in Joplin on November 10, 1888, and immediately went to work for the Joplin streetcar Line, working on the horse drawn streetcars.

On September 1, 1891, Henry went to work for the Southwest Missouri Electric Railway Company. In 1896, Henry was a motorman for the first streetcar out of Carthage on the new and just completed "White Line" between Carthage and Carterville. In those days, an extra motorman was needed to watch the trolley. On this memorable trip, his brother Louis Long accompanied Henry. It was not uncommon for families to work together on the streetcars, brothers, fathers, and uncles.

Railway work was not easy work. Employees worked hard and long hours. There were employees "on call" to take care of problems like breakdowns, derailments, and accidents. Many men worked seven long days a week without vacations.

These two brothers, Henry and Louis not only worked together; they only lived two blocks away from each other. Henry lived at 928 W. First Street and Louis lived at 917 West Third Street.

When Henry passed away on March 25, 1920, at the age of 52, he had the distinction of being the oldest motorman in point of service on the line after 28 years. (That was 28 years with the Southwest Missouri Railway Company, but he had been in the railway business for 32 years.) Upon his death, his brother Louis acquired that honor for 26 years.

Besides being well known from working on the streetcar line, Henry was also a member of the Modern Woodsmen of America and the Royal Neighbors Fraternal Lodge.

Henry G. Long and his wife, Emma, had one son, Roy L. Long and one daughter Viola Long. Here is a well-known young man who came to this are from Ohio and became a permanent resident of Webb City. Thanks to Fred Rogers for sharing this information about one of Webb City's special citizens of the past.




               A note from George Rainey

I read with interest the story on Henry Long. I didn't know of him. My stepfather Elmer Long was Louis' son. He lived at 917 West Third with my mom until he died. The corner of 3rd and Madison was known as "Long's Corner". 917 was the only house on the block at that time. My mom was secretary of the SW Mo. Railway Association for many years. She had the yearly meeting at her home. When she died I gave all the pictures and minutes to the streetcar at King Jack Park. Roy Long and Elmer were good friends and cousins. Elmer had retired from the U.S. Navy. Roy was the projectionist at the Fox Theatre.  Jeanne, keep up the good work. George Rainey.





     Charles Fredrickson
               

                       "Woman thinks statue in park looks like her father"





    Published April 12, 1991

When Evelyn Surgi saw the kneeling miner at King Jack Park, it not only triggered her memory of the mining era; it looked just like her father, Charles Johan Fredrickson.

Charles was not a stranger to the mining field. It was the talk of an ore strike in a small southern Missouri town that prompted Charles to leave his family in Motala, Sweden, in 1888 at the age of 21.

Webb City was a booming mining town and as the work spread, people came by horseback, wagons, railroad and on foot. Jobs were scarce. Men were forced to sit around the shafts of the mines, waiting for someone to get killed…so they could have his job.

A mining injury caused Charles to have a deformed spine that resulted in a hump on his back. But this did not dampen the spirits of this bright young man. Charles was able to feel at home in the midst of the Swedish community of Webb City. There were many picnics, foot races and singing fests.

Because of his back injury, Charles was determined to never work below in the mines again. Being friends with Tom Coyne, a mine operator, they became partners in the drilling business. Charles eventually owned his own drilling rig.

In 1906, Charles Fredrickson married Emma Anderson. Emma was also from Sweden; a little town called Kristinebergs. She had come to Webb City to stay with an aunt who owned a boarding house for miners. Charles was 39 and Emma was "sweet 16". As a wedding gift, Tom Coyne told them to pick out any furniture they wanted and he would pay for it. Charles and Emma did not want to take advantage of their good friend and they were very conservative in their selections.

The Fredricksons had a very beautiful family. The children were: Hulda Evelyn born in 1907, Carl Adolph born in 1909, Thomas Fredrick born in 1913, Emma Louise born in 1916, Mary Frances born in 1926 and than at the age of 45 and 68, they had their last child, John Eric in 1935.

In 1913, Charles took time out from his drilling to go to California to acquire some mining leases on property in the Waco area. He was given an interest in the mines in exchange for obtaining the leases. Throughout the years, Charles had seen many men become millionaires, but he had also seen many men lose everything they owned. So, being the conservative that he was, Charles sold out his interest in the mines for $8,000 (which was a lot of money in those days). But, you can't help but wonder…would Charles have been one of those millionaires we read about, if he hadn't sold his interest in the mines? But Charles had nothing to regret about his life. He had come to America to prove that he was "somebody" and he had succeeded!

A special thanks to Evelyn (Fredrickson) Surgi for sharing the history of her father with us.

            "Family lore keeps story of car alive for decades"




Published April 19, 1991

Charles Fredrickson had traded his old 1913 Ford in on a new 1924 model. It was a beauty! His family was the envy of neighborhood as the parents drove to the graduation ceremony for their daughter Evelyn, with their son Carl behind the wheel. Once they got there, Carl decided he didn't want to go to a silly program, so he wrote a note to his family, put the keys in the car and left on foot. When the family came out after the ceremony, the car was not to be found. Charlie was mad at himself for allowing Carl to take the keys and especially mad at himself for not buying insurance.

After a thorough search, the police informed Charlie they couldn't find his new Ford. Charlie gave up hope of ever finding his car again.

But that wasn't the only thing ever stolen from Charlie and Emma. Two years after the disappearance of the car, Emma's chickens were stolen. Emma was a steady, self-reliant woman and these chickens represented her accomplishments, not to mention her spending money.

Emma kept her eye on the newspaper and as soon as some men were arrested for stealing chickens, she went to check it out. Emma even went to the trial to see if she could figure out if these were the same men who had stolen her precious chickens. As the trial progressed, she heard it mentioned several times that the thieves were driving a 1924 Ford. Emma's mind went was working…could it be the Ford that was stolen from them two years ago?

Straight to the garage where the car was being stored went the steady, self-reliant Emma. She wanted to check that Ford. She wrote down the serial numbers off the car to check with the title when she got home.

Being a patient person, she waited until after supper that night, before she asked Charlie to get out the title of the Ford to compare the numbers she had acquired that day. Sure enough, they matched. Those thieves had not only stolen all of Emma's chickens, but they had used her own vehicle for the get away!

The next morning, Charlie and Emma went to the police to report what Emma had uncovered. After investigation, the police determined that the chicken thieves had bought the car from a member of a car theft ring out of Oklahoma.

Charlie got his car back and he learned to keep those keys close at hand. He wasn't taking any chances anymore. As for Emma and her chickens…she gave them up. She said it wasn't worth it any more if she had to spend all that time running down car thieves and chicken thieves.

A special thanks to Evelyn Surgi for sharing this interesting story about her parents.



                   "The house the Lively's built"




              Published September 16, 1994

At the northwest corner of First and Oronogo, 705 West First, stands a beautiful blue house that can't help but be recognized as one of Webb City's historical homes. This beautiful home most recently was known as the Siegfried home, but at the turn of the century, the home belonged to Melvin Roscoe Lively and his wife, Alice.
Melvin came to the Webb City area in 1890 after first trying his legal business in Carthage and Kansas. Finally settling in Webb City, Melvin's law practice met with imminent success, not only here but in Carthage and Joplin as well. 

As director of the Oakwood Mining Company, the Moore-Veatch Realty Company and the Webb City Smelting Company, Melvin's importance in the community increased.

The Lively family was well known in Kentucky with Melvin's grandfather William Lively, who was born just south of Louisville, Kentucky. William did a little pioneering in Indiana where his son, Lewis was born on the family farm, close to Terre Haute. 

By the time the Civil War erupted, Lewis was in Illinois. When the call came to enlist, he joined with the Fourth Illinois Cavalry and was ordered to the front. As he was about to take passage on a steamer boat in Quincy, Illinois, his horse fell and Lewis sustained injuries that kept him from serving in the war. He received an honorable discharge from the service, but he was always a little ashamed and very disappointed in the turn of events in his life.

Lewis married Mary Jane King from Illinois and they had four children; Argil J., Minta, Harry Bryant, and Melvin Roscoe. 

Melvin Roscoe and Martha Alice Nichols were married May 24, 1887 in Kankakee, Illinois. They had one daughter, Lorraine. Melvin and Alice were very active in Webb City's social scene. They also were quick to volunteer their time to help the community.

That beautiful house at First and Oronogo stands as a monument to the couple who built it. It has been cared for and holds a piece of history in its heart.

                                                 THE MANKER FAMILY                             

                                "Marriage benefited all of Webb City"





Published August 3, 1990

Charles Morrow Manker and Alice Lillian McCorkle were married June 27, 1888. Both of these civic-minded people were an asset to the community. To have them married was beneficial to all concerned.

Alice was an active member of the Presbyterian Church and a charter member of the Civic Club. She was a leader in the movement, which resulted in the establishment of the Webb City Public Library and served as a member of its board for years. Alice was also active in the Women's Study Club and Social Club.

Charles (C.M.) was the first Republican mayor in Webb City. He was active in business, religion and politics. He was employed at the Center Creek Mining Company in the office but eventually gave that up to devote time to the insurance business. Charles' father, S.L. Manker, had a hardware store at 111 S. Allen (Main) Street that Charles helped him with. Charles along with Will S. Stewart, helped organize the Home Telephone System.

Also, Charles was one of the original founders of the Spurgin Grocer Company. After helping to organize the Merchants & Miners Bank, Charles became the first cashier and later its president.

Besides being busy with business, Charles was active in the community. He was treasurer of the local school district, head of the Y.M.C.A. and an elder in the Presbyterian Church and Sunday School Superintendent.

As mayor of Webb City, Charles was a credit to the city as well as to himself.

Charles had several sisters, including Mrs. A.A. Hulett, Mrs. W.S. Chinn, Mrs. T.I. Bennett and Mrs. Tom C. Hayden (some very influential names in our community). Alice and Charles had two daughters; Florence Manker married James Gilbert Cox and Marguerite Manker married Beverly Bunce.

It's great when a couple can both be actively involved in the community together. Webb City has been very fortunate to always have someone to show interest and to help our city grow and prosper. We owe our forefathers (and foremothers) a lot!



                                     S.L. Manker



                              Published August 8, 2003

Born on May 13, 1829, in Cincinnati, Ohio, S.L. Manker began his life in a pleasant community and enjoyed a wonderful boyhood. As he grew, he kept hearing of the newly developing country to the west and his curiosity got the better of him. He and his wife, Sarah, ventured to Pontiac, Illinois for a couple of years and then decided to take the plunge. He crossed the "Father of Waters" and "Big Muddy" and located in Frankford, Missouri a year later moving to Holden, Missouri and finally in 1877, S.L. Manker and his family settled in Webb City, a town that had been incorporated in 1876. 

S.L. and Sarah had a good size family which included four daughters and one son: Mrs. A.A. Hulett, Mrs. Tom (Gladys) Hayden, Mrs. W.S. (Minnie) Chinn, Mrs. T.I. Bennett and C.M. Manker (who married Alice McCorkle).  Each child married into well-known families of the area. 

The Manker family had a beautiful home on the N.E. corner of First and Liberty Streets and they were active members of the Presbyterian Church.

S.L. opened the first hardware store in Webb City, which was located just two blocks from his home. The store at 111 South Allen (Main) street was deemed as the largest hardware house in Southwest Missouri. His son-in-law Colonel A.A. Hulett joined him in the hardware business and his son C.M. helped with the business as much as he could. Manker, Hulett & Company was a hardware store that covered any hardware products you may need along with mining supplies and groceries. The business was established in 1877 and became quite successful. 

S.L. 's son, C.M. Manker (Charles) became quite an asset to Webb City as he was talented in so many different areas. He often helped his father in the hardware store. He was associated with the Center Creek Mining Company (the first mining company of Webb City). He eventually left the mining business to devote his time to the insurance business and the Building and Loan Association. He went into business with his brother-in-law, W.S. Chinn under the firm name of Manker & Chinn Insurance. Charles wore many different hats as he was also a Notary Public, one of the original founders and secretary of the Spurgin Grocery Co., President of the Newland Hotel Company, helped organize and owned one-half interest in the Webb City Electric  Telephone Company (later known as the Home Telephone system). This telephone company operated lines in Webb City, Carterville, Prosperity, Duenweg, Galesburg, and Oronogo. He helped organize the Merchant & Miner Bank and served as one of the first cashiers, eventually becoming the Bank President. He was Treasurer of the School District, Head of the Y.M.C.A. and an active member of the Presbyterian Church. 

In 1892, Charles was elected Mayor of Webb City having the distinction of being the first Republican Mayor of the city. It was stated in the "Webb City Gazette" that Charles Manker filled the position of Mayor with credit to himself and the city. He was very well known and well liked. All of his business partners and associates held him in high respect.

Charles married Alice McCorkle, daughter of Andrew McCorkle one of Webb City's first mine operators. Charles picked the perfect mate as Alice was just as involved in the city as he was. She was a leader in the efforts to establish the Webb City Public Library and served as a Library Board member for years. In fact the Library was built on her parent's property which was right behind the house Alice grew up in. Alice was active in the Women's Study Club and Social Club along with being a charter member of the Civic Club. Besides her church duties in the Presbyterian Church and raising two daughters, Florence and Marguerite, Alice was one busy lady. And she also attended many civic celebrations and activities on the arm of her ever so busy husband, Charles. 

What a wonderful and active family the Mankers were. I'm amazed the name of the city wasn't changed to Mankerville, as the family helped organize and operate so many important affairs in our city.

Webb City is honored to have had such a wonderful family as pioneers of our community. They helped to build a great city and we are indebted. 


                                            Andrew McCorkle

The city of Webb City was incorporated in December of 1876.  John C. Webb had uncovered a large chunk of lead a couple of years before the city was established.  The miners had already moved into the area in large numbers seeking the riches that were being promised.


John C. Webb had moved to Jasper County in 1856 and built his log cabin at what is now the NW corner of Broadway and Webb Streets in 1857.  


There were only a few neighbors located close to the Webb's 320 acres.  To the west was William A. Daugherty who had purchased 260 acres in 1870.  His home is still standing today and is owned by heirs to the Corl family.  Eventually Daugherty would own over 4000 acres of mining and agricultural land in Jasper County.


To the east of the Webb land was the Carter farm located where the city of Carterville was established.  W.A. Daugherty purchased the Carter farm and he established the city, naming it after the original owner of the land.


To the south of the Webb land was 80 acres owned by Andrew McCorkle, a former resident of Wisconsin, who had moved to Jasper County to hopes to help his wife overcome the ill effects of tuberculosis.  His brother-in-law had served in Jasper County during the Civil War and he had written to Andrew of the wonderfully sunny and warm climate.  In 1862, his brother-in-law was killed in the Battle of Prairie Grove in Arkansas.


Andrew McCorkle built his first house on the SW corner of what is now Webb and First Streets.  The year was 1870 and Andrew set aside 6 lots to build his 1 1/2 story home.  He had a separate log kitchen, a log smokehouse and the beginnings of an orchard. 


In 1875 the city was platted. McCorkle's First Addition to Webb City was surveyed August 30, 1876.  A mining boom was under way and the Frisco Railroad began laying tracks into the city.  Andrew continued to assist in the development of the mines.


Andrew had no idea that the country in which he had moved his precious wife to help her tuberculosis had a killer in it's midst, and that killer was...tuberculosis.  Not only did his wife eventually die of the dreaded disease, but he also lost his son to tuberculosis. Charles died on October 26, 1884 from tuberculosis he contacted in the mines.  


After his wife's death in 1879, Andrew made a trip back to Wisconsin in search of a mother for his 13-year-old daughter.  His first wife had died in Wisconsin at the age of 22 and now his second wife had died at the age of 37.  


Andrew married Deborah Shea on September 15, 1880.  She was a schoolteacher and the sister of Margaret Shea who was married to Andrew's brother, Robert.


Deborah nursed Andrew's son Charles in the later part of his tuberculosis up until his death in October and then she delivered a son, Willie in December of the same year and the poor baby died of tuberculosis within two months of his birth.  They had another son in 1887, Arthur Vincent McCorkle.


In 1899, as Andrew continued to increase his wealth in the mining business, he decided to build a new home.  A more majestic home to represent his wealth, but he loved the location of his present home, and couldn't find a new location that satisfied him.  So, with the help of sturdy horses and large logs, the original home was moved to the south and McCorkle began to build his new home.


It was a two-story home, with a full basement and full attic.  The beautiful woodwork made the home sparkle.  The front wrap around porch with decorative railing seemed to beckon you to come in.  By building up the dirt around the base of the home, it appeared to sit on a hill, which gave it a hint of grandeur.


Andrew McCorkle died in 1904, at the age of 76 leaving the house to his son Arthur, daughter Alice Manker and his wife Deborah.  He was buried in the Oronogo Cemetery but in 1906, when the new Mount Hope Cemetery was established, they removed his casket from Oronogo to Mount Hope in an honorary location. (All noted past residents were moved to a dedicated area).


Arthur married Edna Prickett in 1927 and had two daughters, Mary L. McCorkle Marx and Margaret E. McCorkle Lewis.   When Arthur died in 1952 he left the house to his wife Edna.  She sold the house to James and Orpha Watson in 1953.


The Watson's owned the home for one year, in which time they took off the round copper dome roof of the front porch, removed much of the brass door fittings and the lightening rods from the roofline.  They then sold the house to Robert and Marie Kissel in 1954.  The Kissels lived there until 1963 when Marie inherited a beautiful home in Joplin and they sold the house to Richard and Helen Woodworth.


After the children left home, the Woodworth's sold the family home to their daughter and son-in-law, Jeanne and Stan Newby.  They raised their three children in the old family home and when there was only the two of them left at home, they decided to sell.  They found a wonderful young couple who loved antiques and needed a place to display them.  Brian and Terry Berkstressor have made great improvement to the McCorkle home which celebrates its 100th birthday in this year of 1999.



        " Ernest Meinhart changed business name to 

             Webb City Greenhouse"





 Published September 10, 1993

Ernest M. Meinhart immigrated to the United States from Germany in 1865, settling in Chicago. He married Miss Minnie Mueller, also from Germany, in November of 1868, and they had six children. At the time of the great Chicago fire, the Meinhart family moved to Kansas and Ernest found employment as a stage driver. Later, with a desire to stay closer to home and family, Ernest took up a new profession, selling wallpaper and paint. He opened a store in Atchison, Kansas, which he operated until his death in 1908.

One of those six Meinhart children was named Julius E. Meinhart. Julius attended public schools and Monroe Institute before heading out into the world to find his fortune. At eighteen he tried the trade of drapery work and hanging shades with the S.A. Orchard Carpet Company in Omaha, Nebraska. Deciding that drapery was not his line of work, he decided to be a traveling salesman for paint and wallpaper company in Chicago, known as Lartz Wallpaper Company and the Colt Manufacturing Company. After 12 years, he still hadn't found what he wanted be when he grew up, so he tried his hand at retail sales of wallpaper by opening a store in Leavenworth, Kansas. Leaving that line of work, he decided on working with cut flowers and it seemed he had finally found that niche in life that he had been searching for.

Julius married Miss Margaret Foster on June 30, 1890, and she was by his side as he made these numerous changes in his life. Margaret died in Leavenworth on November 18, 1900, leaving Julius with two small children, Ruth and Foster.

Julius made one more move with his children. They came to Webb City in February of 1910 and Julius bought the Brenneman Florist and Green House. Brenneman Florist had a reputation of being the largest greenhouse in the Jasper County area and a very productive business.

Changing the name from Brenneman's Florist to Webb City Greenhouse, Julius continued the business for 20 years. Julius was an active resident in the community, a member of the Knights of Pythias, Elks Lodge, Order of Maccabees, Security Benefit Association, and the Fraternal Aid Union. He was also a member of the Lutheran Church. Julius married a second time a lady named Grace.

At the time of this death on April 28, 1929, Julius was only 58 years old, but he had accomplished more goals and fulfilled more dreams than most people who live to be older. At the time of his death, Julius resided at 416 S. Pennsylvania Street (where the special Road District is located now and before the construction of MacArthur drive).

Here was a man who wasn't afraid to search for his happiness and was smart enough to realize that Webb City was his pot of gold at the end of the rainbow.




James McNair

Born in North Carolina, December 12, 1833, James McNair was the son of Daniel and Ann McNair, both natives of Glasgow, Scotland. James' grandfather, Hugh McNair arrived in this country just prior to the Revolutionary War at which time he enlisted. He served throughout the entire seven years of the war with honor and distinction. At the end of the war, he returned to his native land of Scotland and brought his family back to the land he had fought so valiantly to free. 


In 1835, Daniel took his family to Charleston,Tallahatchie County, Mississippi and moved to Tennessee in 1852.


It was during this time that young James, then 19 years of age, caught the "gold fever" and headed west. He got as far as Bates County, Missouri when he fell ill and it took him two years to recover. Still determined to try the gold fields, James joined in with a cow herder named Henry Riggs and worked his way to Sacramento. 


James returned to Tennessee in 1859 and realizing it was time to get serious and think of his future, he began the study of medicine. When the first shot was fired in the Civil War, James cast his lot with the north and enlisted with the First West Tennessee U.S. Volunteers. Due to illness, James was discharged in the fall of 1864 and in 1865 was elected a member of Tennessee Legislature. He was elected a delegate to the Southern Loyalists Convention, which met in Philadelphia where he urged the extending of the right hand of fellowship to the defeated states. During the Civil War, James married Patience Flippin, a charming belle from Tennessee.


In 1869, the McNair family moved to Missouri, with James employed with the St. Louis & San Francisco Railroad. In 1874, In 1874, the Railroad Company moved the McNair family to Oronogo, Missouri. The very next year, John C. Webb laid out the town of Webb City and McNair moved to the uncharted town and proceeded to build the first house for Webb on the corner of what would soon be Tom and Daugherty streets.


When Webb City was incorporated in December of 1876, James McNair received the honor of being the first mayor of Webb City. He held that position for only one month and two days before being offered and accepting the position as the first Postmaster on January 13, 1877. James Smith was appointed to fill the vacancy of Mayor.


Patience and James McNair had five daughters, Annie, Minnie, Jessie, Callie and Myrtie.





John M. Malang


                    "Father of the Good Roads Movement"



                     Published, October 29, 1993

When you hear stories about the "good ole days", one thing that wasn't considered great was the road system. Those old cars with the narrow wheels would make some pretty deep ruts and on muddy days, many a vehicle got stuck in the mud up to the rim of the tires. Something had to be done and they chose the right man to do it: John M. Malang, Sr.

John was born September 29, 1866 in Nashville, Tennessee. Coming to this area in 1878 with his parents, they settled in Tanyard Hollow. John didn't get a lot of education. He started working the mines as a young lad and later became a mine operator.

John left the mining business to become partners in the Joplin Transfer Company.

At the age of 20, in 1886, John married Anna and they had a farm out on West Seventh Street. During several election campaigns, John, being a staunch Republican, would get into some strong debates with some of the attorneys, which was good practice for him, as he ran for the State Senate in 1908 and won.

After leaving the Senate, John became the Superintendent of the Joplin Special Road District in 1914. His first project was the 18-foot wide concrete highway from Webb City to the Kansas State Line. This was the first concrete road in the entire state.

In 1919, the McCullough-Morgan Law went into effect (of which John was the author), and it provided for the appointment of a state superintendent of highways. You know the old saying, "don't make a suggestion unless you are willing to do it"! Well, John was appointed and was also ex-officio secretary of the highway board.

He quickly went to work on developing the first Missouri road plan, which he entitled, "Lift Missouri Out Of the Mud". In 1921, his new campaign was called, "Farm to Market", and he worked on linking rural counties with the arterial highway system. 

John Malang not only designed the main network of roads in the state; he also supervised the construction. He constructed a scenic route from Joplin to Neosho, a short cut from Joplin to Seneca and a cut off between highways 16 and 38 for Pierce City, Sarcoxie, and Wentworth.

He was working on another bond issue for the highway improvement when he passed away of heart complications in a hotel in Kansas City. His funeral was attended by more than 1,000 people. They ranged from miners, highway workers, to politicians, lawyers, friends and relatives. The ceremony was held in the Elks Club at Fourth and Pearl streets.

The funeral procession went down the first highway made of concrete for which John was responsible for obtaining. He is buried in Mt. Hope Cemetery where his tombstone looks out over that very same highway. (Although throughout the years, it has been widened.)

A special commemorative plaque was installed at the Capitol building in Jefferson City, in remembrance of John M. Malang, "Father of the Good Road Movement". The plaque was dedicated on January 11, 1930, just a few hours before John's loving wife passed away to join him.

Next week, we will learn more about John's personal life and his family.

                     The family of John M. Malang




Published November 5, 1993

Anna and John Malang were married in 1886 at the St. Peter's Catholic Church in Joplin. Anna had lived in this area since 1879. She moved here from Nashville, Tennessee with her parents when she was 13 years old. She was born in 1867.

John was also born in Nashville, but he was born in 1866 and came to this area in 1878 when he was 12. Being born a few months apart from each other and in the same territory made it seem like fate that they should be married.

John and Anna had three sons, John M. Malang, Jr., Benjamin Malang, and Edward Malang. John Jr. married Gwendolyn Bosserman in 1928. She was the daughter of Mr. & Mrs. A.G. Bosserman. John had attended Kemper Military Academy before being employed by the highway department in Cassville. Following in his father's footsteps.

Benjamin Franklin Malang was born in Joplin in 1889. He married Bertha Toutz and they lived in Webb City most of their lives. Benjamin helped his father with work on the Missouri highways. Later, he became an advertising salesman. Ben and Bertha had two sons, Warren Malang and Ben Malang, Jr. 

Edward W. Malang married Ella Woods in 1908 and they had two children, Jack Malang and Opal Malang Thompson.

Anna was by John's side throughout his many accomplishments in life, as he served on the United States Senate and as he developed the Missouri road systems. She was always there to take care of him after his long journeys to campaign for the different bond issues.

John passed away on September 13, 1928. It was a sad day for the state of Missouri because they lost a dedicated worker. But it was an even sadder day for Anna because she lost her lifetime companion. It seemed that Anna lost her will to live after John was gone. Her health continued to deteriorate and just as they had been born a few months apart, they departed this world a short time apart. Anna died January 11, 1930.

On the day of her death, there was a dedication ceremony in Jefferson City to honor John M. Malang. The sons sat at the hospital with their mother and listened to the radio. Anna died a few hours later.

John had a brother named Frank A. Malang. Frank was as dedicated to his work as John. Frank was a contractor and builder. He was so dedicated to his work that he just didn't have time to think about getting married. Before being a contractor, Frank (or Dutch as his friends called him) was in the mining business. Frank built a lot of house along South Main past Thirty-second Street.

In 1930, at the age of 61, Nina Barlow stepped back into Dutch's life. Nina and Dutch had been high school sweethearts. Nina Burress wouldn't wait around for Dutch to make up his mind what he wanted to do with his life, so she married another fellow and went on with her life. When she became a widow, Nina decided to find her long lost love and believe it or not, she swept him off his feet again. But this time, he was smart enough to know that he had better marry her while she was close at hand. They were married on December 27, 1930.

Frank moved Nina into one of his new stone bungalows being constructed at 2930 Main Street. But their happiness was short lived. On May 6, 1934, Frank had been over to check on his Tourist Hotel at 3125 1/2 Main and he was walking back to the house when a hit-and-run driver killed him. But at least he had found some happiness the last few years of his life.

Additional information about the Malangs. Frank Malang gave the property (3 lots) to St. John's when it was located at Conner and Ivy. The only provision was that the hospital pay $40 per month for life to his niece, Maggie Mullins.

At the time of John Malang's death, there was approximately 651 miles of hard surfaced pavement in Jasper County, which were constructed largely due to Malang's efforts.




       C.E. Matthews


                   "Helped build Webb City"




   Published February 2, 1990

C.E. Matthews was born in Huron County, Ohio, February 4, 1854. His parents were Francis and Mary Matthews, who were from England. C.E. Matthews was trained and educated to be an engineer. He followed that line of work for awhile and then he started working for S.A. Brown & Co., lumber merchants of Chicago.

Matthews was sent to Webb City to manage the company's lumberyard in this area. Matthews prove to be quite efficient in that capacity. He married Nellie O. Forbes of Carthage, Missouri. They had one son, D. Frank.

Matthews must have enjoyed the lumber business. He eventually had his own lumberyard. The office was located at the corner of East Main (Broadway) and Walker Streets. The lumberyard covered an entire city block. Matthews owned and managed this business. He was also the president of the National Bank of Webb City. History books state that Matthews was a solid, substantial citizen of Webb City. He took great pride in claiming to help build the city. Any movement to help the city or district found Matthews at the wheel.  His beautiful home, still standing at Second and Liberty Streets, was a symbol of his success. That same home was later the residence of Mayor Don Adamson, President of Merchant & Miners Bank of Webb City. 

Additional information:  Matthews Lumber Co. was previously known as the Burgner, Bowman Matthews Lumber Co. 



                   Walter Lee Martin


                   "Shoe store manager lived well"




    Published August 24, 1990

One of the most interesting pieces of clothing worn in the old days was "shoes". When you look at those dainty boots worn by ladies, you can't help but think how uncomfortable they must have been. Maybe they squeezed their feet into those shoes just like they squeezed their waist into those corsets. The misery they went through just to make an impression. Well, one gentleman didn't mind how they got their feet into those shoes, just as long as they purchased them from his store.

Walter Lee Martin owned and operated the B.B. Allen Shoe Store at the corner of Allen (Main) and Webster. Walter took great pride in his store and in his inventory of shoes. Walter would correspond with B.B. Allen, in San Diego, California, when he would make a payment on the shoe store. In one letter, Mr. Allen wrote back, "I am much pleased to hear of your good looking store. I hope you have not made it so attractive that your old patrons will avoid you, thinking it was too stylish. There be a few in this world that are not at home unless surrounded with plenty of dirt and antiquated methods. They argue that someone must 'pay the freight'!"

Well, Walter must have done it right because the business was booming! Walter and his wife, Alma lived at 421 North Pennsylvania and since business was good, they decided to build a new home. They designed, built and paid for their new home in 1916.The cost was $4,200. That home is still standing today at 10 South Roane (the home of Mrs. Harry Bishop). The traveling bug hit Walter and he accepted a position with a N.Y. Shoe Company and became a traveling shoe salesman. This gave him and Alma a chance to see the USA.

Walter eventually came back to our area and along with his brothers, Edward Martin, John F. Martin, E.A. Martin, and V.C. Martin founded the Martin Transfer Company. Later, they purchased the Joplin Transfer and Storage and combined the two companies. Along with being secretary for Joplin Transfer and storage, Walter was also the district agent for National Life Insurance Company and his office was in the Frisco Building in Joplin.

Walter and Alma were both active in the community. The Society Page was constantly mentioning some benefit that Alma was in charge of. She belonged to the Belle Letters Club, the Century Club, and the Women's Club. Walter was active with the Masonic and the Scottish Rites, the Shriners, and the local Blue Lodge. They were both members of the Oak Hill Golf Club and the Presbyterian Church.

Walter passed away in June of 1938. This was an era when women were just beginning to prove to the male population that they weren't as helpless and defenseless as the men had always told them they were. Alma became the president of Joplin Transfer and storage and she did a mighty fine job. When an offer was made on the company, she did well on the sale. Alma lived out her last few years, traveling and playing golf with her friends.

A special thanks to Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Kenneth Wimsett for sharing this information on their Aunt Alma and her husband Walter. 





The Etters

                                "Bread smelled good"




       Published June 1, 1990

It's the wee hours of the morning and the smell of fresh bread fills the air in the West End of Web City.  The aroma is coming from the Etter's bakery at 1005 W. Daugherty Street. After the bread is baked, it's loaded into big wooden crates stacked outside the door. The wooden crates are then carried east across the street to the Frisco station to be loaded onto a train. The train delivers the fresh bread all over the area to small towns not fortunate enough to have a great bakery like Webb City.

John Henry Etter was an apprentice baker to Henry Worner in Centralia, Kansas, Etter's hometown. Worner later opened a bakery in Webb City on North Main, where Englert's body shop is located now. Worner was open-minded and saw a need for more than one bakery in a booming mining town, so he contacted Etter, who was living in Neosho at the time and suggested that he give Webb City a chance.

So, John Henry Etter and his new bride, Fannie Phelps, opened a bakery at the southwest corner of Second and Main streets (where Empire District is now). After about five years, in 1902 Etter relocated his bakery to the West End of town at 1005 West Daugherty Street. Etter's bakery was the first wholesale bakery in Webb City. By shipping his bread all over the district, Etter's Bakery became well known.

As business grew, so did the need for a larger building. In 1918, John built a modern two story brick building around the older frame building, continuing baking operations throughout the time of construction. 

There were 12 rooms upstairs above the bakery. Fannie was responsible for keeping them rented, and the money was hers to spend.

John built a home for his family just four doors down from the bakery at 1023 West Daugherty Street. John and Fannie had three beautiful children, Marie (who later married Norval Matthews), Phelps (who married Catherine Hardy) and Maxine (who married Max Miller).

Each day the children smelled the fresh bread as it came from the oven. They watched with amazement as the bread was loaded into the big wooden crates. Their childhood memories recall the big sacks of flour with the name Ball & Gunning printed on the sides.

Maude Nelson was the bakery bookkeeper and she was more like family than employee. The Etters had a way of making everyone feel like family. Many wonderful stories have been shared with Marie and Maxine about their father and his kind ways.

A special thanks to Maxine Etter Miller for sharing her photos and information with us. We'll have additional stories later about this talented lady. Our town has so many talented people and so many colorful stories about the good ole day!


                   Tracing the Matthews family




       Published July 14, 1995

                              This is the first article in a three part series about Norval Matthews

William Matthews, born in Virginia, served four years in the Revolutionary War under the command of General Greene. He fought in the Battle of Bunker Hill- a great beginning to a family genealogy.

William had a son, Benjamin, who was born in Virginia in 1800.Now, Benjamin had the pioneering fever, so he left Virginia and traveled to Tennessee. There he met and married Louise Anderson in 1835. 

Still having the pioneering fever, Benjamin and Louise and their three small children left Tennessee and headed west to the area known as Lawrence County in Missouri. They settled in an area that would later be known as Mt. Vernon. The year was 1846 and times were tough, but the family built a log cabin and welcomed another addition to the family, Isaac. Not long after Isaac was born, the family went to Tennessee, but only stayed one winter before heading back to Lawrence County and their homestead.

There were five more children born to this union. Each of the last six children was born on the Matthews homestead. The one room log cabin had a stick and clay chimney. The family used oxen and horses to work their land and an old bull tongue plow helped with the planting. They cut their wheat with a cradle.

The area was abundant with wild game for food. There was turkey, deer, prairie chickens, quail, and plenty of fish. Ben hunted game with a powder and ball rifle with bullets he made himself.

Eventually, Ben sold some of his land, which was some of the first original lots where the town now stands. He even helped to clear the trees and stumps where the town square is today. A small town was born, close enough to the Matthews homestead for convenience, but not too close to take away from the privacy.

Meanwhile, Isaac's sister, Mary had married a young man named Marion Ham. Marion had a sister who caught Isaac's attention. Isaac and Axie were married in Marion and Mary's long cabin and the two couples lived together for several years. Finally, Isaac bought the cabin from Marion.

That log cabin became the homestead for Isaac and Axie and their ten children. The names of the children were Charles, Minnie, Effie, Dora, Onie, Lulu, Ben, Ethel, Norval and Cecil.

Norval was born on July 15, 1885- 100 years ago- in the Matthews log cabin, which was located where I-44 passes by Mt. Vernon.

                       "After five years of living out of a suitcase, 

                        Norval Matthews landed in Webb City"




     Published July 21, 1995

                                      The second in a three-part series about Norval Matthews

Norval Matthews, born in Mt. Vernon, attended a one-room schoolhouse in Lawrence County. His high school days were in Mt. Vernon where the entire school population consisted of only 125 students. Most children in those days, dropped out of school in the eighth grade to help out with the family income. Norval was one of the fortunate to receive an education.

At the age of 26, Norval was employed in the vocational division of Curtis Publishing Company (publishers of the Saturday Evening Post and the Ladies Home Journal). For five years, Norval and his wife, Marie Etter (whom he married September 18, 1921) lived out of motels as they traveled the Midwest.

During this time with the Curtis Publishing Company, Norval claimed that two people influenced him the most... one being, Cyrus H. K. Curtis, publisher of the Saturday Evening Post. "Mr. Curtis", according to Norval, "was one of the most conscientious I have ever met."

The other influential man was Norman Rockwell. Rockwell was at the height of his career when Norval Matthews met him. Norval's comments about Rockwell were, "I was young and very impressionable. He told me about his life and how he started painting. I was impressed with his ideas and how he reached the top of his profession."

Living without a home was too much for the newly weds and after five years, they decided to comeback home to Webb City. Here, Norval started his own business, Matthews Coffee Company. In August of 1931, at 1001 West Daugherty street, Matthews Coffee Company debuted selling coffee to institutional facilities.

During the war, when it seemed that it would be impossible to get coffee, other products were obtainable to replace this major product. Firms began to rely on the Coffee Company for this additional merchandise, which carried on after the war. Also, during the war, Crowder Camp was a welcomed account for the Coffee Company.

Norval M. Matthews retired from the Coffee Company in 1968, leaving the business in the good hands of his son, John Matthews. Norval's intentions were to go fishing every day, but plans do change.   To be continued…

                                        Norval Matthews:

                                 "The writer, the dreamer"




              Published July 28, 1995

                        The following story is the third in a three part series about Norval Matthews

After retiring in 1968, Norval planned to go fishing everyday, but he didn't know what destiny had planned for him.

In 1964, when the Jasper County Junior College District was formed, Norval was one of the six trustees elected and later re-elected in 1968. Governor Hearnes appointed Norval as a member of the Board of Regents to control the senior college program.

In 1972, Norval Matthews was re-elected a member of the Board of Regents of Missouri Southern State College for a five-year term. Norval said that the establishment of the college and his election to the Board of trustees was probably the greatest thing that ever happened to him.

In 1968, Norval was elected the district governor by district No. 611 of Rotary International. Norval had been active in Rotary Club for 15 years, even serving as President. During his year as Governor of the Rotary District No. 611, Norval and his wife Marie, traveled 27,000 miles by automobile and 18,000 miles by plane.

Starting with his retirement, Norval began working on his lifelong dream of writing a book. It was entitled The Promised Land. The School of the Ozarks, Point Lookout, Missouri, published the book for Norval.

Norval then began his second hardbound book, Discovering the Ozarks, which required many hours of research, also. While doing his research, Norval took on another huge project, attending college. In 1972, Norval held the title of the oldest freshman at the age of 76. He took some writing courses and became a member of the writing staff for the Chart, MSSC's very own newspaper.

Before the printing of The Promised Land, Norval did a book for his granddaughter entitled Four Grandfathers. It told about the Matthews side of the family that spanned the entire history of the nation, dating back to when the first Matthews came to Virginia in 1776.

Norval and Marie put a lot of work into the research and writing of Discovering the Ozarks, as requested by the American Heritage Publications. In 1973, Norval sent the manuscript to the publishers and they wanted some changes. They wanted him to revamp it to more of a vacation land guide, leaving out all the history and special memories of the people Norval had interviewed. Norval felt this would rob the book of its true value, so he withdrew it from the publishers. The University of Oklahoma Press expressed an interest in scheduling it for some future publication date. That's where it was at the time of Norval's death in 1977.

October 15, 1980 was the dedication date of Matthews Hall at Missouri Southern State College. It seems appropriate that Norval Matthews would be honored with a building in his name, considering his proudest achievement in his life was associated with the organization and development of the college.

Norval Matthews made quite a contribution to our area and it was stated quite well in reminiscence printed by the Chart.
"His is not a solitary dream. Others shared the dream, but few worked as hard as he to make it come true did.  And even fewer worked as hard as he to make it grow did. The dream was a four-year college 'for the boys and girls of southwest Missouri'- a dream that became Missouri Southern State College. The dreamer was Norval Matthews."

A special thanks to those who remembered Norval Matthews so well and especially to John Matthews, who was deep roots in Webb City of which to be proud.

Note: An Amazing City by Norval Matthews has been reprinted by the Mining days Committee. A copy may be purchased for $5 at the Chamber of Commerce.

Additional information on Norval Matthews: When he had been informed he had a terminal illness, Mr. Matthews had said, "Well, it's not like having the measles, is it?" Then he added: "I've got work to do." "That was Norval Matthews, who after retirement from business in 1966, live a lifetime…."

              

       William B. Milton

                   "Moving really was an adventure back then"




    Published January 16, 1998

It's been stated that a lot of our pioneers came from the great state of Tennessee and settled in the Jasper County area. One such pioneer was William B. Milton who was raised in Tennessee but was actually born in Virginia in 1838. His parents were going into the unknown when they moved west into Tennessee. That same pioneer spirit is what moved William and his Tennessee wife, Nancy Dennis, when they moved farther into the unknown west as they settled in the Preston Township, just north of Alba.

One source says they arrived in the area in 1861. Another says they came just after the end of the Civil War. Either way, they were one of the first settlers of the Jasper County area.

Being a farmer, William found the area to his liking. His farm consisted of about 400 acres. But produce wasn't the only thing William and Nancy grew as they had a family of eight children, five boys and three girls. Robert L., John V., Andrew Jack, William A., (another source calls him Link) and Edwin J. (Squeaky) were the boys. Samantha Ellen, Millie and Julia were the girls. 

Life on a farm in those days wasn't easy (not that life on a farm is necessarily easy today), but it was quite a trial in the old days. Most of the farming was done with a horse or mule pulling a plow. The Miltons had to raise what they needed to survive, such as chickens for eggs and food, cows for their milk. The garden contained the vegetables that would be canned and eaten all winter.

Not everyone had an icebox, so milk was kept cold by lowering it into a well or if you were lucky enough to have a fresh water spring running through your land, it did an excellent job of keeping things cold.

Large families were an asset, because everyone had chores to do on the farm…milking, gathering eggs, plowing, canning, butchering, weeding the garden, feeding the animals, chopping wood for the heat stove and the cook stove, cooking and cleaning. Washing the clothes was a time-consuming process, as the water was to be boiled, out on an open fire and clothes were draped on anything available. Some folks were lucky and had a clothes line strung from the house to a tree.

Many times extra money was make by taking eggs and milk into town to sell. Those folks living in the city had to buy their necessities at the general store. They welcomed those fresh eggs and milk. After selling the eggs, milk and produce, supplies needed for the farm were purchased or bartered. You didn't need a lot of money, but you did need to work hard. And with a large family, you could get a lot more accomplished.

William B. Milton passed on in 1918 at the age of 88. He left quite a heritage as those eight children grew and married and had children of their own. Most of them stayed in the area. Some inherited the pioneer spirit and traveled west to California, but some of those travelers returned home after they retired. After all, when you're ready to relax, there's no place like the Ozarks, especially Jasper County.

R.L. Milton, son of William B. made quite a name for himself in the mining business. In August of 1901, W.M. Wigginton and R.L. Milton conceived the plan of organizing a company to devote its energies exclusively to the building of mining plants. The Wigginton & Milton Company built many of the mines in this area. 

Before the formation of the Wigginton & Milton, most mining plants were built on the same basic plan without any attention being paid to the property itself. That often created a poorly arranged plant, resulting in a financial loss because of the inconvenience and resulting increase in labor. Wigginton & Milton was determined to reduce mine plant building to a science, to individualize the needs of each mine and to secure the best possible results from the investment of the mine owner. Their motto, "What's Worth Doing is Worth Doing Well" resulted in mining plants that were well-constructed symmetrical buildings.

R.L. Milton left his mark on the mining territory of Jasper County. He passed away in 1939 at the age of 77.

There are many of the descendants of William B. Milton still in the area and they have a wonderful heritage to be proud of.

    George W. Moore

                                "W.C. fore-father and wife were popular"




 Published November 24, 1989

George W. Moore was born September 29, 1871, in Dallas County, Missouri. He was married June 19, 1891 to Miss Ida Watson.
George was one of our most popular forefathers of Webb City. After serving on the city council in Aurora, George moved to Webb City and served on the council here also. He was elected Mayor in 1904 and re-elected in 1906.

A Republican in a Democratic city, George was a faithful servant to the people, not to his political party. A lot was accomplished while George was in office. He was highly motivated and very energetic.

George and his wife, Ida, were well thought of. Both possessed good personalities and pleasant dispositions. There were no social functions that didn't have their names on the guest list.

George's occupation was ore purchaser for several different companies and President of the Webb City Smelting and Manufacturing Company.




Published August 22, 2003

As you drive down Madison Street you see the gradual transformation from residential to commercial. At Ninth and Madison is a beautiful home that could easily be described as a 'mansion" carries the address of 903 S. Madison. This beautiful structure has a historical background, as it was the residence of George W. Moore and his wife Ida. 

George was born in Dallas County, Missouri on September 29, 1871, to Alexander A. and Louisa (Richey) Moore. Both of George's parents came form the state of Tennessee. The family settled in Joplin in 1873, moving to Aurora in 1882. George attended public schools in Joplin and Aurora. Unfortunately, he was forced to go to work and earn a living at the age of 14. 

A year later, George became an ore purchaser for W.J. Lanyon of Aurora. He also took on the Lanyon Zinc Company. In 1908, he became associated with the American Metal Company and the Bartlesville Zinc Company of Bartlesville, Oklahoma which was owned by Lanyon Starr Smelting. Then in 1909, he organized and became President of the Webb City Smelting and Manufacturing Company. George was the ore buyer for all of these companies. That's a lot of companies to handle at one time, but George did an excellent job and all companies were well pleased with his expertise.


The Webb City Smelting and Manufacturing Company was an extensive manufacturer of pig lead. The main office was in Webb City but there were branch offices in Joplin and Galena. Although George was interested in mining, he did not take an active part in the working of the mines that he connected with.


This energetic man carried this enthusiasm into the community also as he served on the Aurora City Council in 1896 when he was 25 years old. When he moved to Webb City, he served several terms on the city council until he was elected Mayor in 1904 and re-elected in 1906.   


Being only the third Republican elected as Mayor of Webb City; it was surprising when the normally Democratic Webb City voted for the man instead of the political party. And that is the way George served the city. He was a servant of the people. 


As Mayor of Webb City, George made many major improvements. Twenty-one blocks in the business district and a number in the residential area were paved with vitrified brick, along with the first streetlights being installed.

 George negotiated a deal with the Alba Streetcar Franchise which obligated the company to move the streetcar tracks from Main (Broadway) to Daugherty and to build a viaduct between Webb City and Carterville at a cost of one hundred thousand dollars. The company also put down seven thousand dollars worth of paving when they removed the tracks, did $2,000 worth of sidewalks between Carterville and Webb City and double tracked West Daugherty Street and paved five blocks of Daugherty. What a contract. 

George and Ida were very popular in the community. They did lots of community work and were highly respected. Every social event had the Moore's on the guest list. 

"Bernita and Fern Lewis dedicated their lives 

    and intellect to Webb City's children"


   Published December 16, 1994
Joseph F. Lewis chose his career early in life and it paid off well. Joe was a mine operator. He built his beautiful home at 103 S. Pennsylvania Street for his family's comfort, but it was a definite tribute to how well he was doing in his business.

Joseph and his wife, Elizabeth had two daughters, Fern and Bernita. Fern graduated in 1912 and became a schoolteacher. Bernita graduated from Webb City High School in 1917 and followed in her sister's teaching footsteps.

The girls never married but dedicated their lives to their profession. Bernita outlived the rest of the family and continued to live in that big family home. They may not have had children, but many children have fond memories of those two special teachers who influenced many lives.



            Katie Sill





          Written  7-22-98

I have two stories about a lady named Katie Sill.  I haven't been able to connect them in any way to see if it's the same lady.  Both stories tend to compliment the lady as a very sympathetic and generous woman, so I am thinking they are of the same lady.


One came from the History of Jasper County.  It tells of a pioneer settler of Jasper County named Mrs. Katie Pennington Sill, who was renown for her cooking talent.  Her most noted talent being in her biscuits, which old settlers often claimed were so good they just melted in your mouth.  Katie and her family had settled in Jasper County in 1840 when Katie was about 13 years old.  In those days, young ladies were taught to cook at an early age to help around the house.  And it helped to catch a good man!


During the first year of the Civil War, which started in 1861, many soldiers stopped by the farm of Katie Sill to enjoy some of her good biscuits.  Katie served both the Union Troops and the Confederates, even though she was a southern sympathizer.  Her family tried to remain neutral so as not to be involved in the conflict.


At first, feeding the many soldiers didn't bother Katie. She enjoyed watching those men devour her cooking and listening to the raves of her biscuits, but by the time the second year of the war came about, Katie was finding it hard to feed her own family, let alone all the soldier passing through.


One day, a troop of Confederate Scouts stopped by and as they dismounted, they asked Katie to make them some biscuits. As Katie pulled the first batch from the oven, the aroma that filled the air had the men smacking their lips in anticipation...when suddenly, a bugle call sounded from a short distance away.   Looking up over the hill, a regiment of Union Calvary could be seen approaching at a quick gallop.


The Confederates realized that if they tarried to eat the biscuits the Union would overtake them so they quickly mounted and rode away.  Katie worked fast and threw the biscuits in a cradle and covered them with a blanket.  The Union soldiers stopped to water their horses but they did not notice the biscuits in the cradle and Katie's family enjoyed a wonderful meal, thanks to the biscuits that had been baked for the Confederate soldiers.


By my calculations, Katie was about 34 years old when she was baking those biscuits during the Civil War.  And she would have been about 64 years old in this next story.  A very nice lady who lived out by the Sill Farm supplied this information to me.  


Many a wagon train pulled through this area on the way west to make their fortunes or just to take advantage of the land being given away.  Most families started out with a covered wagon full of all their belongings.  But as the trip usually was more of a hardship than anticipated, some or all of those belongings were sold along the way or stolen.  Sometimes left along side the trail to lighten the load or make room for a sick or injured person.  But Katie had a visitor one-day. A visitor that left a very precious bundle.


A wagon train was heading past Katie's farm, located just north of what are now highways 96 and 43.  A lady driving a covered wagon pulled out of the wagon train and stopped at Katie's house. The lady, who was only known as Mrs.Ritter, was in a very emotional state.  Not only was she very pregnant but her husband had just died and she needed to make arrangements to bury him.


Katie helped the young lady make all the necessary arrangements and they had a proper funeral for the young man.  Katie felt so sorry for this young couple who had headed west to find a pot of gold at the end of the rainbow, only to have all their hopes and dreams shattered by the unexpected call of the angel of death.


The whole ordeal must have been too much for the young woman as she went into labor, giving birth to a very healthy little boy.  Katie helped nurse the young lady back to health and she really enjoyed having the baby around.  The little baby boy was named Arthur and he was such a good baby.


Before long, another wagon train was passing through town and the young lady wanted to continue with her journey as she and her husband had planned.  But she didn't know how she would be able to handle the wagon and take of the baby all by herself.  She talked with Katie and finally asked the question that changed Katie's life drastically. "Would Katie please take care of the baby until a home could be established in California and then the baby would be sent for?"  Well, being the sweet, generous natured woman that Katie seems to have been, it didn't take long for her to make up her mind.


That little baby boy, Arthur Ritter grew up in Jasper County.  His mother was never heard from again.  It's not known if something happened to her on the way or if she just decided that the baby was in better hands.  Arthur never knew his birth mother, but he had the loving arms of Katie Sill to guide him in his growing years.


Arthur had a son, Paul, born in 1911 at the same Sill Farm that Arthur had been born. Katie was 84 years old by the time Paul was born. She never knew too much information about Arthur's mother so genealogy research is almost impossible.  But, you know if Katie hadn't taken that young baby in, there may have been an even shorter genealogy.  What a special lady!





            Jesse Starr





             Written  1997

In May of 1865, in Vermillion County, Illinois, "a Starr is born"!   Jesse G. Starr's parents were Simon P. and Maria Starr.  Jesse was one of six children and he was industrious from birth. By the time Jesse was eleven, Simon made a major decision in his life to move the family to Pittsburg, Kansas.  Being a farmer and merchant in Illinois, Simon continued that profession in Kansas and was quite successful.


Jesse couldn't wait to finish school, to head out into the working world.  At the age of 15, he got a job with the Lanyon Smelting Company in Pittsburg.  He made good money for a young lad...$1 a day, which was high pay in 1880.


Throughout the next nine years, Jesse gradually made his way up the ladder through promotions.  In 1889, he was transferred to the S. H. Lanyon Company in Aurora, Missouri. His new duties included being in charge of the ore buying.


Jesse made the move to Aurora with his new bride Myrtle Spicer Starr, a native of Pittsburg Kansas.  They stayed there for about eight years when Jesse moved his wife and daughter Elsie to Joplin.  He was now working with Lanyon & Sons Smelting Company.   Then in 1906, at the age of 41, Jesse, along with E.V. and Dee Lanyon organized the Lanyon, Starr Smelting Company.  They built a large plant in Bartlesville, Oklahoma.  The business was exceedingly prosperous with Lanyon as President and Jesse Starr as Vice President and in charge of the ore buying.


A year before the organization of the Lanyon, Starr Smelting Company, Jesse had been instrumental in organizing the Conqueror Trust Company of which he became a chartered member and Vice President.


When the smelting company closed down in 1910, Jesse then devoted all of his time and energy into the trust company.  Jesse's partner in the trust company was William Houk who was president of Conqueror Trust Company until his death in 1927 at which time Jesse became the President.


In 1928, Conqueror Trust Company consolidated with First National Bank, and Jesse Starr continued to serve as President.  He sold his holdings in 1929 and established the Starr Investment Company with the following officers: Jesse as President and J.W. Ratcliff as Vice President.  When the company incorporated, it became the Installment Finance Company with Ratcliff as President and Starr as Vice President.


In 1929, Jesse sold his holdings in the Quinton Smelting Company in Quinton, Oklahoma.  There was a large gas well and additional acres used for leasing of gas.  The holdings sold for two million dollars.  


By this time, Jesse felt he had earned some time for rest and relaxation.  He spent the winter months in Ephraim, Florida where he kept a summer home and in Miami, Florida and he owned apartment houses and business lots.


Jesse Starr was not born with a silver spoon in his mouth and his success was not accidental.  He worked long and hard to obtain his status as a millionaire.  He did it without stepping on people; in fact he was a highly respected individual in the community.  He contributed to many charities and he was active in the community.  He belonged to the Masonic Lodge and the Rotary Club. 


Now, you may be wondering why I would give so much time and attention to someone from Joplin, but there is a connection with Webb City.  You see, Jesse's daughter Elsie married Roy Teel, owner of the Teel Drug Store in Webb City.  And she was the mother of Bob Teel.





 Van Hoose Family





           Written 9-3-97

Oh, the beautiful state of Kentucky, with it's rolling hills and beautiful grass.  No wonder most of the pioneers who left the East Coast lingered in the state of Kentucky for a generation or two.  


One such family was the parents of Moses Van Hoose.  They had a large family of 12 children born in the hills of Kentucky.  Moses was born in 1831.  He married Mary Hays, who came from a family of 14 children.  Then Moses and Mary contributed 15 children into this world, three of whom moved to Jasper County.  One of his children became the postmaster of Paintsville, Kentucky and one became the County Clerk of Paintsville.


James H. Van Hoose was child #5 and at the age of 25, in the year 1891, gave up farming and made the move to Webb City, Missouri.  Like most young men of the era, he was interested in prospecting and mining.  He eventually opened a wholesale and retail coal business.  At first he was sole proprietor but later added L.B.Hare as a partner.  Mr. Hare sold his partnership to George W. Moore.  After Moore retired, James was back to being sole proprietor.


He was a popular fellow around town and in 1905, helped to organize the Merchants and Miners bank of Webb City and went on to serve as Director.  Building a good relationship with the bank owner, Ben Aylor, James and Aylor went into a partnership in 1907.  Their office was located in the rear of the Merchants and Miners bank building at 108 West Daugherty and they handled mining leases, city and county property.


James was dedicated to the community and served on the City Council, attended church at the Latter Day Saints church at Third and Liberty.  He belonged to the Elks and the Knights and Ladies of Security.


James had married a local Carthage lady named Maude Ray, in 1893 and they had three children: Harry Orval VanHoose-born 1894(who died as a young lad of 9 years), Charles (Earl) VanHoose-born 1896 and Alton (LeRoy) VanHoose-born 1901.  Their home was at 923 West First (now the Freese home).  


Now anyone who has been around Webb City very long has to recall the names of Earl and LeRoy Van Hoose.  Earl was associated with banking for many years, working with the First National Bank of Webb City until it merged with the Webb City Bank. He then went to work for Merchants and Miners Bank as assistant cashier until he succeeded G. Everett Hough as Executive Vice President until 1936.


In 1936 he started operating an auto financing business from his home at 105 S. Ball. He attended the Presbyterian Church, served as Vice President of the Chamber of Commerce, and belonged to the Elks Club.


Earl was married to Louise Inman in 1915 and they had two daughters, Betty Lou and Joan.  


One of the most remembered events in Earl's life was when the Blake theatre burned down and he was prominent in financing the rebuilding of the theatre which was named the Civic. With Earl Van Hoose and Larry Larsen, the community decided to rebuild the theatre. Citizens could buy a theatre seat for $100 and when the money was raised and the theatre built, they had a big Open House.


LeRoy was the Personel Director of the Webb Corp. He worked with C.H. Bentley.  LeRoy married Louise Clark daughter of Dr. A. Benson Clark in 1923.  This made both boys married to a Louise, which made two ladies in town with the name of Louise Van Hoose...very confusing!  LeRoy and Louise had two daughters, Martha Jean-born 1924 (died at the age of three from scarlet fever), and Jane Clark Van Hoose-born 1926.  His son, James Benson Van Hoose was born in1934. 


Jane Van Hoose married Bruce Benson which made her name, Jane Van Hoose Benson and her brother's name was James Benson Van Hoose.  How neat!


Jane and Bruce had four children, Susan (but we all know her as Susie), David, Van and Lori.   James and his wife had four children: Scott, Gregory, Jeff and Mary Lynn.


Almost anyone who hears the name Jane and Bruce Benson automatically thinks of a great dance team.  Webb City's very own "Fred and Ginger".  Ironically, the Benson's now live in the old "Civic Theatre" building which her family was associated with.  They previously lived at 809 South Madison which had been the home of Jane's parents, LeRoy and Louise Van Hoose.  It had been a present from LeRoy's parents, James and Maude, in about 1920.  The home had been brand new with gaslights, and it had stayed in the family with Jane and Bruce and then the Benson's daughter Lori and her family living there until just recently when it was sold to John Black and his family.


Jane says she has many wonderful letters written to her grandfather, James Van Hoose, thanking him for his generosity.  It seems he had a big heart and any time someone was in need, James was there to lend a helping hand or to help financially.  What a great legacy.


Earl and LeRoy had three daughters between them and all three were King Jack Queens and LeRoy's son was Editor of the King Jack.  It seems that the children and grandchildren and even great grandchildren have inherited the personality of James H. Van Hoose and were well liked in the community.  Another one of Webb City's Great Forefathers to be proud of.


Specials thanks to Jane for helping me fill in the blank spaces in researching James H. Van Hoose.   

               "What about the 'little people' in Webb City's history?"





Published October 5, 2001


In the 1850's to 1880's, many families were tearing up roots and making journeys into the unknown west. The government was offering land for free in some areas, at a very low price in others and some were tempted by the promise of getting rich n the mining business. As the folks headed west, some went on out to Colorado, California, New Mexico and other untamed areas.


Some folks began settling around Southwest Missouri in Sarcoxie, Granby and Joplin. Some of those early pioneers purchased land and lived out in the woods, all by themselves, enjoying the beauty of Jasper County.


Many times we have mentioned some of our well-known early pioneers of Webb City who came to town and left their mark. Well, I'd like to take a moment to mention some of the more common folk who came to town to make a living and did just that. They aren't mentioned very often in history books because they were just trying to get by, but without them, some of our history might be changed. These folks were very important to the development of Webb City, even if it was from the sidelines.


Josiah Van Buskirk left his home state of Indiana in 1870, stopping in Kansas for awhile. He moved to Joplin in 1871, trying his hand at mining and smelting. When Webb City became a town in 1876, Josiah decided he would head to where the action was. He and his wife Lauretta moved into town, and he continued his line of work in smelting. But in 1879, Josiah and Lauretta decided there was a need for a small grocery store, so they changed their destiny and took a gamble. The grocery store was a success and business continued to grow, as did the Van Buskirk family. They had four children, Martha, Theodore, Jeannetta and Ira. Although Josiah isn't remembered as some fantastic businessman who was listed among the famous pioneers, his business made a difference. He had many friends, was a member of the A.O.U.W. and was remembered as being socially pleasant!


Samuel S. Barclay at the age of 17, in 1862, entered the Eighth Missouri State Militia and served in the Civil War under Colonel McClurg. Samuel and his wife Martha settled in Granby and Samuel served as the Granby Marshall in 1875. When Webb City was established as a town, Samuel and Martha moved to be in on the excitement of watching a new town get settled. Having had experience in law enforcement, it didn't take long for young Samuel Barclay to leave his mark. He was elected as the Marshall of Webb City in April of 1882. Note: One of the reasons Webb City became incorporated as a town in 1876 was due to the fact that they were having such a bad experience with lawbreakers, they needed to be incorporated to establish law and order.


John Anderson was born in Germany. In 1865, at the age of 24, he came to America. His first stop was Indiana, and in 1866, he made it to Kansas City before stopping in Parsons, Kansas. He opened a mercantile store in Parsons and established quite a good business until 1877, when he heard about the great commotion in Webb City. He sold his business and made the move to the hustle and bustle of the new mining town. He opened his mercantile store and never regretted his decision. In 1881, he married Miss Anna Cook and established his permanent roots in southwest Missouri.


Dr. W.M. Whiteley hailed from the state of Wisconsin, graduated in 1874 and settled in Joplin in 1875. He married Miss Evadney Myers of Joplin, and they were content with their lives until 1879 when Mr. Whiteley saw a need for doctors in the fairly new town of Webb City. He moved his wife and family to Webb City and set up practice. His three children were; Albert, Daisy, and Nora. Once again, the call to come to Webb City seemed to echo through the air.


Dr. Whiteley's father-in-law, Edward Myers had a busy life. Edward was born in England and made the trip to New York City in 1847 at the age of 23. He acquired employment in a clothing store on Chatham street as a salesman.  He worked as a clothing salesman in St. Louis, then headed on to California to follow his dream. He stayed in Sacramento for 13 years, working in the hotel business and clothing business until he tried his luck in the theater in San Francisco as Professor Myers, the " American Magician". This new profession took him all over the west as he gave his exhibitions. He retired from show business and settled in Joplin. He opened an auction house with several branch stores. The business failed and he moved to Webb City in 1882 and engaged in a clothing store and a saloon. His new adventures seemed to finally slow down the ever-busy Edward. But during his leisure time, his active mind just wouldn't slow down, so he began inventing gadgets. He invented a safety attachment for railroad cars that kept them from leaving the track and a safety switch. Both inventions were deemed very valuable. Having traveled so much in his lifetime and being so diversified in his careers, Edward Myers was a very interesting person to talk to, and he had an inexhaustible amount of stories to share.


John W. Spencer came to Missouri from Illinois where his five brothers and their father all enjoyed the same career of carpentry. As the call to go west rang throughout the country, John and his wife, Mary decided to travel to Missouri in 1882. The newness of the town was gone and life seemed to be more settled in Webb City. John used his carpentry as a means to earn money to establish himself in the mining business. He had a level head and commonsense which made him a popular candidate as supervisor for a few of the mines. Several of his mining enterprises flourished, and he eventually put up a mill on Center Creek which created quite a profit when he sold it. John and Mary had four daughters; Narcissia Shawgo, Mary Olive McCann, Sarah Schiers and Hazel A. The six sons in the family were: Clyde, John Jr., Clarence, Earl, Harry and Stephen. Not only did John add to the history of Webb City by establishing the mill, but also he added tremendously to the population!


John G. Lofton and his wife, Sarah, moved from Illinois to Barton County in 1871. They made their move to Webb City in 1877 as the city was in its hectic early development. Seeing a need, John began a livery business, which prospered. Being an honest man who showed pride in his work, John was recognized as one of the leading businessmen of the city.


Arthur Myers left his home in New York City at the age of 13, with dreams of making it big on his own. He stopped for awhile in St. Louis then traveled on to Denver. Arthur served throughout the Civil War under General Hancock being engaged in many famous battles and serving in Washington D.C. in the pension office after the war. He acquired a bookkeeping job in Chicago until the great fire in that city. He traveled in the south for a couple of years and settled in Joplin in 1877. In 1882, as Webb City continued to flourish, Arthur made the move to town and opened a clothing business. He was classified as a gentleman of culture and rare social qualities. He was said to have an inexhaustible fund of wit and humor. 


These folks were just common everyday folks that left a piece of history in Webb City. They don't have any monuments in their honor, but if they hadn't moved to Webb City, there would have been a void in the development of our fair city.

                                                  Bob Cummings





Written 11-14-00

As a young girl, I remember being very impressed that my mother was often at social gatherings that brought her in contact with such important celebrities as Dennis Weaver and Bob Cummings.  Then one day, my Grandmother told me she had went to school with Bob Cummings.  My memory is clouded, but it seems that she may have gone to a school dance with him.  Well, I thought this was the most wonderful news that my grandmother could have shared with me.  


I thought I would share a little information about Bob Cummings as I have a few of the newspaper clippings that my Grandmother saved throughout the years.


Charles Cummings was the son of Dr. and Mrs. C.C. Cummings, 520 Pearl Avenue.  He graduated from Joplin High school in 1927 and played in a few local productions before heading out into the big world of acting.  He left Joplin to settle in New York City to further his career.  When he was a junior at the American Academy of Dramatic Arts, he took trip to Scotland and England to study drama under some famous actors.


In 1934, Charles Cummings starred in the Ziegfeld Follies under the name of Brice Hutchins.  It was reported that...the tall, handsome youth makes his first appearance in the Follies in a vocal duet with Judith Barron.  They sing "I  Like the Likes of You," while it is danced by Vilme and Buddy Ebsen and an ensemble.  In a skit, "Ivory and Old Gold," he plays the role of a suitor, and again teams with Miss Barron to sing "A Sidewalk in Paris.  In "The Man Who Came Back," Cummings has a role with Willie Howard, famous comedian, heading the cast of the skit.


The next year, 1935, Charles Cummings was acting in his first motion picture, "So Red the Rose."  He was starring with Margaret Sullivan, Pauline Lord and Randolph Scott.  Having gone by the name of Brice Hutchins in the theatre in New York, his motion pictures in Hollywood would show him as Bob Cummings, a name that stuck with him throughout his career.


In April 1962, Bob Cummings made quite a splash in this area when he came home to assist in the grand opening of his motel in Joplin.  Not only was he involved in the grand opening, he was making personal appearances in Joplin and Webb City.  The poor man was being bombarded with awards and special recognition almost continuously throughout the day.


Bob was awarded the first honorary "Caveman" award ever made in the United States.  The president of the Cave Men of America, Lyman G. Riley, made the presentation to Bob in recognition of the fame and honor that he has brought to Missouri, Cave State of the Nation.  


The Boy Scouts from Explorer Post No. 3 made an unexpected appearance to Bob's motel room to present him with an Explorer Emblem.  While they had his undivided attention as he stood there in his bathrobe, they sold him some Boy Scout circus tickets.


Fifteen minutes later, the Sho-Me Divers Club knocked on the door with an honorary membership in that organization.


The day continued with many visitors and many honors.  He made a personal appearance at the Realtor's Better Home Show.  After leaving the Home Show, Bob made a quick appearance at the Lions Club's 18th annual Cotton Blossom Minstrel in Webb City.  When Walter R. (Pappy) Pruitt, who began his acting career in 1904, escorted Bob to the stage, there was such a rousing ovation from this Webb City audience that the famous Hollywood visitor dropped to his knees and gave the Moslem salaam several times to show his appreciation.


The next day, Bob was the host to an important visitor of his own as Miss Missouri; Miss Kay Burns made an appearance for the grand opening of the Bob Cummings Motel.


Bob said that he had been urging motion picture stars in his circle of friends to go back to their hometowns and start their own businesses and industries to revitalize their communities.  And Bob was going back to tell his friends of the wonderful homecoming he had received.


It's nice when those who have left our area, come back for a visit.  It's even better when they act as happy to see us and we are to see them.
   

       Carry Nation

                          Leader of the temperance movement

          Published July 26, 1996

At the mention of the name Carry Nation, you imagine a white-haired lady wearing the traditional long black taffeta dress, black hat and toting a hatchet as she destroys saloons. (Or you think of the saloon act at Silver Dollar City in Branson!)

That lady left a mark on American history as she firmly stood on her beliefs that alcohol was destroying the family unity.  She was not alone in her beliefs or her actions as many tried to abolish liquor in the United States. 

The campaign began in the colonies. Starting as early as 1750, the government tried to discourage the excessive use of distilled spirits. Having come to this New World to organize and structure a new government built on religion, they felt the use of alcohol had an influence on the rise of crime, poverty, and violence in their new country.

It wasn't until the 1850's that the actual laws were put into effect, prohibiting the manufacturing and selling of "spirituous" or intoxicating liquors. By 1835, 13 of the 31 states had such laws. But, the Civil War directed attention to other more important issues, and liquor laws were put on the back burner.

After the Civil War, the population increased rapidly. There were so many saloons in competition with each other, may diversities were used to encourage the wage earner to spend their paychecks. Many saloons offered gambling, prostitution, sales to minors, along with drunkenness and violence.

This is what lead into the "Temperance Movement", also known as the Prohibition Era, which is said to have officially began on January 16, 1920. But, Carry Nation had already put her mark on history and had passed away by that time.

She started her wild campaign around 1900. She had just moved to Medicine Lodge, Kansas with her second husband David Nation. Her first husband had died of alcoholism in Holden. Her new husband David was a lawyer and minister.

That would make you think they would be a perfect couple, but he didn't agree with her ideas and he divorced her in 1901 accusing her of abandoning him for her righteous movements. This was right after she had taken on the hatchet to do her damage in the saloons. She called those events, "hatchetations".

Her havoc-wreaking calls upon saloons caused her to be arrested 30 times. But she was able to bail herself out with money she raised by selling souvenir hatchets and by doing lectures.

In 1874, the Women's Christian Temperance Union (WCTU) was organized to help put a stop to the alcohol use in the United States. This is where Joplin and Webb City came into the temperance movement and prohibition. Local history will be revealed next week.

I                                     The real Carrie Nation

                    Big in stature as well as in faith and will

 Published August 16, 1996

A few weeks ago when I did a story on Carry Nation, little did I know that we had a relative of that well-known historical figure living right here in Webb City.  Our very own Fred (Fritz) Rogers claims Carry as his great aunt.


Stories of family gatherings and stories passed down about the antics of Carry are still fresh in Fred's mind.  He has to smile as he recalls a story his mother told him about his Grandfather.  It seems that Carry not only abhorred liquor she also hated those horrible cigars and cigarettes.  Well, Grandfather loved his pipe and when he was threatened by Carry, he retaliated with a threat of his own, informing Carry that he would resort to physical violence if she attempted to remove that pipe from his mouth.  From what I understand, this is one man that Carry backed down from (there weren't too many of those)!


I also informed you previously that Carry's second husband David Nation divorced Carry as she became more active in her crusade, but Fred said that is a false piece of information.  Not only did David Nation support Carry he even traveled with her.  Being a preacher and a lawyer I'm sure she needed the help of both his professions!


It was interesting to learn that Carry was a tall woman of six foot and weighed about 175 pounds.  Now this presents a view of a very intimidating woman.  One that caused many a man to retreat or have second thoughts about tangling with this woman of strong virtues.


When Carry and David settled in Medicine Lodge, Kansas, they were settling in a "dry" state, or so it was suppose to be.  It seems that the law was overlooked, and saloons flourished in the state. Carry began her campaign by writing letters to the Governor, the Attorney General, the County Sheriff  and various local newspapers.  But to no avail, she was ignored and evidently, you don't ignore Carry Nation.  


Being a woman of faith, Carry prayed for divine guidance and that is exactly what she received.  She wrote in her autobiography that heard a voice from above that said, "Take something in your hands and throw at those places and smash them!"


Carry knew how to follow orders from above and she started the very next day, June 5, 1900.  Singing hymns and full of holy fire, Carry went to the neighboring town of Kiowa, a 20 mile drive, and entered a saloon. The men were amazed to see a woman enter their establishment; especially a woman of 53 years wearing black and carrying something wrapped in newspaper.  Declaring that she had come to "save them all from doom", it only took her a few minutes to unwrap the bricks and stones and start throwing.  She smashed all the bottles, the two front windows and the mirror behind the bar.

        
Carry moved on to bigger and better as she headed to the most elegant bar in Kansas, located in Wichita.  The $1,500 mirror behind the bar was the pride and joy of the saloon owner.  As the mirror was shattered, Carry shouted "Glory to God, Peace on earth, good will to men."


When the Wichita police arrived and they informed Carry they had to arrest her for defacing property, she replied, "Defacing?  I am defacing nothing!  I am destroying!"


In the following trial, many residents spoke up in her defense, reminding the court that the saloons she dismantled were illegal to begin with. Charges were dismissed and Carry won a moral victory as well as a good deal of national publicity.


In the next year, Carry dismantled over 20 saloons.  Her name was notorious, causing many a saloonkeeper to tremble.  When she arrived in town, many saloons would close down for the day or hire armed guards.  


Finally, Carry began to use a hatchet instead of the bricks and stone.  The hatchet became trademark.  Being religiously inspired, Carry would perform great feats of strength such as tearing icebox doors off their hinges, and one time she ripped a huge cash register off it's moorings on the bar, lifted it over her head and sent it flying half way across the room.  No wonder those men would tremble at the thought of facing Carry Nation. Her most ambitious raid was in Washington D.C. at the Union depot.  She used three hatchets named "Faith, Hope and Charity."


Notoriety brought many opportunities to make money to help the cause.  A weekly newspaper  "The Hatchet" and souvenir hatchets helped support the raids and pay for legal expenses.  


Carry's last raid was in Butte, Montana in 1910, and due to health problems, Carry collapsed in Eureka Springs, Arkansas a few months later.  She died in Leavenworth Kansas on June 9, 1911.  But she had left her mark on history and if she were alive today, she'd be a mighty busy woman.


Fred says, family stories tell that Carry Nation even came to Webb City in her campaign to rule out alcohol. She traveled all over the United States and her reputation grew.


Thanks Fred, for all the wonderful information on this woman who knew what she stood for and let nothing stop her.  What a great piece of history




                                                              John Conner

Jacob and Ida Conner raised 10 children and spent their last years in their home at 511 West First, in Webb City where they were able to visit with many of their descendents each day.


One of their most famous descendents is Bart Conner, 1984 Olympics double gold medal winner.  He is now more famous for being the husband of Olympic "Perfect Ten" Nadia Comenici.  Bart and Nadia plan on attending the 2001 family reunion.  Each August the Conner Family Reunion is held at the W.C. Senior Citizens building.  Usually 60 to 90 descendents of Jacob and Ida gather to renew contacts and to honor the remaining members of the Conner family.


The subject of this story is Jacob and Ida's son, John Conner.  Born in Mayes County, Oklahoma in 1901, John learned to farm, play guitar and sing.  Even in his later years, he would sing all the verses of "The Old Rugged Cross" while he worked.  John and his wife Beulah (DeMoss) raised four children: Johnnie May Conner Huey, Harold (Bud) Conner, Myrtle Lee Conner Babbit, and Dee Conner.  The parents, like most depression survivors, insisted that each child achieve significant goals in school and graduate from college.  All four children had outstanding careers in teaching, accounting, engineering, and/or management.  The 12 grandchildren, 12 great grandchildren and many great-great grandchildren carry on the family tradition of achievement.  Several of the descendents still live in Webb City.


John Conner left many monuments to his hard work and skill in Webb City.  As a skilled mason, he completed over 100 masonry projects with his distinctive style that can be seen in many buildings around Webb City and the area.  Many customers wanted the mixed look of Carthage marble masonry, which was the signature of John Conner's work.   


For over 40 years, the Conners lived at 216 South Ball, now the home of Carla Butler.  This beautiful home is an example of the unique masonry construction that John Conner was known for.


Throughout the town, many homes were given that special touch, which changed an old, deteriorated home into a showplace with the stone masonry that only John, could seem to accomplish.  Some customers would request sandstone or brick, but John knew his expertise was in Carthage marble, not brick.


It seems that John Conner has left another legacy in Webb City.  According to his son, Harold, John requested the installation and paid for the construction of the elevator in the Central Methodist Church.   Beulah Conner benefited from that elevator as many others have I'm sure.


A special thanks to Harold Conner for sharing information about his father.  I've always admired that particular masonry as my husband's aunt and uncle, Grace and Walter Klein lived in one of those houses on Ellis Street.  Harold has supplied some photos of John Conner's work.  


Several of the Conner family members helped John in his construction projects.  Sons, Bud and Dee worked on many of the houses and even completed several on their own.  John's brother Basil, brother-in-law Jim DeMoss, nephews Lloyd Wingo, Donald Lee and others worked on many of John's masonry projects.  


I couldn't have said it any better than Harold did in his letter..."The legacy of visual monuments to John's artistic masonry are always a pleasure whenever descendants return to Webb City.  He is remembered not only for the benefits of hard work by a strong man, but as a good person and good example for the whole Conner Family."


Thanks again Harold for sending us these wonderful memories of John Conner, (1901 - 1983).




Wayne Sterett and John Wolf

On October 4, 1915, after traveling from Webb City to Branson by train, Wayne Sterett and John Wolf  headed out on White River in a little canoe. Their destination was the grand town of New Orleans. Each week, Wayne Sterett would write a few words about their adventures on the water and send it to the W.C. Sentinel.  At the end of each article, he would give the information of which town they would be in next, and he always asked them to send Sentinels to that next address, so they would have news of home.


I want to take this time to relate the wonderful adventures of Webb City's very own Tom Sawyer and Huck Finn.  Now Wayne Sterett had graduated from Webb City High School in 1910 and had continued a study of science and electricity. He dabbled a little in some new fangled inventions and then he got this crazy idea to take a trip to New Orleans by canoe.


Not being a shy person, Wayne made many friends as he traveled along and he asked many questions, which the folks who lived along the river seemed more than happy to answer. He said that he had many wonderful Southern stories, but we don't have any record of them...too bad! 


The boys never paddled on Sundays. They always tied up their canoe, changed into clean clothes, had a good dinner and went over their Sunday School lesson, just as if they were at home.  


On the first report, Wayne said they had traveled 225 miles shooting the white rapids through the Ozark Mountains and had only spent 33 cents so far. They had dined on such wonderful delicacies as frog legs. Wayne used the rest of the frog for fish bait and caught a 5 1/2 pound catfish.  He had a huge frying pan, but it still took two batches to fry up that fish. The boys said the hunting and fishing was splendid. There were plenty of squirrels, ducks, geese and turkey, not to mention an abundance of nuts and pawpaws.  In spending the 33 cents, they gave a woman a quarter to bake them some fresh bread and they spent 8 cents on a peck of sweet potatoes.


Because of a flood in August, many pumpkins were growing along the bank side and Wayne stewed it in the evening, wrapped it in a blanket and had it for breakfast the next morning.  


What was interesting was the many commercials that Wayne included in his reports, such as: "We bought our clothing at Humphreys and we both think they are the best outing clothes that we have ever seen."  He also brags on the canoe when he states: "If we had any other kind of boat it would have taken a little over twice as long, Robert Stewart and Beverley Bunce are the Webb City agents for these canoes, which are the best in the world."


Wayne mentions the town of Buffalo, Arkansas and he said "they claim to have a hundred or more people but I believe that they must have counted the pigs and chickens. One grocery store man had his chickens penned up on the porch in front of the store and you had to go to the back door to get in.  Another had a general merchandise store and hotel combined with pigs running loose in the store."


The water was so clear that the boys could watch the bass swim under the canoe. They experimented fishing with a wooden minnow. At night the owls and wolves made so much noise there was no chance of sleep. Traveling along the river was magical, as the beauty was overwhelming.  


The houseboats along the river were homes to the many families that were crawfooting for mussels. They looked them over for pearls and then sold the shells to the button factory at Augusta.  A powerboat would run up and down the river buying the shells.


One month after leaving Branson, the duo reached the end of the White River and turned their canoe into the Mississippi River. Quite a change as the waters turned muddy.


One day, they were caught in a rainstorm and everything got wet.  As the sun set, a heavy fog settled on the water. The river was two miles wide and it got dark before they could reach the shore and then they couldn't see the shore. They just let the boat float along on it's own.  After awhile, they could hear voices and hollered for them to show a light, which they did.  They were able to pull up along side a houseboat. When they climbed aboard, they found out the owners of the houseboat were in as sad a shape as they were.  They couldn't find land either and they had no furniture or supplies on the boat. They just drifted along until they drifted into a pocket of the river and tied up to an old fallen tree. They went on shore and made a fire to fry some bacon and make coffee. After dinner, they climbed aboard the houseboat again as a strong wind sprang up. The next morning they floated into Greenville, Mississippi where one of the men in the houseboat had some family. The boys ate some good southern cookin'.


Wayne commented that even though it had been many years since the Civil War, the south had not recovered and it was very evident.


When the boys reached Vicksburg, Mississippi, John Wolfe decided he was homesick and abandoned ship to return to Webb City. Wayne Sterett sent a postcard to the Sentinel that read, "I am the captain, the mate and the crew. The cook and pilot too. John is homesick for some of the folks around Webb City and is going back home. I am going on, so send me some Sentinel papers to Natchez, Miss."


In his next report, Wayne says that some of the nicest people that he has ever met are from the south. He noticed that all of the post office clerks have been women, then he goes on to make an unusual statement. "Another thing was that there are so many pretty girls down here.  One thing that I do not like is that nearly all of them paint their cheeks. The day that John went home his lips were both sore and swollen: I bet that face paint is poison, but I can not figure out how he came to get it on his lips. I intend to be very careful not to get any on my lips, (before coming home.)"


Before leaving Webb City, Wayne bought some big fishhooks and he received quite a bit of teasing, but he was determined to use them.  This is his fish story: "I had one of those fish hooks baited and hung to about twenty-five feet of line weighted with lead and tied to the back of my canoe.  I had forgotten about it, until a big catfish came along and began to run up stream at about ten miles an hour, pulling and the canoe with him and turning around several times. I felt like I did not know whether that fish had me or I had the fish. I worked him to the top once but I could not begin to hold him as he was nearly as large as I was. I was going to let him run until he got tired and then drag him out on a sand bar. He ran for about three miles and we met a steam boat and he headed straight for it, so I had to cut the line and let him go." Now that's a fish story!


Wayne thought about the hunters back home as he would come upon bunches of wild geese with five hundred to two thousand geese making enough noise to hear for miles.  


When Wayne finally reached New Orleans after 40 days in the canoe and spending only $17, he immediately checked into the Y.M.C.A., which was set up like a hotel. The first thing on the agenda was sightseeing. 


The return trip home was aboard the Natchez Steamboat with first class treatment all the way.  His canoe was sent by freight to Webb City.  As he traveled along in comfort, Wayne couldn't help but think about the 40 days and 1300 miles he had just traveled.  An old steamboat pilot said that due to the currents and channels, Wayne had traveled nearly 2000 miles instead of 1300.


What an adventure, for two young men, in a time era when only small towns were few and far between, along the river.  What a story they had to share with their grandchildren. And it was well documented in the Sentinel.


A special thanks to Tom Hartman for sharing the 1915 newspaper articles with us.

Coach Charlie Cummings

            


1908- 2003





Written August 6, 1996
I received a wonderful letter from a 1925 WCHS graduate, Galen Campbell.  Galen was prompted to write after learning of a reunion in Indiana.  Now, what does a reunion in Indiana have to do with our Webb City history?  Well, a lot if a member of that reunion was a past WCHS graduate and a past athletic coach for Webb City students.


I'm referring to a young gentleman by the name of Charlie Cummings, known to most people as Coach Cummings.  Charlie graduated in 1925 with Galen Campbell and with another buddy, Woodson Oldham.  The three were able to get together for a visit before Judge Oldham passed away last November.


The reunion referred to was to celebrate the Indiana State Championship of 1946 which was won by the Anderson High School team under the talented coaching of Coach Cummings.   The sport being celebrated was basketball, but Coach wasn't limited to just basketball...he also mastered football.


After graduating form high school, and leaving behind quite a reputation as being adept at sports, Charlie went on to college from 1925 - 1929.  Then he shared his talent in Carterville, coaching that first year out of college.   Webb City took advantage of the opportunity to snatch up this up and coming young coach and he began with the WC school system in 1931.


According to the 1933 annual, he was highly thought of.  The annual states; 'This was Coach Cummings third and most successful year as coach of the Cardinals.  During his time here he has produced the two best football teams W.C.H.S. had ever had.  Perhaps this can be attributed to the loyal devotion he inspires in his players, and the high grade of football he teaches them.  Webb City High School would be sorry to lose Coach Cummings, as the loss would be a hard blow to athletics."


Well, all good things must come to an end, and W.C. did lose their coach.  Charlie went to Indiana and was well appreciated and stayed there until his retirement.  He coached at Crawfordville before going to Anderson.  Later he became the Athletic Director of Anderson schools.


Upon retirement, Coach and his wife Gladys (Kungle) Cummings (who retired from teaching also) moved to Arkansas.  After Mrs. Cummings passed away, Coach went to live with his son, Michael back in Anderson, Indiana where he is among many friends and admirers.


Gladys (Kungle) Cummings family lived outside Carterville and owned the Kungle Orchards. Coach's father was John Cummings and he worked for the Joplin Globe for many years.  


Coach is now 87 years young and seemed to really enjoy the reunion in Indiana with former team members.  He had many fond memories of the State Championship, but he also had one sad memory.  The morning after the big win, Coach called his father to discussed the triumph, only to discover that after listening to the championship game on the radio, John Cummings passed away in his sleep.   But I'm sure his last thoughts were happy ones as he recalled the success of his son.


I would like to give a special thanks to Galen Campbell for taking the time to share this information with us.  He seemed to know Coach pretty well, to supply all this wonderful information.  He also recalled that one of Coach's team members that he coached was Kenneth Kneeland, whom Galen states was a Star Athlete, which is the same description Galen gave to Coach, so Kenneth I think that's quite a compliment!

                     Wilfred T. Smith





        Written 11-28-00

We recently received a wonderful letter from Wilfred Smith that contained a few of his memories of growing up in Webb City.  What I liked most about his letter is the "little details" that help us to picture in our minds what he remembers.  I'd like to share his memories with you, in his own words.


I was born on North Main Street, just north of the Independent Gravel railroad tracks, on the west side of the road in 1927, moved to town on North Hall Street in 1943 where for the first time we had electricity, running water, a bathroom with inside toilet, gas cook stove, kitchen sink and city sidewalks, none of which we ever had before- we kids thought we had died and gone to heaven.  I graduated from Webb City High School in the class of 1945 and was the only boy in the National Honor Society that year.  I enlisted in the U.S.Navy in 1945 and completed my enlistment and returned home in the end of 1948.  I married in 1953 and moved to Beef Branch south of Joplin and worked at Myer's Wholesale Hardware Distributing Company.  We moved to Indiana in 1956...so I haven't lived in Webb City since 1953 but still like to keep up with the local news even after being gone for forty-seven years.


How times have changed.  I went four years at the old Webster grade school (torn down in 1935), my fifth grade at the old Franklin grade school (also condemned and torn down), sixth grade at the "new" Webster built in 1936 by the WPA and then on to the old Webb City High School on west Broadway (now also torn down).  In those days there was one teacher per class - no subs or aids, no school buses - we walked, no cafeteria - we took our lunch in a sack and ate in the home lunch room, school hours were from 9 AM to 12 noon and from 1 to 4 PM and no parking lots as most school kids were too poor to own a car thus no driver's education program, fall term never started till after Labor Day and during the summer vacation months the schools shut down entirely.


I like to keep up with the progress Webb City has made over the years, the new buildings and homes being built at a rapid rate, the school administration program which is second to none and the athletic program and winning ways in all sports is excellent.  Almost all of the chat piles are gone and the mines all but a memory.  Where I was born there were chat piles all around north of town all the way to Oronogo.  I learned to swim in Center Creek at the bridge.  People drove their cars off the road and down onto a sand bar and washed them and back then the creek was not polluted.  Yes, times have changed.


I even named my second son with name of Allen after the old name of Main Street, which was Allen Street before that.  As a child I could see a wooden signpost with Main Street, but the paint had faded off and Allen Street reappeared underneath.


I really enjoyed Mr. Smith's letter.  Did you catch it where he said he moved "into town" from over by Independent Gravel Company.  The boundaries of our town have extended.   He was really fortunate to get that inside plumbing in the 40's because I know of several folks who didn't have those conveniences until the 1960's!


And wouldn't it be neat to have that old sign that showed both the names of Main Street.  What a keepsake that would have been!  


Thanks Wilfred T. Smith for sharing your memories with us.  You took us down memory lane with you and it was a wonderful trip!





                 Oldhams

John William Oldham was born in Clay County, Illinois to Daniel and Mahala (Sims) Oldham who had previously lived in Kentucky. John was a farmer and loved it. He married Rebecca Dudman who hailed from Illinois. Rebecca's father was William Dudman. Rebecca died in 1889,leaving two sons and two daughters; George L., Alva, Sallie E. Smith, Minnie B. Garrett.

Alva Oldham, having been raised on a farm, enjoyed working in agriculture. He purchased the J.H. Ralston property in Union Township, Jasper County in 1909. One hundred and sixty acres brought in plenty of harvest, which included hay, grain, and fruit with 5 acres of strawberries. The land also allowed him to have lots of stock of cattle and pigs. But the greatest benefit of his land was when he drilled down about 225 feet and found a rich vein of lead ore.

In 1890, Alva married May Sims, daughter of Frank W. and Minnie Perry Sims and they had four children, Ernest, R., Hugh D., Virgil T., and Cecil E. 

Virgil T. Oldham, born 1902 opened a service station in Webb City at northeast corner of Broadway and Webb Streets, behind Webb City bank. He owned and operated that service station for 40 years. Virgil passed away in 1981.

      "Nilson's grocery store had that homey feeling"




Published November 29, 1991

In 1890, a small grocery store opened in the north end of town. At the corner of Allen (now Main street) and Galena, this small grocery store carried anything you could possibly need, from country produce to flour, meal, feed, butter, eggs, vegetables, bottled and canned goods, meats, fruits, preserves, sweets and anything a good table would require.

Can't you almost imagine in your mind the wonderful smells that would greet you as you opened the door to enter the friendly atmosphere of S. Nilson Family Groceries? Sven Nilson himself would greet you, with his smiling face and his Swedish accent. His partner in business and marriage is Ida M. Peterson Nilson. They have been married since 1881 and they have a beautiful daughter, Miss Anna, who can occasionally be seen in the family grocery store helping out the business.

Being the good, honest Swedish native, S. Nilson has earned his reputation of being honest, thrifty, frugal, fair and square. This fine reputation has resulted in his prosperous business that requires two delivery wagons to respond to customer needs.

It would be great in this day and age to dial 140 and have that sweet Swedish voice ask what he can do for you. After giving your order to S.Nilson, in a matter of minutes, the wagon would be rushing to bring your groceries. And it would be added to your tab at the end of the month. You could trust that S.Nilson would supply you with the best possible merchandise at the lowest possible price.

Additional information on Sven Nilson: Sven was born May3, 1857 in Sweden. He came to America in 1869. He lived in Chicago for about one year before heading to Jasper County. He landed about 9 miles northwest of Webb City and proceeded to farm. Sven married Ida Peterson on May 30, 1881. Ida was from Georgia City. Their one child, Anna attended Webb City College at the age of 16. Sven's second wife was Ada Aylor, who died March 9, 1926 while staying in her winter home in West Palm Beach, Florida. Sven died December 2, 1937.




            The Woodmansee Family

At the age of 28, David S. Woodmansee, along with his brother, left Ohio and came to Southwest Missouri.  Their family had been one of many Quaker families that had settled in Ohio around 1685.  Nearly 200 years later, the Woodmansee boys left their family state and moved to this unsettled area of Missouri to try their hand at farming.


David S. Woodmansee was said to have laid out the town of Purcell and donated land for the cemetery.  Along with donating the land for the school, Woodmansee helped to finance and build the school.  


David and his wife Sarah Hussey are both buried in the Purcell cemetery.  Their son Newton, who was born in 1882, married Bertie Cummins in 1905.  Newton and Bertie had eight children:  Thelma, Fern, Harold, Herbert, Clara, Doris, Delbert, and Kenneth.   Newton and Bertie are both buried in the Purcell cemetery also. 


Another son of David and Sarah was Wilbur Woodmansee born in 1875.  Wilbur married Rose Schreck and they had four sons:  Lesley Earl, William Leroy (Roy), Frank Lynn, and Earnest Ray.  Roy Woodmansee received a lot of notoriety in 1915 when he was a miner trapped in the cave-in of the Longacre-Chapman mine on June 10.  Roy was rescued on June 15 after five days.  In 1976, Roy received notoriety again at the unveiling of Jack Dawson's kneeling miner at King Jack Park.  Roy, along with Frank Dale had posed in authentic mining apparel for Dawson.  


When David S. Woodmansee first settled in Southwest Missouri, he built a home for his family.   Newton Woodmansee (son of David and Sarah) lived in the home after his parents had passed away.  Harold Woodmansee (son of Newton and Birtie) lived in the home after his parents.  In 1970, after the death of Harold, Delbert and his wife Hazel bought the home and continued the Woodmansee heritage.  


It is thought that the Woodmansee home might be one of the oldest houses in Purcell.  What a neat heritage to have a home stay in the family through so many generations.  


There are many Woodmansees in the Purcell area and they all are descendents of David S. Woodmansee. 





Big Mama and Big Poppa

 




11/17/01


With Thanksgiving approaching, and the desire to mention the things we are thankful for in life, I am thrilled to be able to share the memories of Betty Martin, Carl Junction, as she recalls the example her Grandmother was to her as she thanked the Lord for all she had.


My Grandmother Morrison (Big Mama, as we called her) was born and raised in Alabama. As long as I can remember, she lived in a house that was nearly falling apart. It was nothing more than cardboard. I remember sometimes seeing newspaper on the walls to insulate. They didn’t have a real living room. One room had cane back chairs; two beds and an old treadle sewing machine, which she used until she died. The other room had two more beds, a dresser and a large chest. The kitchen was the heart of the home.


The front yard didn’t have any grass and it seems that was the way she wanted it, as I remember Big Mama sweeping the yard with a broom she had made out of twigs. And as she came across a small tuft of grass, she would pull it up.


Big Mama worked hard throughout her life helping Big Poppa, (my Grandfather) farm the land they owned. They farmed cotton and had quite a vegetable garden, which is what supported them from year to year. They had chickens, a cow and a pig. There was an old mule that Big Poppa used to plow the fields. I think Big Poppa also worked as a logger from time to time but he mostly farmed.


They had little in material things. There wasn’t plumbing in the house. The well from which Big Mama fetched her water each day was about 12 feet from her kitchen door. She literally lowered a bucket down into the well each morning and night to get the water she used each day. She cooked on an old wood stove up until 1966.  


After Big Poppa died, my parents insisted that Big Mama have a gas stove put in her home and the old wood stove was removed. But Big Mama put her foot down and refused to have indoor plumbing put into her home.


I remember going to stay with Big Mama and Big Poppa for a couple of weeks in the summer and occasionally we would go for Christmas. It seemed that we always lived too far away to go too often.


I have wonderful memories of a plain and simple life. I remember playing house out under the tall pine trees and gathering canning lids to use as our dishes. We ran with the chickens and played in the cornfields. We picked blackberries and wild plums on the side of the old dirt road where Big Mama lived. We ate watermelon under the pecan trees. It was always exciting, if Big Mama cut open a watermelon and it was yellow on the inside.


We used an outhouse in the daytime and pots under the bed at night. I remember having my hair washed in a large tin tub under the pecan trees and the smell of Ivory soap. I remember standing by the old wood stove with my sister Ann and waiting for the cornbread to be finished so we could “sap the pan”(as we called it).


It was Big Mama’s custom that when the dinner table was set, the plates were turned upside down. Never would you dare to turn a plate upright until after the blessing had been said. Oh, but the wait was worth it. For every meal was home cooked and delicious with such wonderful food as: fried chicken, potatoes, black-eyed peas, corn and every meal included cornbread and biscuits.


Every evening, as the day ended, we would sit on the porch in cane back chairs and just talk and play. Big Mama never missed a night that she did not pull her Bible out and read from its pages.


In the winter, I can remember how we would stand in front of the fireplace until the heat from the fire felt like it was burning our flannel pajamas and then we would run and jump into bed and pull the covers up as fast as we could. Sometimes, Big Mama would iron a sheet and put it in the bed so we would feel so warm and cozy. I still remember the course feeling of the sheets as they were made of flour sacks that had been pieced together. But they were clean and fresh and once we were in the covers, it was wonderful to be all cuddled up!


After Big Poppa died, life continued the same around Big Mama’s home. There weren’t any cotton fields, but she continued to plow the fields and till her garden and store her food. She scrimped and saved and lived on her very meager income, never asking for help. She was self sufficient from the word go. Through all her hardships and simple way of life, I never once heard her complain. She was content and thankful for what she had...forever expressing to the Lord how thankful she was for all that she had been blessed with. What a wonderful example my Grandmother was to me.


In a day when children complain when they don’t have name brand clothing, fast food, or their own telephone, it seems hard to imagine someone being content and feeling blessed with so little. Maybe we should all take a moment to realize how fortunate we are to have shelter, food and family. And wonder why we feel that we have to have so much to be happy!   


Thank you Betty for sharing such wonderful memories of your grandparents. And helping us to realize that it’s the simple things in life that make us happy!




HAPPY THANKSGIVING!!!





          Wade Hewlett






     7/03/01


Joe Hewlett sent a wonderful letter relating his father’s youth in the West End of town. Joe is married to Patty Wise and his father was Wade Hewlett. Joe gives the West End Pharmacy credit for him being around today. Here is his story in his own words:


My father, Wade Hewlett, was born in Webb City on February 16, 1917, at 104 North Oak Street. He later moved to 1201 West Daugherty. In notes, left by my father, any kid that lived on the West Side of town was one of the “West End Kids”. My dad was friends with Harold Dowell, Leroy Smith and Jack Mayfield. Dad and Harold worked at the West End Pharmacy for Bob Burris, while Leroy worked for his Dad at Smith Paint Store, just a couple doors up from the pharmacy.


In 1938, my Dad worked at Berrian’s Grocery,1001 West Daugherty, for Carroll and Bess Berrian. The Berrian’s were wonderful people. He worked there in the daytime and in the evenings at the Pharmacy where he was a soda jerk and carhop, along with Harold Dowell.


My Mom had just graduated from Monett High School and moved to 1227 West Broadway. She worked with Helen Hoerning at Hoerning’s Hardware and Lumber, 1003 West Daugherty, just two doors down from Berrians Grocery. My Mom and Helen would walk from the hardware store across the street to the West End Pharmacy, heading east on Daugherty. As they would cross the Frisco train tracks, my father and Ralph Platter, the butcher at Berrian’s, would slip out the side door and throw rotten potatoes a the young ladies. The potatoes would splatter on the pavement and get all over their legs. Of course, when they turned around, no one was in sight! My father mentioned to Ralph that he thought my mom was cute.


This led to my Dad wanting to meet my Mom. In 1940, they started dating, were married the first of September and I came along in 1942.  


So, the West End Pharmacy played a big part in me being here. Thank God for rotten potatoes, Berrian’s Grocery and the West End Pharmacy.  


I’m sure there are still some “West End Kids” that remember the West End!

A special thanks to Joe Hewlett for taking the time to share his dad’s memories.

          


     Webb City's 125th birthday
Webb City, the town that Jack built, was incorporated as a town on December 8, 1876, 125 years ago.  The pioneers that witnessed the birth of the city are no longer with us. We rely on local history books, family stories and old newspapers to tell us of the excitement associated with the new beginnings in Webb City, Missouri.  


John C. Webb had uncovered the first piece of lead in 1873. Webb and his partner Murrell started mining the land in 1874 but a problem with water delayed their mining business.  Webb leased his land to W.A. Daugherty and Granville Ashcraft and became a millionaire from the royalties.


As the town of Webb City was developing, wooden frame buildings were scattered around the area. But in 1875 when Webb had the town platted, the area took shape.  Webb was responsible for building the first hotel, the first brick business building and the first brick home.  He and his son E. T. Webb established the first bank.


When the town was platted, Webb set aside a city block to house the school, which was built in 1876 and the first church building which was built in 1882. By this time, the population of Webb City was 2000.


John C. Webb passed away in 1883, but he lived to see his city become a hub of activity as the Frisco depot was established in the West End of town in 1879. Then in 1881 the Missouri Pacific Railroad put their depot on the east side of town between Webb City and Carterville.  Being between two major railroad lines enabled Webb City to ship out the lead and zinc and bring in the people.


In 1879 the Webb City Sentinel was established.  John Webb and E.T. Webb established the Webb City Bank in 1882 and the Webb Corp started business as the Webb City Foundry in 1881.  These three businesses are the oldest businesses still in operation today. 


The discovery of lead brought the miners to this area.  But it was the zinc that brought in the money and made the district so wealthy.  It was funny, that when they first starting mining the area, as they would come across the zinc, they would cast it aside, only being interested in the lead.  Eventually, it was discovered that the zinc was very valuable and Webb City had an abundance hence the nickname “Zinc City”.


As air travel became popular in the area, it was a beauty to behold the many white mountains of tailing piles, backed up by mountains of chat piles. As more and more of those gravel piles disappear from view, a piece of history goes with them. Throughout the years, chat and gravel have been shipped to every state but Hawaii and Alaska. That gravel has been used in railroad ballasts, streets & roads, and concrete buildings.  It’s like a piece of Webb City has been shared throughout the United States.


Webb City has been fortunate to have every known mode of transportation, beginning with the stagecoach and trains. Later A.H. Rogers started the first mule drawn trolley, which later became the Electric Railway.  Horse and buggy was always a good means of transportation for most folks.  When the automobile came into existence, Granville Ashcraft had the distinction of buying the first one to show up on Webb City streets.  In later years, A.D. Hatten held the distinction of owning the first red automobile in Webb City in a time when all automobiles were black.


When the mining business left Webb City due to an ore strike in Oklahoma, Webb City’s leaders were determined that Webb City would not die.  They went to work bringing in several industries.  In 1920, Webb City received the distinction of increasing her industries more than any other city in the United States with an increase of 250%.  Webb City had such factories as: machine shops, shirt factories, shoe factory, milling companies, casket companies, ice company, ice cream and butter factory, three bottling companies, gravel company, lumber companies, meat packing company, cigar company and several dairies.


Many pioneer names make up the history of Webb City, such as: John C. Webb and his son E.T. Webb;  W.A. Daugherty and his son James Daugherty; Colonel James O’Neill and his son-in-law George Bruen; George W. Ball and his son W. Claude Ball; Joseph C. Stewart and his brother W.C. Stewart and his cousin James P. Stewart; C.R. Chinn and his son W.S. Chinn and grandson, C.R. Chinn II; Joseph W. Aylor; C.E. Matthews; Andrew McCorkle; S.L. Manker and his son C.M. Manker; Colonel A.A. Hulett; Granville Ashcraft and his brother Samuel Ashcraft; Joseph Allen Hardy and his sons George Hardy, J.Allen Hardy, jr.; David Whitworth; W.S. Gunning; J.M. Burgner; G.W. Waring; H.C. Humphreys; E.E. Spracklen; John Dermott; T.C. Hayden; W.A. Corl and his brother G.F.C.Corl; R.B. Dodge; W.E. Patten; L.J. Stevison:A.D. Hatten: W.W. Wampler; S.H. Veatch and Thomas Coyne. Coyne was named Webb City Champion Booster in 1920 and given the silver cup that we now award to current Webb City Champion Boosters.  This year’s recipient is Bob Foos.  Recent recipients have been Kathryn Patten, Jerry Fisher and Eileen Nichols.


Webb City, in her past has offered many wonderful past times such as weekly concerts in the Memorial Park, a golf course, and many fun activities at Lakeside Park which was owned and operated by the Southwest Missouri Railway Association of Webb City.


 Webb City has had three hospitals, Jane Chinn Hospital, the Tuberculosis Hospital and the Salvation Army Hospital. plus the Mendenhalls Osteopathic Sanitorium.  


There have been many changes to the city of Webb City throughout the years.  Some changes were due to progress, some to fires, and some to neglect. But there seems to be a complete turn around as we see the citizens of Webb City taking pride in their community.  Old historical homes are being repaired, businesses remodeled and improvements being made to the city parks.  Pride in the school system and an interest in Webb City’s historical past will help the city to stay in tip top condition to celebrate her 150th birthday in 2026.




             Titanic Slim Thompson

                                  

3/10/00

We live in an age when a sense of humor is in great demand.  If more people had a sense of humor we wouldn’t be hearing about road rage, bar fights, etc.  If we could learn to laugh away our frustrations, life would be a paradise.


I came across a story about a young man in the early days of Joplin and Webb City.  This young man had such a determination in life that he could accomplish anything he set out to accomplish.  If someone was better at a certain sport, than he would practice and work at it until he had mastered the sport in question.


With such a great determination and such a talent to succeed, this young man was destined to become famous. And famous he did become!


As a young boy in Cassville, Titanic Slim Thompson discovered that he had a talent for throwing a baseball farther than any of the other boys in town. Being an adventurer, Ti headed to the bigger town of Joplin. He was amazed at the number of men who associated at the saloons each night.  He also watched and noticed that as the men drank; they became more willing to place bets on what they thought were sure wins.


This was the beginning of Ti’s unusual profession. Titanic became a professional swindler! His talent for pitching baseballs became the first of his bets. He would bet anyone who was willing to participate that he could throw the ball the farthest. He was able to make a little bit of money, but before long, none of the men were willing to bet, his reputation was spread around town. So, he had to come up with something new...and he did!  


He was constantly working on new schemes to hook the men into a bet. There was a bartender from Texas, named Gooddee who had to take a lot of harassment from the men because he hadn’t been to school and couldn’t even spell d-o-g. So, Ti took the bartender aside and worked with him for weeks, teaching him to spell two words... hippopotamus and rhinoceros.  When he felt his pupil was ready, Ti went to work on the men in the saloon.


He calmly made a remark that maybe Gooddee wasn’t so dumb, maybe he could spell a really big word. The men were inquisitive and asked, “like what?” And Ti led them along and suggested that maybe the bartender could spell the name of some big animals like hippopotamus and rhinoceros. The men were willing to take Ti up on this bet and they all sauntered up to the bar where Gooddee was working and Ti said, “Hey Gooddee can you spell hippopotamus for us?


Well, the bartender was kind of proud of what he was about to spell, so he squared up his shoulders and in a voice that announced his confidence, he spelled “R-h-i-n-o-c-e-r-o-s”  Okay, so Ti didn’t win all of his bets. He knew that this loss was due to him overcompensating, he should have taught Gooddee only one word not two.


But most of the time, Ti was a winner. Like the time he bet that he could make a cat pick up a coke bottle and carry it for 30 feet. The men accused him of having a trained cat, but Ti assured them that he could do it with an old alley cat from out back. The bet was on and a cat was brought in from the alley, but first he wrapped his handkerchief securely around the coke bottle. Ti picked up the cat by the tail.  When a cat is suspended in this position it’s claws will grab at anything it can reach and so Ti hung this poor cat by the tail over the coke bottle and it’s claws grabbed that handkerchief and actually picked up the bottle. Ti then proceeded to carry the cat for 30 feet and it held onto the bottle the entire way. Chalk another one up for Titanic.


One time, Ti bet that he could throw a pumpkin onto the roof of the eight story Conner Hotel. This seemed like a sure bet to those within earshot because they knew he could not bet a good enough momentum on something as big as a pumpkin. So the crowd headed outside to see Ti lose another bet.  Well, the older Ti got, the trickier he became. Outside, Ti had a small pumpkin that was practically petrified from being dried out and it was about the size of a baseball (remember Ti could out throw anyone with a baseball). Ti picked up that little pumpkin and easily threw it onto the roof of the Conner Hotel.


While traveling to Commerce with some friends, they saw a farmer working in the fields not far from Commerce. The question came up that they wondered what the farmer might be planting. Ti simply stated that the farmer was planting Hemp. Well, his audience said that no body planted hemp around this area and he was wrong. They took him up on a bet and decided that the next morning they would walk out to the farm and ask the farmer what he was planting.  Sure enough, bright and early the next morning, the guys walked out to the farmer's field and asked what he was planting and he replied, “hemp!”  The guys paid Ti and it wasn’t until later they found out he had went out in the middle of the night and bribed the farmer into saying he was planting hemp.


There were many more stories about Titanic and his unusual profession. The last bet that many remember Titanic being involved with was in Kansas City.  While standing by a large lake, Ti commented that he could drive a golf ball across the lake. This was a feat that was humanly impossible to accomplish, so everyone was willing to take him up on the bet. The only thing Ti requested was that he would get to choose the date. They all agreed, and it was on a really cold day that Ti made his decision to drive that golf ball across the “frozen” lake.  Many say that golf ball is probably still going!


Ti made a lot of money in his life time, but he had to leave many a town late at night and in a hurry as he swindled many people.  Some with a sense of humor could enjoy someone like Titanic Slim Thompson, but unfortunately, even in those days there were many without that sense of humor (especially those who lost money!)


But he had to have been an interesting person to be around.  And even though he stood over 6 foot, he had a little resemblance to a leprechaun and just about as sneaky!

Happy St. Patrick’s Day! 




Joplin Municipal Airport


When I first became interested in the history of Webb City, I talked to many “old-timers” and I heard tales that had been “passed on” to them or that they remembered from their childhood.  One story that I have often repeated turns out to be one of those “uh-ohs” that wasn’t quite so. I had been told that the Joplin airport was originally called the Webb City Airport and that Webb City sold it to Joplin.  Well, many years later, I finally did my homework and researched the airport and now I know...”the rest of the story” and I will share it with you.


Starting my story way back in the Spring of 1919; there was a new company established in Joplin at Third and Kentucky and it was called the Hiland-O’Brien Airplane Company.  The goal of this new company was to manufacture aircraft of the Curtis type and they were to head up an Aviation school with the chief pilot being Thomas Webber who had recently returned from overseas service.


By the fall of 1919, this prosperous company now listed as the “Hiland Airplane Company had completed it’s seventh airplane in just a few short months.  It was suggested that Joplin should become a “port of call” for cross-country fliers by establishing a municipal landing field with hangars.  


As the Hiland Airplane Company would complete each plane they would launch from the Schifferdecker Park.  Many pilots would come to this area to have their planes repaired and they also used the Park for landing and taking off.   Many stated they would be willing to use the services of the Hiland Airplane Service except for the lack of suitable landing fields.  The nearest repair service and factory other than Joplin was Chicago.


It wasn’t until October of 1927, eight years later, that those plans were to become a reality.  Plans were made to acquire 160 acres close to Seventh and Schifferdecker. The land was located just west of the Empire District Substation. The main advantage of this location was that the Schifferdecker Golf Links on the north and Oak Hill Golf Links on the south could provide emergency landing fields if needed.  


By January 1928, it was announced that Ozark Aviation, Inc. received the contract to provide school, transport and concession rights at the municipal airport. Ozark built a new hangar and started out with four aircrafts.


To get the public better acquainted with the sensation of flying, Ozark offered scenic tours of the region. The trip included a flight over Galena, Riverton, and Shoal Creek Valley at a cost of $5 for each passenger. The flights went out at 2, 4 and 6 o’clock each afternoon. For $12.50 a person could see the sights of Galena, Lowell, Baxter Springs, Commerce, Miami, Seneca, and Neosho.  And the elite flight for $25 would show the beauty of the Ozarks by flying over Monett, Aurora, Crane, (Galena, Missouri), Branson, Hollister, Lake Taneycomo, Ozark Dam, Forsythe and Springfield.  


Southwestern Air Fast Express brought some competition to the airport in March of 1929, when they offered flights from Joplin to Tulsa for $13 and from Joplin to St.Louis for $33.


By 1932, Joplin had become a popular stopping point for many aircrafts and the need for a new airport was in demand.  Not to mention the danger of the high-tension lines of the Electric Company which cut across the corner of the airport on Seventh Street.  


  Joplin was looking at a 400-acre tract of land east of Stone’s Corner and just north of the Joplin-Webb City road.  As the land was being cleared in preparation of the new airport, the uprooted trees were cut into stove wood by unemployed forces and were furnished to needy families through the Health and Welfare Association.  


‘The Junge Municipal Airport” was one of the best airports in the area. To make it known to the world and any planes flying overhead, gravel-filled trenches that spelled out Joplin, Mo. were completed in February of 1934. The letters were 40 feet across, they looked enormous from the ground but from the air they were merely large enough to distinctly outline the words.  Perfectly proportioned and spaced, the gravel-filled trenches were dug by CWA workmen who were helping to build the new airport.


History was made in April 1936,when a twin-engine plane landed at the “Joplin Municipal Airport”, marking the largest craft to land at the new airport. Mr. Pomeroy was the pilot and he was accompanied by W.Alton Jones, formerly of Webb City, who had moved to New York with the Cities Service Company.


The 750-pound revolving aeronautical beacon was installed at the airport in the summer of 1936.  In April of 1937, Joplin’s municipal airport was approved as a landing field for commercial planes for daylight stops for passengers and mail planes.


The hangar was completed in December 1937 with the offices on the north side of the building being highly modern with gas for heating and water from the airport’s deep well.  The first night flight, which required the turning on of the runway lights, was recorded in July 1945.


So, even though Webb City has shared the airport with Joplin all these years, it truly was originally the Junge Municipal (Joplin Municipal) Airport.  Many houses that were originally located along the north side of the Joplin-Webb City Road (south side of the airport) were moved to different areas, but most of them were moved to Stone’s Corner, including the home of Ma Barker and her boys. 




                 State Societies


As Jasper County was beginning to grow, many families moved into the area from all over the eastern part of the United States, but the majority that settled here in the SW corner of Missouri seemed to come from the states of Kentucky, Tennessee, Indiana and Ohio.  There were also many new families from Germany, Ireland, and England.  With Missouri becoming a huge melting pot.


Those families coming from overseas tended to settle in communities together.  They seemed to find comfort and strength from living close to each other.  Even if they weren’t acquainted in their previous countries, with family so far away, they became like family in this new territory.


Many knew that once they were settled in this newly developed county, that many would never see their homeland or home state again, as travel wasn’t as easy as it is today.  If it took two hours to travel from Oronogo to Webb City by stagecoach because of the mud, I can imagine that travel wasn’t a much sought after excursion.


And as the families settled in their new surroundings, there was still that touch of homesickness for their places of youth.  As we all know, the older we get, the more we live in the past. So, as these people from different states and countries grew in numbers and the years accumulated, it was decided that maybe it was time to organize some State Organizations.


In 1900, reunions were held at Lakeside Park with different states represented.  The first to organize a State Picnic was those from the blue grass state.  In August of 1900, as people from Kentucky met for the first time or renewed acquaintances, it was decided that a permanent organization should be formed.  


The Kentucky Association was formed with the president being Captain C.H. Price of Webb City; A.L. McCalley of Carthage was Secretary and Dr. A.B. Freeman of Joplin was the treasurer.


That same year, the Hoosiers met at Lakeside and formed the Indiana Society with Major John B. Lloyd as President.  The Buckeyes had a reunion at Lakeside and formed the Ohio Association with R.T. Stickney as President.  The Ohio Association had among it’s roster, three brothers, John, Joseph and Henry Cather who were named the oldest Buckeyes in attendance, having come to Jasper County from Ohio in 1848 and had resided in the Jasper County area continuously up to the organization of the Ohio Society in 1900.


Prior to this sudden organization of different State Societies in 1900, there was an organization known as the Jasper County Old Settlers’ Association which was officially organized January 1, 1879 at which time a previous organization known as the Carthage Pioneer Club which had been organized one year earlier, merged with the new Association.


The first picnic of the Jasper County Old Settlers’ Association was held on May 5, 1879 at the Carthage City Park and about 400 people were in attendance.  Many stories were told about settling in this new territory.  I which they would have had video cameras in those days as those stories would be priceless.


And I’m sure that each of the State Societies that were formed had interesting stories shared at each of their reunions held at Lakeside Park.  It was rumored that at many of the State Society Reunions, it was not unusual for members of families who had lost contact with each other to be reunited.


Those Societies have long since gone by the way side, since now a days, it’s hard to say anyone came from any one state as the whole United States has become a melting pot.  We can say our families originated in a particular state, but in those instances, there are usually reunions of particular families instead of residents of a certain state. But, it’s still important to gather as a family to keep memories and traditions alive in the youth. Shared stories of grandparents and great grandparents become a cherished inheritance. You may think the youth are not interested, but as I go to the high school to talk to the Missouri History classes each year, I am amazed at how many of the students have a story about their grandparents to share with me. They do care about their family history, if not now they will in the future and then it might be too late to be able to locate those precious stories.


Share your knowledge.  Leave stories that can be treasured.  Put them in a notebook, on a recorded cassette or on a camcorder; just take the time to leave a legacy.  

That would be a good New Years Resolution!!


Special thanks to all the callers who let me know that the storm of last week's story was in the year 1951.  One particular caller could even identify the actual date and that was Terry James. His memory was so good because that was the night he proposed to Rosemary. He said that even though Rosemary’s house was located right in the middle of the storm area, she slept right through the whole thing. The part that I found ironic was that the story last week was on July 3, 1998 and the date that remains so vivid in Terry James’ mind is July 3, 1951.  The story was on the exact date of the storm, 47 years later!





Freddie Abbott





               7/09/98


In going through some notes, I ran across a story about a young lad that I want to share with you.  


The year is 1880 and spring is in the air. The date is March 25.  All the tiny flowers are beginning to bloom and the birds are singing.  As the teacher rings her brass bell, the students run out of the building, whoopin’ and hollerin’. They have had to sit quietly at their desks all day and that pent up energy is busting loose.


One little nine-year-old, named Freddie Abbott, is running with his friends and he can’t seem to get enough of the fresh air. The boys start playing leap frog, and Freddie is the littlest one of all and as the boys push down on his back, he feels their weight, but he doesn’t complain, because he wants to fit in with the crowd...he wants the boys to like him. This is the first year that they haven’t called him “the runt”, and he just knows they are starting to like him!


It’s about a mile to Freddie’s house. His father has his doctor’s office in the house. So when Freddie gets home, he has to do the chores and keep quiet so as not to disturb the patients who are waiting to see the doctor.  


As Freddie is running and playing, the thought of the chores creeps into his mind, but he quickly pushes those thoughts away and continues to play games with his friends. The boys decide to play tag, and as they are running, someone bumps into Freddie and he falls against a jagged stone. The pain that shoots up Freddie’s leg is almost unbearable, but he can’t let the other boys see him cry, so he has to be brave.


One of the boys runs over to have a look. His face turns pale as he sees the bone sticking out of the gash on Freddie’s leg.  Freddie reaches his hand up for the lad to help him get up, but his hand is waving in thin air, as the boy has run off.  He ran to the group and he’s telling them something and now they are all running off.  


“Please, help me.  Don’t leave me.  Hey you guys, come back.”  But Freddie’s pleas are not heard as the boys scattered in several directions.  


Try as he might, Freddie just can’t get up. The pain is getting more and more unbearable and the tears are beginning to trickle down his cheek as he still tries to be brave, just in case one of the boys might come back to help him.


Then Freddie sees some older boys, young men, walking down the street. As they came into view, Freddie pleads with them, “Please tell my papa to come get me, I think my leg is broken.”  But the young men walk right on by as if Freddie is invisible.  The anguish overcomes Freddie and he lays his head in his arms and sobs.  He doesn’t care who sees him crying and he doesn’t care who thinks he is weak.  He wants his dad and he doesn’t see any way of getting home.


Finally, a young man by the name of Alex McClaron happens to be walking down the other side of the street, when he hears Freddie’s sobs.  He crosses over and examines Freddie’s leg and he knows the boy is in a lot of pain.  He gently picks up the young lad and carries him to the Abbott home.


Dr. Abbott is able to mend little Freddie’s leg and relieve some of the pain. It’s nice to know that someone like Alex McClaron will come along when you need a friend.  It’s a shame that the boy had to lay there and suffer, as there were plenty to give him assistance, but they had no compassion.  But I can’t imagine being able to walk right by someone in need of help and not doing something about it.


They say that we have reached a time that we are reluctant to help someone in need for fear of being put in a compromising situation.  But I would hope that society has not forgotten the parable of the Good Samaritan.  


It doesn’t hurt anyone to hold the door open for a senior citizen, or to reach something high on a shelf for someone in a store.  Or maybe let a young mother loaded down with small children ahead of you in a line.  Don’t let this hard cruel world; take away the pleasure of assisting someone in need.


I’m through preaching now!!  Thanks again to all whom have called about the storm and to those who have called about the war memorabilia; I have not forgotten you.  We will be in contact as the date gets closer.  We don’t want the items until we have the proper place to put them securely.




                     Fred Smith






6/25/97


Before the Civil War had even begun, Missouri was being torn apart by violence and disorder as “pro slavery forces” tried to win Kansas and Missouri to their side.


Missouri, from the very beginning claimed to be neutral, but stayed in the Union, which made some pro slavery forces feel that Missouri was sympathizing with the North.


After the war broke out, most of the Missouri population stayed loyal to the Federal Government, largely due to the activity of strong unionists likes Francis P. Blair.


The state convention, which first met in 1861, voted against seceding from the Union.  But as usually happens in wartime, nothing stays the same.  The Governor, C.F. Jackson, was a Southern sympathizer, and it didn’t take long for the convention to depose the Governor. They set up a provisional government headed by H. R. Gamble.

This next part is from the memories of a Confederate Civil War vet named Frederick A. Smith: It was in the spring of 1861 as near as Smith can recall, when the event took place.  The state legislature, harassed by Union forces, had fled to Neosho and had set up temporary headquarters in the old log courthouse.  General Sterling Price’s army was camped in the vicinity and young Smith, a member of a volunteer company from Charlton County, was also a soldier in Price’s army.


“I wasn’t a member of the legislation, of course,” said Smith in a 1930 interview.

“Before the war, we had organized a mock legislature in Charlton County, and I was the one who wrote and introduced the resolution for the secession of Missouri.”


“Well, while the legislation was in session at Neosho, a man named Andy Campbell, told Price about my writing the resolution in Charlton County.  The result was they asked me to write a similar one.  I did and they passed it!” Neosho was declared the Missouri State Capital.


What an important episode in the life of young Smith, but the resolution was ineffective as Missouri was kept in the Union. But, Smith at the age of 21 had already led a full and active life, having survived many battles such as: Carthage, Springfield (Wilson Creek), Cross Hollows, Pea Ridge, Pittsburgh Landing, Corinth, and Vicksburg.


Smith was taken prisoner near Steelville, Missouri as he was trying to make it home.  He had been one of only thirteen to survive the battle at Vicksburg.  His captor was General Mullins, who just happened to have been a prisoner of war under Smith’s custody and as soon as possible ordered Smith’s release and escort home.


After the war and a little moving around, Smith received a grant of land in Oronogo Missouri and he settled down for many years. In 1935, at the age of 95, Smith was recognized as the only remaining Civil War vet in Jasper County.


In his long life, Frederick Smith had the distinction of being a city Marshall in Pierce City, a Sheriff in Lawrence County and a long time Justice of the Peace and lawyer in Oronogo.  


The last 10 years of his life were spent in the home of his son, Paul Smith, 1305 West Sixth, Webb City.  But he passed away in the Confederate Home in Higginsville, Missouri after residing there only a few months.


Having been born in Keytesville, Missouri, in 1840, Frederick Smith had been a lifelong resident of Missouri.  He received an honorable grave in the Confederate cemetery in Higginsville and he was buried in the gray uniform of the Confederate soldier.


What a surprise, to find out we had such a legendary figure living in Oronogo and Webb City.  And to find out that for a short time, Neosho was our acting state capitol while the legislature hid from Union forces.


There were more heroes in the Smith family as A. Chester Smith served our country in World War I and his son Chester A. Smith served in WWII and was held a prisoner of war by the Germans for 14 months.


You know the Smith name is one of the hardest names to do genealogy on, along with names like Jones. But Greg Smith, has quite a legacy in his great grandfather, and a name to be proud of.  Thanks Greg for taking the time to share this wonderful information and memories of Judge Frederick A. Smith.




Let's go on a History Scavenger Hunt





      June 1998





A couple of Girl Scout Leaders asked me to make up a history scavenger hunt for their troops.  The girls would read the clues and have to figure out where the site was located and then go take a picture of it, to earn some of their badges.  Well, the girls had such a good time with this project, I thought maybe I would see if some of the readers might like to test their knowledge.  

1.  Our city founder had one son

2.  A grand building to teach the mind

     And E.T. was his name.


     Of young men and women the same.

     A house of brick he built with love
                  The basement later served the kids

     And still it stands in fame.


     With many a “swimming” game.

3.  In 1916, this building rose


4.  As young men came into our town

     The government was proud

                  This building they usually found.

     The city’s correspondence flew

     A bath, or room to sleep they had

     As the carriers had vowed


     A shelter for any young lad.

     Neither sleet, rain, nor dark of night
                   The building is gone, but not forgotten,

     Would slow the work endowed.

     The parking lot you must be sought in.

5.  Many schools have graced our town

 6.  A bank of stature, well known in town,

     But alas, many have been torn down.
      
     To avoid the fate of being torn down.

     Part of the first frame school is still standing,       Was turned into a childish place

     In a house on Broadway that has had alot of       Named after one with a wooden face.

                                                             sanding.

7.  The streetcar company had a club house
 8.  A monument  for our dear town

     That served the workers many hours.
                  It gets many looks, and very few frowns.

     It later served as a pin cushion for kids,              The words it bears cannot cease,

     But now is home to museum powers.                  Hands in Prayer...World in Peace.

9.  A highway is just a road to travel

10.  Long ago, on Saturday nights

     Made of concrete and loads of gravel.                The crowd would go to see the sights

     But this road weaved through out the town          Of movies found upon the screen

     It’s fame has spread and can still be found.          The best of movies you’ve ever seen

     It’s in a memory and in a song

        It was here one day..then gone so fast

     This highway route is very long.

        Another memory of the long gone past.

11. Andrew Carnegie gave money to build  
12. This church was built of Methodist fame

      A building of rock in which to fill                        But Sacred Heart became it’s name.

      With books of wonder and of fun                       It stands so tall that it blocks the sun

      Where learning and reading are number one.    It still holds the name of the Holy One

13. The oldest church of Webb City Pride
14. For many years, this grocery store

     Has held many people on the inside.                   Has served the folks of our fair town

     Not only to worship, people came               
     The name is the same as the street it’s on

     But boys and girls of scouting fame.
  
     And friendlier service can’t be found.

15. On Hall street, it stood tall and black            16.This park was built in memory for

      Resembling a old smokestack.                           Those who gave their life in war.

      It was replaced with a shiny dome                     On Saturday nights in days of old,

      Now there’s two that shine like chrome.        The band would play and the music flow

      Both on Hall Street, blocks apart,                  Folks would come from far and wide,

      So far they wear no graffetti art.

      Answers:

1.  Webb Home, Liberty and Broadway

2.  Baptist College ,  Austin and College (Hatten Park)

3.  W.C. Post Office, 221 W. Daugherty

4.  Y.M.C.A. On Broadway next to Bruner’s Drug Store

5.  Two story home across from the Old Ramey’s on Broadway.

6.  Merchant & Miners Bank (Pinocchio Pre School) Main and Daugherty

7.  Jasper County Health Department (now the museum) on Madison Street.

8.  The Praying  Hands

9.  Route 66; comes in on Daugherty from Carterville, south on Main to Broadway, west on Broadway to Jefferson Street, south on Jefferson to 14th Street, west to Madison St.

10.  Webb City Drive In, located at 12th and Madison until last week.

11. The Webb City Library, First and Liberty.

12.  The old Sacred Heart Church at Second and Oronogo.

13.  The Presbyterian Church, Broadway and Ball

14.  Broadway Market, Broadway and Roane.

15.  The Water Tower at Tracy and Hall Street and the new one at Hall and Cardinal Road

16.  Memorial Park, Daugherty and Ball.


Just a little additional information on last weeks article about A.D. Hatten.  LeRoy LeGrande tells me that as a young man, he was told that Hatten got that red car because he was color blind, but he could tell the color red.  


Margaret Goddard recalls that she was working for Hatten at the time he got that new red car.  His office was located where Roderique Insurance is now.  Margaret said, Mr. Hatten would walk outside and climb into a car and try to start it, only to find out that he was in the wrong car.  He would get so embarassed, so he called Robertson at R&S Chevrolet and told him he wanted a “red” car and that’s what he got, a 1940 Chevrolet “touring car”.  Margaret said it was a beautiful car that stood out and Mr. Hatten didn’t have to worry about getting into the wrong car anymore!




                 Women in Mining






      1/19/98


When we think of mining, we picture the man in dark clothes with smudges of dirt on his face.  We imagine him being down under ground for 10-12 hours a day, six days a week, to make a small amount of money.  For we know that it wasn’t the miner who made the big bucks, it was the owner of the mine that hauled in the money.


Many times, men would wander into town and start working on a mining claim.  Working for hours, day in and day out without any luck.  Some would start on a claim and be lucky enough to strike a load, but it was never without hard work.


But you don’t often think of a woman when you think of mining.  But they were out there.  They didn’t receive much recognition, but they were there.  Some were working along side of their husbands, some were there on their own, trying to get rich.


Once such lady was reported to have come to town in the spring of 1872, but her name was never recorded in history.  She and her husband began to develop a mining claim east of Joplin.  The woman worked faithfully as a hoist man, while her husband dug out the ore in the shaft.  After they were down about 12 feet, the husband rigged up a windlass and the woman toiled through the long days hoisting buckets of ore to the top of the ground and dumping it in piles.  When they reached 20 feet, they found great quantities of pure lead.  This couple dug and hauled out about four tons of lead daily.

They toiled uncomplainingly for three months, during which time they mined and sold lead to the value of $12,500.  That was a lot of money and if they handled it well, it could have lasted them a lifetime.  Well worth the three months of hard labor.


One story of a lady interested in mining had a little different twist to it.  Nellie Risley whose reputation was of the red light district, showed up one Sunday at the sight of a balloon ascension.  She was dressed in a purple dressing gown and as the miners questioned her as to what she was doing out on a Sunday morning, she replied that she was going up in that balloon.  She said, “I’ve never been up in a balloon, but I’ve got to have some money.  These people are giving me $250 to make the ascension and leap.  I’m going to start mining out on Swindle Hill while there is still a chance to make a strike.”  So without any fear showing in her big blue eyes, she took off her purple robe to show her red tights.  She made a beautiful parachute jump among the rousing cheers from the miners, who were so impressed with her spunk that they matched the $250 she was earning from the jump.  And she started her new career in mining.


And of course we know many women were involved in the mining operations from the administrative side.  One in particular was our very own Jane Chinn who had her money in several mines that she owned and operated.  


I know of several women in this day and age, if they had been around during the mining era and knew there was a possibility of making some big bucks, they would have been out there digging with the best of the men!!  I also know of several men who would have felt if they had to be out there digging, their wife should be there next to them sharing in the work!!  


So, when you think of those miners, don’t rule out the possibility that some of those miners may have been on the dainty side.  A little different look at history!





            Emma Knell





         August 29, 2003

 In the year 1882, a young upholsterer named Edward Knell moved his family to Carthage from Davenport, Iowa. He started a partnership with George C. Howenstein and they purchased the Hurley and Dingle funeral business. Knell showed an immediate interest in the surrounding community and jumped in to assist in any way. His first community act was to establish the Carthage Merchants Association.

In 1884, the partnership of Knell & Howenstein dissolved and Edward Knell became the sole proprietor of the funeral business, which became known as Knell Mortuary at Third and Lyon. Feeling a need to give his best to the community, Edward went to Cincinnati, Ohio and graduated from the Clark School of Embalming in 1887. Knell was the first embalmer in Jasper County and went on to design the first funeral chapel. 

In 1902, Edward Knell established the Knell Fair, which was held on the Knell farm on the northeast edge of Carthage in the Spring River bottoms. The first action consisted of building a large grand stand to hold 5000 spectators and a 1/2-mile running track for horse racing. The Knell Fair was later called the Jasper County Fair and then the Southwest Missouri Fair. 

Edward's daughter, Emma Knell took over for her father as the Fair manager in 1909. The Fair became noted as the second largest fair in Missouri second to the Sedalia Fair. Emma managed the fair until 1926. Then Emma retired as she made some great changes in her life.

After graduating from high school, Emma had entered the undertaking business with her father, with his blessings. He felt it was important to have a female in the business to take care of the women clients. Emma was only the third woman in Missouri to receive a license to embalm.

In 1924, Emma was approached by Jasper County's presiding judge, J.F. Lee and asked if she would consider running for the Missouri legislature. Having never given such a thought to her future, it took Emma by surprise. But she was persuaded to participate in the campaign. She kept a very low profile and relied on newspaper advertisements and word of mouth from those who had worked with her in the community.

The 46 year old Emma Knell won the election. She was the third woman elected to the Missouri House of Representatives and the first woman from the Missouri Ozarks. Knell was a natural and she loved working as a legislator. 

One of the first major campaigns that Knell took on was to save the Webb City Tuberculosis Hospital, which was in danger of being closed due to lack of funds. That hospital was a necessity for the poor miners. At the time, each Jasper County miner (patient) received $5 from the state and Knell proposed a bill that would give each patient $10 a week. Meanwhile, Senator  A.L. McCawley  introduced a bill in the Senate asking for $12.50 per patient. Both bills passed. Knell asked the House of Representatives to accept the Senate bill for the higher amount. When the bill was due before the Governor for a signature, Knell approached the Governor and told him of the situation at the Webb City Tuberculosis Hospital and asked him to let his conscience be his guide. The bill was approved and signed that very day.

At the end of Knell's first term, the Democrats decided to give Knell a little competition in the next election and nominated Martha Taafe to run against Emma Knell. Taafe was active in her community and the Democrats felt pretty confident that she would be a worthy opponent against Knell. This was something new for Jasper County…an election that put woman against woman. But Emma had also been involved in her community. Not only serving as General Manager of the Fair, Emma served on the Carthage School Board and the Carthage Park Board.

Knell had served a wonderful term as Representative and she had lots of backers to tell of her accomplishments. And her actions were the best advertising campaign of all. Knell defeated Martha Taafe by nearly 3000 votes.

Having a woman in the House added a softer side. Someone to show an interest in issues such as treatment for the crippled children, pensions for school teachers, and a state song. Her second term was just as rewarding as her first had been. 

Emma decided not to run for re-election in 1928, but took two years off before running for her third term. She stated that she felt more confident and was ready to do all she could for the county. Having won the election, Knell took on the project of requiring all schools that receive state aid to fly the United States flag.

 Knell did not seek a fourth term. Emma Knell returned to the family mortuary business. At the death of her brother, Emma became the President of the company in 1943 at the age of 65. Finally deciding it was time to slow down a bit, Emma sold her interest in the family business to her nephews, Robert and Frank, Jr. Emma stayed on as Vice President until 1957 when she retired at the age of 79. 

Emma passed away in September of 1963, age 84. It was reported that Emma Knell remained firm in what she felt was right, worked diligently, and fought for a strict economy. Knell was a very distinguished lady, who represented the Ozarks with dignity.

         Early-day pilot Frank Pence patented an invention, too





Published June 4, 1999

We have been fortunate enough to have many inventors from Webb City. I've just recently learned of another local inventor. It seems that Thomas (Frank) Pence had a great idea and acted upon it.

Frank was a master boiler mechanic. He worked for the Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance Company, based in St. Louis. His plane carried that name on the side along with his name and also the town he hailed from, Webb City.

Being a master boiler mechanic made Frank aware of many of the problems involved in his line of work. Also, being a man of action, he soon figured a way to relieve a problem and went about getting the patent for and marketing "THE PENCE" Automatic Release valve For Air Compressors.

On the brochure explaining how the device worked are testimonials, dated 1915, from F.C. Wallower, manager of the Cumberland Mining and Milling company; W.O. Cragg of the A.W.C. Mining Company in Joplin; and C.T. Orr, general manager of the Bertha A. Mining Company. All were praising the Pence Valve, which was being manufactured by the West Side Machine Shop Company and could be ordered from Thomas F. Pence, 1129 W. Daugherty Street, and home phone 918.

Frank was born May 30, 1881 in Nebraska and his wife, Rosa, whom he married October 31, 1905, was born May 29, 1885, in Blue Mound, Kansas. They had three children, Dr. P.M. Pence, Wendell Pence and Mary Ijams.

Dr. Pence took after his father and received his pilot's license and also owned his own plane. I wonder if Frank taught his son to fly?

Once again, we have a Webb City forefather to be proud of, as an inventor, a pilot, a master mechanic, and a great father. 

Thanks to Burnace Pence for sharing this information about his grandfather. Burnace said he was surprised when he received this information, since he wasn't aware that his grandfather had a plane. And a special thanks to Burnace's cousin for sharing family information.

       Carterville Quail farm was quite an operation.

                                                 Published September 11, 1998     

We're going back to spend a little time with Dr. Perly Pence again. What a versatile man he was. Most of us only remember him as a doctor, we aren't aware of his talents as a pilot or as a quail farmer. We are going to take a visit to that quail farm which was located in Carterville.  

As I have mentioned many times before, when a highway comes through, it's for progress and convenience, but there are usually changes made to accommodate these ribbons of concrete designed for man to get from one place to another in less time. And over time we seem to forget what use to located in the area before the highway.

Such is the case of Highway 71, which was changed from a two-lane road to the divided highway of today. The interchange at the Carterville exit brought about many changes. How many of you can still recall the Ozark Quail Farm that sat on the south side of Highway 71 just east of Johnstown?

Perly Pence was one who knew the importance of advertising. If you don't advertise, people don't know what you're selling or where you are located. Perly was doing so well with the quail farm that the Ralston Purina Company featured it in a bulletin sent out to other breeders as an example of success.

I guess we could add "author" to Dr. Pence's list of accomplishments, as he put out a small book on raising game birds. He shared all of his secrets about the art of raising quail and pheasants. 

Of course, Dr. Pence didn't handle this quail farm all alone. There would have been no time left for doctoring. So, family members helped. There were Ward and Mary Ijams (Perly's sister), and Perly's son Burnace. And I'm sure the days were long and work was hard.

According to the book, it was necessary to turn the eggs in the incubator five times a day. There were thousands of eggs at his farm, so I'm sure that took some time. I would think that Burnace and his aunt and uncle had to be seeing those eggs in their sleep.

The bulletin from Ralston Purina states that "The owner of Ozark Quail Farm is Dr. P.M. Pence, a lover of wildlife and a true sportsman. The farm is managed by Ward Ijams-a man of Indian descent and who has a way with wildlife." This bulletin, published in 1952 or 1953, locates the farm "down in the busy Tri-Sate Area of Missouri where lead and zinc is the principal industry."

One of the things Dr. Pence wrote about in his book was "the vanishing Bobwhite Quail." Have you heard the cheery whistle of the Bobwhite lately? Those of us who live in the city are deprived of that joy.

Dr. Pence said in the early days of settlement in the area, farmers had crisscross rail fences around small weedy fields and that was the perfect habitat for the quail. They thrived in poorly tilled fields, gardens and orchards. The pioneer farmers briar patch gave a safe refuge from weather and predators. But in this modern day of farming, with tractors and power machinery replacing the walking plow and horse, many of the favorite habitats of the quail have disappeared. Most of the farmers have removed old stumps, briars, and brambles and have "clean farms" that are more productive.

Thus, the "bird country" of old primitive America had been systematically destroyed by the industrial activity of civilized man in his struggle to produce profitable farm products and livestock. "The tragic end of the Bobwhite Quail is near."

He encouraged people to think of the benefits of controlled quail farming. He raised them for food, for stocking farms, and for breeding. He sold them (quail and pheasants) to individuals who came to the farm to buy for their own freezers. He also sold them to restaurants and even supplied them with stickers to put on their menu…great advertising strategy. He sold them to hunters to stock their hunting area. What an unusual business venture and what an unusual man who seemed to have the "Midas touch."

There is nothing left of the Quail Farm to trigger our memories, but the next time you take that exit ramp on the south side, when get tot he top of the hill, take a look to the right and imagine that quail farm. It's another missing piece of history that can only be visited through pictures, stories, and memories. Share them with your kids!

Powell Drive: A memorial to Robert Powell, Webb City's first Viet Nam loss

I'm impressed with how many of you knew how Powell Drive got its name. And I'm equally impressed that you took the time to call and share your knowledge with me. A special thanks to Rose Puckett who has a special connection with Powell Drive.


Powell drive was dedicated in honor of Rose's brother, Robert A. Powell, who was the first Webb City citizen killed in action in Viet Nam. Sgt. Robert A. Powell had been stationed in Germany two years before requesting a transfer to Viet Nam. He was a dedicated soldier, a member of the 1st Calvary Division, 14th Artillery and he had been in Viet Nam for 3 months when he was killed by a mine on June 10, 1966. He only had 228 days left on his tour of duty.


Powell was the son of Mr. and Mrs. William F. Powell and came from a large family of six brothers and two sisters. He had only been married five months at the time of his death. After the ceremony here in Webb City, Robert A. Powell received the honor of being buried in Arlington National Cemetery.


Rose said that since her mother was unable to travel to Washington D.C. she decorated the grave of the "unknown soldier" in the Webb City Cemetery. It's become a family tradition that Rose and her sister, Connie have continued to honor.


Thank you Rose, for sharing the information of your brother with all of us. Rose has donated Robert's hat, military dog tags and telegrams received by their mother to the Webb City Historical Society.


Before being dedicated as Powell Drive, the street was known as Broadway Road, a spur off from Broadway Street.


Colonial Drive was formerly known as Hospital Road, since it was the road that led to the Tuberculosis Hospital. But long before that, it was known as Daugherty Lane, since that was the road on which the W.A. Daugherty home was located (now the Corl home). It is the oldest house in Webb City. 


I received a question about the streets that were named after presidents and found it odd that we have a street named after the first president, George  Washington, the third president, Thomas Jefferson, and the fourth president, John Madison. But for some reason, the second president John Adams was left out. I wonder why?


Did you know that the road that runs by the airport use to be referred to as the Webb City Road, because that was the road that got you to Webb City from Joplin and Carl Junction? Joplin's North Main Road was the connection between Webb City and Joplin. At the time, Range Line Road was just a gravel road, not traveled much.


Rumor has it that Ellis Street was named after the Real Estate Agent who had the area surveyed and platted, John Ellis.


The section of Sixth Street going west from Ellis Street to Zigler street use to be called McClelland Street.  Fifth Street from Ellis to Zigler use to be called Zoller. At Third Street and Madison, where the trailer park is located was a street that was two blocks to the west and named Edna Street. Edna led back into a section of town that was secluded. A lot of people don't even realize that there is a Preston Street, Shenandoah Street and Forrest Street in that part of town. The only way to get into the area is going west from Madison on Fourth Street, which use to be called Dermott. At the end of Dermott, you could turn left on Frisco Street which was located just on the west side of the Frisco Railroad tracks, and Frisco went south to the city limits, which was only as far as Seventh Street at the time.


Before the mining of the pit in King Jack Park, there were roads where the park is now. Liberty Street went south beyond 6th Street, as did Webb Street. Between Liberty and the 500 block of Main Street was Tracy Street and between Liberty and the 600 block of South Main was a street called Home Avenue. The hill that the Praying Hands statue is setting on was not there when these streets were in existence.


Pennsylvania Street went to about 10th Street and there was a streetcar track that crossed over (and above) Pennsylvania Avenue. Many changes have taken place in Webb City over the years with streets changing names and some even disappearing. Many houses were torn down to make way for progress as when the new highway 71 went through town. It's hard to imagine that there were normal city blocks where the highway winds its way through.


There were mostly houses on Madison Street to 13th Street, It was wide to make way for the streetcar tracks, but it wasn't the thoroughfare it is today. On past 13th street, you were out in the country with the cemeteries framing up the edge of the city limits. How many of you have forgotten the big hill where Wal-Marts and Consumers are now sitting?


We adjust to changes so easily that it's hard to remember what things use to look like. That's what I'm here for, to jog your memory and help you to remember the way things use to be, to share your memories with those who weren't here.


In two weeks, I plan on doing a "Do You Remember" about Christmas time in Webb City. Get your thinking caps on and share some memories with us. What are your fondest memories? What was the parade like? What did the store windows look like? What kinds of toys were most popular? Did you have special plays at school? Did your grandmother cook something special for the holidays? What was the weather like? What did you do on dates? Share a memory. We'd love to hear it. 

   Furniture and the undertaking business used to go together





Published October 8, 1993

 
Joseph R. Lowe was born in Barren County, Kentucky on February 9, 1851. Joseph was the youngest of seven children born to Caleb and Polly (Crabtree) Lowe. Caleb and Polly raised their family on a farm in Kentucky.


At the age of 25, J.R. Lowe decided to give up farming and try his hand at ironing. He arrived in Webb City on October 10, 1876, just prior to the establishment of the city. The young lad had a total of $25 in his pocket, which he had saved to make this great venture in his life.


For several years, he labored in the mines. Finally, deciding that even though he was successful, this wasn't what he wanted to do the rest of his life. Then on May 2, 1881, Lowe entered the retail business. He became partners in the Hancock & Howe Furniture Store. The name of the business changed to Hancock & Lowe. After eight years, he sold his interest to J.W. Aylor.

His next venture was in the partnership with a Mr. Verbrick, and they opened a furniture store under the name of Lowe & Verbrick. In 1889, the company was incorporated, with Mr. Lowe as secretary and Mr. E.T. Webb as President. The name of the store changed to Lowe Furniture Company. As time went on, Mr. Lowe bought up all the stock from others in the company and became the sole owner. The business flourished and became one of the largest in the area.


As seemed to be the practice in those days, Joseph started an undertaking business in with his furniture business. Later, he sold the furniture store and it became known as the Webb City Furniture, located at Daugherty and Tom. He later sold the undertaking business to J.T. Steele, which became the J.T. Steele Undertaking Company at 111 E. Daugherty.


J.R. Lowe lived at 309 West Joplin (Broadway) up until his death in March of 1928. Mr. Lowe married his lovely bride on March 16, 1870 while in Barren County. Miss Almyra Huckebey was a native of Kentucky and the daughter of William Huckebey.

J.R. and Almyra were not blessed with children, but they were active in the community, with such activities as membership in the fraternal orders of Woodmen of America of the World. He was a member of the Methodist Church and a Democrat, although not an active politician.


After his retirement from the furniture business and funeral business, J.R. just couldn't handle being idle, so he opened a small store close to his home on Broadway, at the alley. He operated this small store until his health gave out.


Upon his death, in 1928, the 77 year old J.R. made a request that two members of each of the Protestant churches in the city be honorary pallbearers. I guess he wanted to cover all his bases. Better safe than sorry! Those honorary pallbearers were, A.F. Davis and J.H. Billings, Emmanuel Baptist Church; A.R. Haughawont and W.B. Finney, Nazarene Church; D.C. Morris and Walter Ragland, Christian Church; A.G. Young and E.E. Wood, Presbyterian Church; J.H. Inman and C.T. Sanders, First Baptist Church and O.J. Gosch and R.B. Dodge, First Methodist Church. The active pallbearers were J.J. Stansberry, John Richman, E.T. Webb, W.E. Patten, M. Beckman and W.C. Knight. 

The taste of Purkhiser ice cream lingered long after the business was gone





Published October 28, 1994

Little Alice came to the big mining town of Webb City as it was just beginning to develop in 1877. Her family came from Tennessee, where she was born in 1863. As Alice grew along with the mining town, she fell in love with J.M. Purkhiser. They had a large, beautiful family; one daughter, Callie, and four sons, Leonard L., Thomas S., William P., and Roy H. This family was raised in the family home at 101 S. Roane.


J.M. Purkhiser had been a jigman in the mines. William married a couple of times in his life and had a successful career as an insurance salesman for Hiron & Hiron Insurance Company. His life ended rather tragically in 1939.Thomas married Anna S. and they lived a couple of houses from Thomas' parents at 107 S. Roane. Later, moving to 908 North Hall. And after his death, Anna lived at 523 North Pennsylvania. They had a son named Howard.

I don't have much information on Callie or Roy.

My main topic of this story is Leonard L. Purkhiser. Leonard married Mary Anna Reigle in 1928. They lived at 912 West Second Street and had a daughter, Carolyn. They were most remembered by their business…L.L. Purkhiser Ice Cream Company. Ice cream parlors were plentiful in Webb City so to make a success of that business was a constant effort. But it paid off for Leonard. He had a couple of locations for his business, once at 110 N. Main, and later at 209 N Main.

The memories of L.L. Purkhiser Ice cream Company are sweet memories. Many sundaes, cones, and malts were tasted there.

                Doc & Thannie Pritchett gave to WC




Published May 10, 1991

Reverend Joseph H. Pritchett and his wife Mary were very proud of their four sons. Each one had chosen a noble profession. One son, F. Morrison Pritchett came to Webb City in 1900 as a promising new attorney. His brother Stonewall soon joined him and they set up office together since Stonewall was an attorney also.

Both of these young men were considered "good catches" for the ladies of Webb City. Well, it took 15 years before Anna snagged Morrison as her husband.

Both Morrison and Stonewall served in the position of city attorney. Morrison was also the assistant county prosecuting attorney. Stonewall and his wife Margaret eventually left town to investigate the new territory to the west. That left the legal business to Morrison.

In the meantime, their younger brothers had also chosen professions of importance. J. Thomas Pritchett had followed in his father's footsteps and become a minister. Thomas located in Kansas City.

The fourth son, Paul, became a doctor, and moved to the area where his brothers had found so much happiness…Webb City.

Many of you probably still remember "Doc" Paul Pritchett. Doc came to Webb City in 1908 with his bride, Thannie. They came from the new territory known as Oklahoma.

Thannie's father, Perry Thinsley, a carpenter, a construction man, had helped develop the town of Sulpher, I.T. (Indian Territory-that's what it was known as before it became Oklahoma). He built the first church and the first school house because it was a new town. They lived there until Oklahoma became a state in 1907.

The young couple married and headed off into the wilderness…Webb City, Missouri. Life and times were hard for the young doctor and his wife. They didn't have much money, but had lots of work. Thannie helped out as much as she could. She was right beside Doc on his house calls and helped out in the office. 

One time, Doc was away at the hospital when a lady went into labor. Thannie went to the lady's house and delivered the baby. She had seen Doc do it often enough that she didn't have any problems.

Doc ad Thannie had two daughters of their own, Marjorie and Helen. Doc passed away in 1952 and Thannie continued to help people whenever she could. Her motto was "to think of others." Doctor Pritchett and his wife Thannie at one time or another touched many living in Webb City.

Thannie just passed away on April 7, 1991, in Arizona. She had lived to be 104 years old. She had witnessed Webb City in its glory, and she was there during the struggle to survive after the mining era. No matter what trial she was put through, she kept smiling with a twinkle in her eye. She had many accomplishments.

The Reverend James Kellett summed it up pretty well at Thannie's funeral when he said: "On April 7th, Marjorie and Helen lost their lovely mother. The Central United Methodist Church lost its oldest member and the United States of America lost a piece of living history."

                      Obituary/Eulogy of Thannie Pritchett





April 8, 1991


Thannie Pritchett was born on October 9, 1886 at Henry's Crossroads near Knoxville, Tennessee, the next to the youngest of four children that were born to Perry Thinsley and Lydia (Bryant) Thinsley. She passes away on April 7, 1991 at more than 104 years of age.

She experienced the American frontier and her strong character reflects a hard but happy childhood. She lived in "Indian Territory" before it was Oklahoma. She saw pristine rivers, virgin forests, and untainted nature. It was her privilege to know the hearty men, women, and children who were settlers to a new and unforgiving land. Many believe that it was her era that most shaped the American character at it's best. Strength, will power, courage and tenacity were not mere virtues, but necessities to survive.

People, in common, believed in hard work, earning your own way, honesty, helping your neighbor, taking care of your own, commitment in marriage, love of family, and in love of God. In some ways, the values of that time seem as pristine and unspoiled as the land.

Thannie was married to a physician, Dr. Paul Pritchett. In her own words "the best thing thing to me that God ever let loose…" The two labored side by side when medicine was a struggling ministry. They knew calls for help through long night hours. Thannie spoke of delivering babies in those days: "We'd get there and the only thing in that house would be a bed with bare slats covered with corn shucks. There'd be nothing to wrap the baby in…I'd go back home and tear up our own sheets and take them back to the baby." In the absence of her husband, Thannie even delivered a baby herself. She declared, "There wasn't much to it."

Thannie said, one day she was working in the office and a crowd gathered below. She leaned out the window to see "Harry S. Truman, who stood right there on the end of a wagon and made a speech, right there in the street. He saw our office was open, and when he finished his speech, he came right upstairs and sat down to talk to us." Long before the White House and the vice presidency, of course, Truman had started in local politics, splitting his time between campaigning for county judge and running a haberdashery in Lamar, about 20 miles north of Webb City. Politics didn't really light her fire, although she does remember voting for long lists of candidates for state offices as soon as it was legal for women to vote. "Now, you know I can't remember a single name, " she said, "But I'm kind of old now!" (104 years).

Thannie was a wonderful mother to daughters Marjorie and Helen. Her own words concerning them are: "Good girls? Lord yes, I'd like you to find some better children than I had." Although busy keeping the office of her husband, she was attentive and caring to her own children. She was a vital part of the Methodist Church and was always in the kitchen preparing dinners on special occasions, and she was very involved in Eastern Stars. She believed in doing for others: "If you want to keep going, you've got to keep your mind on something besides yourself. Think about others."

Mrs. Pritchett's dear husband, Paul died in 1952. "I've been a widow for an awful long time now, " she said, smoothing the coverlet on her lap. "I was in my 70's when my husband died." She paused to reflect, "you know, I don't think I've ever been mistreated or misused." "But I do believe most everybody would be happier if they understand they can't have every little thing they want." She is survived by her two daughters Marjorie Dallas and Helen Pederson of Sun City, Arizona, two grandchildren, seven great grandchildren and two great, great grandchildren and by many other relatives and friends.

It was not this minister's privilege to meet Thannie Pritchett, but I would like to have sat down with her for a talk and a cup of coffee. She said, "I still enjoy a cup of coffee just straight." That's also the way she'd talk to you, "just straight!"

On April 7th, Marjorie and Helen lost their lovely mother. The Central United Methodist Church lost its oldest member and the United States of America lost a piece of living history.






Reverend James Kellett

                            Taylors keep Schars home beautiful





 Published October 23, 1992

The beautiful home is located at 503 S. Madison Street, now the home of Tom and Sharon Taylor, and it looks more beautiful today than it did in 1909. It was the home of H.K. Schars.


Schars was the manager of the Forest Lumber Company, located at 307 North Allen (now Main Street). Forest Lumber Company was established in 1894, but Schars didn't take over management until 1906 and did an excellent job.

Schars had an ability to make and retain friends, especially among the influential people of Webb City and Jasper County, which was an asset for the lumber company. Coming from the state of Michigan, Schars was able to learn first hand about the lumber business in a state where many of the world's largest lumber interests were located.

Forest Lumber Company handled lumber, timer, building materials of all kinds, lathe, shingles, roofing, and everything the builder or contractor would need. And the success of the lumber company was evident in the beautiful home that Schars could afford to live in.

There are many beautiful old homes in our city, that reflect the wealth and success of the mining industry of our area. Some of those homes are in terrible disrepair, but some have been fortunate enough to be adopted by such caring owners as Tom and Sharon Taylor, who take pride in their homes. They are an asset to Webb City by preserving a piece of history in their home and by being one of the few businesses (Taylor's Mens and Ladies Wear) that have remained in the downtown area and have been successful. Our hats are off to you Tom and Sharon; we salute you and wish you continued good luck in Webb City.

        70 years after they eloped, Oscar and Wivi David are still happy




Published July 12, 1991

It was a hot July, in 1921, but two young people in love weren't concerned about the weather. All they were thinking about was getting married. They had grown up together in Stanberry, Missouri, where most of the teenagers hung out at the post office.

Oscar David and Wivi Fisher made the decision to elope. The first place they went couldn't marry them, but they found a preacher in Maryville who married them in his parlor.

As they were heading home, to let the family know what they had done, they met Oscar's big brother coming to get them. Needless to say, both families were pretty uptight with the couple for rushing into this marriage. It must have been "meant to be", though, because Oscar and Wivi will have been married for 70 years on July 18, 1991.

Wivi (pet name for Vivian) was 17 and Oscar turned 19 the day after the marriage. Both looked young for their age (and still do!).

Once they went to the Bethany County Fair with another couple. There weren't hotels as we have now days, instead, you usually rented rooms from private individuals (boarding homes). Well, when they approached this lady about renting her rooms, she informed them that she didn't think they were old enough to be married and she wouldn't rent to them. She finally agreed if the two young ladies would share a room and the two young men share a room. So for the first time in their young married life, the Davids had to spend the night in separate rooms.

Oscar and Wivi were blessed with two beautiful daughters who, in their eyes, couldn't have been more perfect. They are a strong family. After Oscar and Wivi were married, they took in Wivie's little sister, Zelma and raised her as their own. So basically, they had three daughters, Zelma, Patsy and Peggy. One day, several years later, according to family legend, friend Patty Green was invited over for dinner and never left, becoming a part of the family.

Peggy has a son, Patrick Platter, who is an attorney in Springfield and the apple of his grandparents' eye.

After working for the Railway Express Company for 47 years, Oscar thought he would retire. One day, he went to help Kenton Fly with the inventory at the hardware store. He enjoyed himself and Kenton must have known, because he said, "Oscar, you're not doing anything, why don't you help me out." Oscar helped him for 14 years.

Some people have talents in many things, and Wivi has a natural talent when it comes to sewing. Her father (Poppy) bought her a sewing machine for $5 and she trained herself to sew. Her daughter brags, "You could just show mother a picture and she could make the item without a pattern." This talent resulted in Wivi becoming quite a quilt expert. She makes lots of quilts and gives them away to the church and different charities.

In this day and age, when one in two marriages are ending in a divorce, we asked Oscar and Wivi what advice would they give to young couples to help their marriage last longer. Oscar jokingly advises, "Don't get married!" But they both agree that the secret to their happy union has been giving 100 percent, not just 50 percent. Also, you have to learn how to give and take. If you don't know how to give in a little, you'll only have contention. Don't try keeping up with the Jones; live within your means.

Since the Davids weren't blessed with a honeymoon, when they first "got hitched", their children took them to Niagra Falls on their 50th Anniversary. It's been said, that the family is so close, usually if you see one you'll see another family member close by. (That's another secret to the Davids' long happy reunion).

Congratulations to Oscar and Wivi for 70 years of a happy marriage. And thanks to them for sharing some of their memories with us. The family has planned a reception to celebrate the occasion from 2 to 4 PM Sunday in the fellowship hall at Central Methodist Church, corner of Broadway and Pennsylvania.

             Davids weren't both sure they wanted to stay




Published July 19, 1991

Oscar and Wivi David were transferred to the Webb City area in 1938. Oscar had been with the express Company as it went through its many changes in names. He started out with Wells Fargo, which changed to American Railway Express, which became Railway express and finally, the REA Express. He said he worked for four different companies, yet worked the same job for 47 years.

When the Davids came to Webb City by railroad, Wivi said that if there had been another train heading out of town, she would have been on it. Her first impression of Webb City consisted of views of chat piles. But they have changed their opinion of Webb City over the years and have come to love it as their home.

Oscar's office was located behind the Webb City Water Department (corner of Church Street and Webb Street) and for the first time in her life, Wivi (pet name for Vivian) was going to work outside of the home. She was going to be in charge of the books. The only problem was that Wivi didn't know how. Oscar told her to just watch her debits and credits and she wouldn't have any problems. Wivi said she didn't a debit and credit from a hole in the ground.

One day, when a company boss came to visit, Oscar made the mistake of saying to Wivi, "The only way you could be dumber is to be bigger!" This didn't set to well with the petite Wivi, so she gathered up her belongings and slammed the door behind her. Oscar wasn't worried, he said, "She'll be back." Well, he was wrong…the office was closed for three days! When asked how he got Wivi to return, Oscar said he got down on his knees.

Their business with the express company was done totally on commission. So the amount of income varied each day. It was getting close to Christmas one year and money was pretty tight. One day, they only made 46 cents in commission and they were feeling a little depressed. The very next day, Oscar got a shipment with the Atlas Powder Company and that day they made $56, which was a lot of money in those days, and it saved Christmas for the Davids.

When we hear the name Wabash, most of us think of Johnny Cash's Wabash Cannonball. Well, Oscar has different memories. He was to be the express agent (baggage agent) for the Wabash. He made the route from Moberly to Kansas City, Moberly to St. Louis and Moberly to Des Moines, Iowa. Oscar has many wonderful stories he tells of his many years with the railroad and the different express companies that he has been affiliated with. 

We want to thank Oscar and Wivi for sharing their memories.

                              Farm made John Purcell rich




    Published November 20, 1992

John Purcell was born in Hardin County, Kentucky, on July 22, 1818, to James and Rachel (Falker) Purcell. As was the way of men in that era, John felt the need to head west to investigate the untamed territories.

At first, he settled in Henry County, Missouri, but soon felt that pioneer urge as he heard about the new Jasper County just to the south. Jasper County was established in 1841, and in 1843, John loaded up his wife, Lucy Ann (Stith) and his young babies and headed into that newly developed territory. John and Lucy Ann became official citizens of Jasper County when they purchased land in what John felt was heaven on earth. That area became known as Alba about 40 years later.

John eventually accumulated more than 600 acres and it was thought of as the most beautifully cultivated farmland I the area. John used all the modern conveniences available and he became one of the leading agriculturists of Southwest Missouri. Along with being a top-notch farmer, John was very interested in the community and its need to grow and improve.

We're all familiar with the old Quaker Mill. John Purcell donated the land, which became the site of the Quaker Mill. 

Being a fair and impartial man, John became the perfect candidate to serve as judge for Jasper County. He held that position for six years.

Lucy Ann Purcell passed away July 1, 1850, leaving John with three children to raise: Benjamin F. Mary J. and George D. Feeling the need to find a suitable mother for the children, John married Miss Elizabeth C. Bowers on August 27, 1851. Elizabeth's parents operated Bower's Mill in Lawrence County on Spring River. Together, John and Elizabeth had four children: Cordella E., James F., Daniel B., and Franz Siegal. Both John and Elizabeth passed away in 1884, just a few months apart from each other, having shared 33 years of marriage.

John's first marriage to Lucy Ann started out as quite a meager life. When they first got to this area, John had two horses and he traded one for his claim on the land that was the beginning of their homestead. The following spring, the rising of Spring River caused the drowning of their only horse. John took on two jobs, working the daytime for 25 cents a day and at night made shoes for 25 cents a pair. But perseverance does pay off, and soon the crops began to pay off and John was able to add to his claim and build a comfortable home for his family.

This rags to riches story didn't involve mining as most stories about this area claim. But it does involve land. This land was rich, not only in ore but also in farming. And it's nice to know that heaven on earth is only across the river…in Alba!

Webb City owes many of its improvements to Fred Rogers



        Published April 6, 2001

Many cars with a variety of license plates pull into King Jack Park everyday to check out the Praying Hands, the Kneeling Miner, the plaque on the history of Webb City and the Southwest Missouri Railway Monument.

Have you taken a close look at the Southwest Missouri Railway Monument? It is really an impressive memorial to the mode of transportation that was the heartbeat of this area during the mining era.

Fred (Fritz) Rogers, who is well known in Webb City for his work on the restoration of Streetcar No. 60, was also responsible for the monument that stands in memory of a bygone era. Rogers had a knack of getting things done, without having to spend much money. He really became a pro at this during the restoration of the streetcar.

Having been in the salvage business, Rogers was knowledgeable about the procedures in procuring needed materials. This was the knowledge Rogers used when he went to the Conner Hotel as it was being prepared for demolition and talked to the necessary individuals about some of the beautiful art panels that were being removed from the grand old hotel. One evening about 5 p.m., Rogers went down into the basement of the Conner Hotel to talk with the contractor. The French renaissance design art panels had already been removed and were being placed in crates to be stored for future use. Arrangements were made for the Southwest Missouri Railway organization to buy two of the panels at $250 each. The contractor told Rogers that the panels would be on the north side of the building whenever he was able to make arrangements to haul them. (The next morning at 6 a.m. the Conner Hotel collapsed prematurely).

When Rogers went to pick up the panels, he was told that he could have them as a donation instead of paying the $250. The panels were stored at the airport until the site could be prepared for them.

Rogers knew he needed money to finish this project he had started, so he advertised that names of those donating $100 would be put on the plaque of the monument. He earned $7000 to complete his project.

The Missouri Army National Guard moved the panels for Rogers and a company in Carthage supplied necessary equipment for lifting the panels. Support of the citizens is what helped Rogers complete his task.


Arrangements had been made for Rogers to remove the actual S.W. Missouri Railway sign from the north side of the powerhouse. Being an actual part of the building, Rogers was to pay $250 plus replace the bricks where the sign had been. As Rogers thought about this task, he wasn't feeling too good about it. Jack Dawson suggested to Rogers, that they could make a sign that would look just like the original. So that project began. They made a cement form, constructed letters out of Styrofoam and glued them into the form. Cement was poured into the form with the Styrofoam staying intact. After the cement dried, they burned the Styrofoam which caused it to melt right out of the concrete block. Many people have thought that sign really did come from the powerhouse. They did an awesome job of reproducing it without damaging an historical building. 

As the monument came together, more structural support was needed for the upright concrete and marble. Ironically, Rogers used three old streetcar bumpers for the props.

As mentioned earlier, Rogers restored Streetcar No. 60 and put in many hours installing the streetcar tracks that go around King Jack Park. Before the arduous work began on installing the tracks, a 50-year agreement was drawn up with the city. This agreement allowed the streetcar association to place the tracks in the park and gave it a 20-foot easement on both sides of the tracks. Rogers says that agreement has an option for renewal after the first 50 years.

Fred Rogers has journals that record every movement made in building of the streetcar monument, the laying of the tracks, the restoring of the streetcar, the building of the depot, and even helping Jack Dawson with the Kneeling Miner statue. It's recorded that Rogers helped Nancy Dawson keep "mud" mixed as Jack Dawson's magic fingers formed the kneeling miner. Rogers also built the base for the statue.

The Highway Department was going to demolish a wonderful depot, which was situated in Carterville. It had been a "wait station" for the streetcar line and it would be an added attraction in King Jack Park, so Rogers asked the highway department if he could have the depot. With the help of some comrades, Bud Veatch, Roy Ross and Harry Hood, Rogers removed the roof, windows and rafters of the original depot. It was impossible to move the cemented rocks that formed the walls, so they built the rock portion of the building with new rock and donated cement. The old parts of the original depot were put into place and the depot (now dubbed as Sucker Flats depot) that now houses the Webb City Area Chamber of Commerce is a quaint addition to the park.

Fred Rogers retired from his salvage business in 1973 and began his "volunteer" work. For the past 28 years, Rogers has become a permanent fixture at King Jack Park. He has been injured many times, gotten ill…you name it! But his love for the work he has done is obvious in the notes he has kept in his journals.

He says he couldn't have accomplished any of the work if it wasn't for the support of the citizens of Webb City and his faithful friends from the streetcar association. He is proud of the fact that he very rarely spent a lot of money on any project. He relied on donations and volunteers, like himself, who wanted the best for Webb City.

Anytime a building was being torn down, you could bet that Fred Rogers was there to see what he could salvage for some future project.

We salute you, Fred Rogers, for the many sacrifices and your dedication to the history of Webb City.

          Roneys of Carl Junction demonstrated volunteerism


And that's what our communities still need today




Published August 5, 1994

Charles Roney was born in 1838, Franklin County, Ohio. He was the father of William Thomas Roney and Charles B. Roney. In 1870, Charles and his wife made the journey from Ohio to Missouri in a covered wagon with his 8-year old son William Thomas. Seven years later, Charles B. was born.

Both of these industrious young men took charge of their lives and became very successful. In 1882, at the age of 20, William opened a mercantile establishment in Smithfield, west of Carl Junction. Later he moved his store to LeHigh and finally settled in Carl Junction. Settling in this area as a young man, in a new frontier, William experienced many changes throughout his life. When he first arrived with his parents, they settled on a farm north of Carl Junction. At that time there was no Carl Junction. In fact, there wasn't a Joplin or Webb City. Oronogo was called Minersville and Sedalia was the closest shipping point and all merchandise had to be shipped overland.

At the time of his death in 1934, William Thomas Roney was truly considered a pioneer, not only in settling a new territory, but also in establishing a business. He had served as president of Citizen's Bank in Carl Junction, president of Roney Mercantile Company and vice president of H&D Motor Company of Joplin. He was a pioneer settler, a farmer, and a successful businessman.

Charles B. Roney served with his brother as secretary of the Roney Mercantile Company and also started his own business, Roney Funeral Home. Charles was very involved in the community. He was mayor of Carl Junction, served on the school board, sexton of the city cemetery and a member of the Masonic Lodge.

It's men like these that helped Jasper County get organized and helped the small communities develop into cities. They were always willing to get involved. They knew that everyone had to chip in if anything was to get accomplished.

Every city in Jasper County had men like the Roneys. But as the years have passed by, those men and women have become a dying breed. People are too caught up in their own lives to consider volunteering for community activities, and as a result, it's the community that suffers. Without volunteers, there can be no city celebrations, parades, and community dinners.

We've already noticed a decline in city parades over the years in Webb City. The committee that organizes the Mining days is down to just a handful of individuals and that can't last very long. Thank goodness the churches are still having dinners as fundraisers or there wouldn't be many opportunities to gather as a city to visit.

If you want to continue our heritage, please get involved in some organizations or activity. Help keep special events active in your community. Don't wait for someone to come to you. Volunteer! You are needed.

And a special thanks to those who are already volunteering. Your help in our community is greatly appreciated. 

Wilhite name synonymous with fine craftsmanship for more than 70 years





Published October 14, 1994

At the turn of the century, as big beautiful homes were frequently built in Webb City, there was a great need for talented house painters and wallpaper experts. The Wilhite brothers, J. Frank and Harley S. came to the bustling town of Webb City and immediately developed a good reputation for a job well done. Frank owned the business and Harley worked for him. One of the best indicators of a good company is repeat business and that's just what the Wilhite brothers had.

In many old homes in this area, as old wallpaper is removed, writing can be found on the wall stating, "Wallpapered by the Willhite Brothers", accompanied by the year. Then a little farther down is writing that says, "Stripped and re-wallpapered by the Wilhite Brothers" and gives a date, a few years later. The Wilhite Brothers not only had repeat business, they were proud enough of their work to sign it!


 Being the smart business man that he was, Frank knew his business needed to change with the times, so in 1921, as more automobiles appeared on the streets of Webb City, Frank advertised his business as handling signs and automobile painting. He would put on new tops, cushions, side curtains, seat covers, and upholstery. He advertised that he would do "anything to doll up your car"!


While Frank took on the mysterious automobiles, Harley stayed with the house painting and wallpapering business. Harley later married Edna Hamrick and they lived at 325 S. Webb Street.


Meanwhile, Frank married his wife; Goldie and they lived next door to Harley at 323 s. Webb Street. Frank and Goldie had three sons, Robert F., Hugh and Charles. Robert married Mabel Johnson and they lived at 321 S. Webb Street. Hugh married Pauline Girton and they lived at 315 S. Webb Street.


Now that's a close family. They took up four houses on the same block. I think they should have changed the name to Wilhite Street.


As the boys grew up, they began to help with the company. Eventually, it became known as the Willhite Brothers Sign Company. The shop was located at 301 E. Broadway, the corner of Hall and Broadway.


The Wilhite Sign Company in Joplin is the original sign company that was located here in Webb City. Their ad declares that it was established in 1921.


I had the privilege of talking to Mrs. Mabel Wilhite a few years ago and she was very proud of the Wilhite name and that the business could have lasted as long as it has. The Wilhite name will always be associated with signs and homes of Webb City.


                             Atlas Community remembered





Published June 25, 1993


When we hear of Atlas, most residents think of the Atlas Powder Plant. Well, to Kathryn C. Snyder, the word Atlas conjures up childhood memories of her grandparent's farm in Atlas, Missouri. Kathryn's grandfather was Oscar Augustus Snyder, son of Caroline Whitney Snyder (a distant relative of Eli Whitney, the inventor).


Oscar was born October 23, 1856 and died December 3, 1909. He was laid to rest in the cemetery at Atlas, and he was a member of the Woodmen of the World Lodge as stated on his tombstone.


Caroline Whitney Snyder was one of those natural pioneer women. Early to rise each morning, doing the farm chores all day, never complaining, just content with what the Good Lord has blessed her with. Caroline was a neat, small, trim woman who was filled to the brim with integrity, energy, and compassion. She owned a large flock of laying hens, exceptional cows and several fine horses. Her grandson, John Charles Snyder would help her hitch up her horses to make the journey into the city. Caroline raised John after his mother died of typhoid fever when he was a young lad. John learned the benefits of hard labor on the farm.


John and Caroline worked hard to make a modest profit from the farm. Caroline was so well known for her above average produce that many times she was unable to have enough produce on hand. An ice-cold spring flowed from the bluff on the south side of the farm and she used this spring to keep the produce refrigerated. (The spring is still there, but I'm sure it isn't as sparkling clear and cold as it was back then.)


Caroline's produce farm was located right in the middle of all the mining production in Webb City, Duenweg, Joplin, and Oronogo.


In 1906, John married Elsie Mabel Klinefelter and they eventually had nine children. The children were raised on a 40-acre farm just across the highway from Atlas bordering the village of Scotland. John' mother was Tennessee Ozark Scott Snyder, daughter of Elder Allen Scott, the founder of the village of Scotland.


Caroline sold her lovely farm in about 1911 to the Atlas Powder Company and moved to Bellingham, Washington to live with relatives. She was born in December of 1837 and died in December of 1921. John and Elsie Snyder both passed away in 1934.


Of the seven children still living that belonged to John and Elsie, they have a wonderful heritage to remember. Everyone needs to find out about their ancestors and marvel at their accomplishments in life.


A special thanks to Kathryn C. Snyder for the wonderful memories she shared with us. By the way, Kathryn was born on the Atlas farm in 1909. Thanks Kathryn.




          Old-fashioned romance

                                                      Published January 31, 1992


Sedgwick Furniture Company and Sedgwick Undertaking were located at the southeast corner of Main and Daugherty Streets (where Royal Furniture was later located). The ad read "Open day and night". The furniture store was in the front of the building and the undertaker was in the rear, which you entered from Daugherty Street.


Mabel McMillan had been hired to collect payments for Sedgwick's. Her older sister Vern was married to the undertaker, Willie Mills. Mabel would drive out in a horse and buggy to Alba, Neck City, Purcell, and Oronogo to collect payments on furniture. She would even locate men at saloons and she would have to someone go inside to request that the person meet with her outside, and they were usually good at paying this pretty young bill collector.


On one occasion, Mabel took her mother, Sarah, her sister Vern and Vern's young son along to keep her company during the long route. As they were headed back to the Webb City, the horses spooked for some unknown reason and the horse and buggy along with all occupants wound up in the ditch. Nobody was injured, although a stick came close to going in Sarah's eye. This bedraggled group was sure happy to see a beer wagon come along. The driver helped them up onto the wagon, tied the horses to the back and drove them into town.


Now, Mabel had a close friend, Josie Beasley, who lived on a small farm where the Carterville Dump is located today. Josie was a bit of a matchmaker. It seems that the men folk in her family had been working with two young men in the mines, Dell and Jess Willard. So, Josie told Mabel all about this wonderful young man named Dell.


Josie had a plan for Mabel and Dell to meet. She knew that Dell and Jesse had volunteered to help dig a grave so they made plans to attend the funeral. First, they had to forge excuses to get out of school for the funeral. Having accomplished this feat, without complication, they moved on to step two, getting to the funeral. Of course, there was the usual girlish chatter that goes along with the excitement and the anticipation of meeting a handsome young man. They were so busy talking, they weren't aware that the funeral procession has slowed down to make a turn into Carterville cemetery. The buggy in front of them had almost completely stopped and they hadn't. The girls' horse kept right on going until his head was right between the couple in the buggy ahead of them. 


Not long after this eventful meeting, Dell and Jess both took with smallpox. They didn't have a mother to take care of them, so they were sent to the "pest house", located on East street and Aylor Avenue. Jess seemed to recover quicker than Dell so he would take notes written by dell to the corner fence and put them under a rock where notes from Mabel would be waiting to be returned to Dell.


When their lives seemed to finally be on a normal routine, Saturday nights would find Dell heading to town for a shave and haircut at the barber shop and then on to the funeral parlor to visit with Mabel. As most romances go, there are always those embarrassing moments that we have no control over. Mabel's nephew came up to the smitten couple and cried, "Aunt Mabel, I wet my pants, that just what I done!" Being the normal teenagers that they were, they both pretended not to hear the poor uncomfortable little chap.


The inevitable finally came and Dell proposed to Mabel. Mabel readily accepted to be the wife of the man she loved. She went to her mother and informed her that dell was going to ask for her permission to marry and she didn't hesitate to let her mother know that she AHD better say yes, because she was going to marry him anyway. Such a headstrong young lady in love. Sarah McMillan agreed to the nuptials, but it was reported later to Mabel that her mother cried as she made the wedding dress for her sixteen-year-old daughter. 


The wedding was on March 27, 1907, Mabel and Dell Willard were in heavenly bliss until a local paper came out with the following report: "From Morgue to Matrimony, Miss Mabel McMillan became the bride of Iridell Willard. From undertaker's clerk to bride is the somewhat happy step taken by Mrs. Iridell Willard, who until last evening was Miss Mabel McMilland in the employ of Sedgwick Undertaking Company. Up to a few weeks ago, when she resigned her gruesome position to make preparations for her marriage. Justice of the Peace Jones, performed the ceremony at the home of the bride's parents, 311 East Daugherty, remaining for the wedding feast which followed and which was attended by a large number of friends of the bride and groom. The groom is a hoisterman at the Oseola Mine."


Needless to say, Mabel was not happy about the way her marriage was presented to the community. But, that had no reflection on their marriage. Mabel and Dell had 46 years together before Dell passed away due to a heart attack. Dell was always proud of his wife and his home. They had two children, Byron and Dell (Pat) Willard.


A special thanks to Pat and Laura Willard for sharing this story with us. 



                   Spracklen's name lives in photos





      Published April 20, 1990


As you sit and gaze at some of the old photos in your family album, the name at the bottom of the photos jumps up at you. It is a beautiful script and it says "Spracklen". The signature of the best! A photograph by Spracklen was a piece of art. Edwin E. Spracklen was an artist in his profession.


Edwin E. Spracklen was born December 7, 1853, on the Isle of Guernsey, British Channel. His parents were Samuel and Elizabeth (Evelich) Spracklen of England. The family moved to London, Ontario, Canada when Edwin was only 6 years old.


While in Canada, Edwin attended a common school. As a youth of 19, Edwin crossed the border and went to Chicago, Illinois. After training in the profession of photography, Edwin went on the road as a traveling photographer. He traveled around 32 of the states of the union doing stereoscopic views.


In 1880, Edwin found himself in Webb City and he liked what he found. He sold his traveling outfit and settled down permanently. His first place of business was in a building at the corner of Allen (Main) and Main (Broadway) Streets. He was in a building owned by Dr. Donohue. He kept his business there for 18 years.


Then in 1901, Edwin purchased a lot at the northwest corner of Webb and Daugherty streets. He built a business block to hold his photo gallery and he leased out the rest of the building. Edwin was a highly artistic photographer and his fame grew.


It's not very often that a politician is highly thought of, but Edwin was able to accomplish the unbelievable. He was mayor of Webb City in 1898. He won the campaign on the Law and Order Proposition. To show how unique Edwin was, he actually tried to fulfill every promise he made to constituents. He worked diligently to accomplish the Law and Order Proposition. Edwin served on the City Council for six years, School Board for three years and Park Board for 6 years. 


He was not only politically involved; Edwin was involved socially, as well. He belonged to the Commercial Club, Chamber of Commerce, Masons, Woodmen of the World and served as a Colonel in the 8th Missouri Uniform Rank. Edwin had served as a bugler in the 7th Battalion Light Infantry of the Canadian Forces.


In 1884, Edwin married Mollie Rice of Jasper County. Mollie was the daughter of Joseph and Flovilla Rice. Edwin and Mollie had six children born to their union.  Marvin R. Spracklen was a corporal in the 13th Engineers in World War I. Bernard B. Spracklen (Bun) married Mary Alice Sportsman. E.E. Spracklen (Jack) served in the First World War as a lieutenant and brevet captain. Mary Elizabeth Spracklen became Mrs., Mary Ball and the mother of Harry Raymond Ball. Maurine Spracklen and Grace Spracklen were both schoolteachers. Marvin, Maurine and Grace never married but lived in the family home at 204 North Webb.


The name of E.E. Spracklen will continue to live on as we preserve the precious photographs that he took. Photographs that immortalize the image forever also immortalize the image of the photographer. 


I would like to give a special thanks to Wally Spracklen for the information about his grandfather E.E. Spracklen. Wally is the son of E. E. Spracklen who was the son of E. E. Spracklen. Wally also had a brother named Edwin E. Spracklen. So, the name lives on in generations as it does in photographs.

               Hal Wise and Jim Stickney purchased The Sentinel 

                                       90 years ago this month





   Published March 22, 1996


On March 19, 1931, 65 years ago, The Sentinel, has a celebration. Hal Wise was celebrating the fact that he had owned and operated the Sentinel for 25 years. So, 90 years ago this month, Hal Wise and his best friend Jim Stickney took on the Sentinel, young, eager, and deep in debt.


After paying for the Sentinel business with the borrowed money, they had $50 left, which they split. But a mere 10 days later, they were headed to Mayor George Moore's office to borrow $25 to meet the Saturday night payroll. But this never happened again, as Hal took control of the situation.


Claud Haughawout was the Sentinel's first star carrier under the new management. Other carriers for the new bosses were Knute Walker, Roscoe Kitner, Lee Whitescarver, Grover Hand, and Earl Peters. Lee Flournoy was added a little later. Also on the payroll were Emmett Sinnard, Clyde and Roy Armstrong, Lottie Munson, Stella Schackman, May Walker, Martha Kirsch, Margie Robinson, Charley Johnson, Tom Zilhardt, Art Thomas, Louise Tarrant and W.F. Barnett. The weekly wages varied from $1 to $15 per week. The total payroll amounted to about $50 per week. It took 15 employees to handle the Daily Sentinel. 


The first day of business brought in Conductor Ed Wise. He needed a "Don't spit" sign for the streetcar. Somebody bought a dime's worth of old papers; Hall Brothers bought an ad to inform the citizens they had moved their barbershop. That ad cost them 50 cents. Mrs J.J.Funk paid 25 cents for a rummage sale ad for the Presbyterian Church. Earl G. Reese bought a $6 display as and G.A. Livermore contributed $3.50 for business colleges notice. The total for the first day of business was $10.85.


Jim moved on to become a writer for the Saturday Evening Post. But Hal Wise hung in there and kept the Webb City Sentinel printing.


Jim wrote back a few "Do you remembers?" in 1931. They included:

· Do you remember Charles Wright the druggist, who used to advertise to farmers for skunk oil and once a year would throw the shop into panic getting out handbills printed on wallpaper remnants?

· Do you remember when Bill Patten got up a personal float? A banner showed Bill in grimy overalls working as a miner for a dollar a day under Cleveland hard times? Contrasted to the touching scene was Bill, his wife and the children sitting in a luxurious room with the streamer explaining that the change had come through good old Republican prosperity.

Jim also reminded Hal of how in 1906, Dean Dutton, a vigorous young preacher, who conducted street meetings; one night gave away an abandoned baby before a crowd that blocked the street. He wound up sending the baby to the Methodist orphanage.


Jim's last memory was of the horse drawn ambulances. They were determined to get to a min accident and would clang down Allen (Main) Street. Often it was a race between Steele and Sedgwick, rival undertakers. Sometimes they brought in three or four dead and mangled bodies and would lay them on display in the "undertaking parlors" to be viewed by hundreds. Dowdy women with children in their arms passed in line holding their babies up to see the gruesome sight.


Jim and Hal had purchased the sentinel from F.E. Adams and never resented their decision. In fact, Jim stated that he and Hal were better friends at the end of their partnership than they had been before. Later, Hal's son, Hal Jr. took over the Sentinel in keeping it in the family.


Speaking of newspaper printing, we have a challenge for the definition of "minding your p's and q's." It seems that Nick Frising recalls that it refers to the old printing type cases; because the p's and q's looked so much alike that you could easily make a mistake. Sentinel intern Michael Davison, remembers that his mother use to say "mind your (p)lease and than (q's). Cute! They all seem to make a lot of sense, don't they?




          Poor Emma Brunnelle

                    Moral of this story: Don't go into marriage "blindly"




          Published October 16, 1992


Life had been rough for Emma Brunnelle. Her husband had left her a widow at 30 years of age with two sons to raise. It had been really hard for her to leave the boys with her mother in LaPlata, Missouri. She came to Webb City where the mines were making men rich. Maybe she would her a rich young man to take care of her. Right now, she would have to be happy to have her job as a chambermaid working at the Webb City Hotel for $2.00 a week plus a room to sleep in and food to live on. But as she laid her head on the pillow each night, she said a little prayer in hopes that some day, her prince would come along to rescue her.


One day, the town was all-abuzz with the story of a blind man who claimed to have been robbed by the newsboy on the train. He was temporarily put up in the Webb City Hotel while the sheriff investigated his accusations. It didn't take long for the old blind man; Fleming was his name, to be taken by the charms of the young widow. Truth be known, it didn't take the young chambermaid long to be entranced with the stories Fleming told about his mines in Colorado which he claimed brought him about 10 to 12 hundred dollars a week.


On September 12, 1883, Emma Brunnelle and Fleming took the trip to Carthage to exchange wedding vows. Emma's prayers had been answered. Her rich man had come along. Even though he was a mite bit older that she would have preferred, he would still be able to give her a secure home for herself and her two sons, ages 14 and 9. Her search for a husband had taken a whole four months, but her search was ended…or was it?


Fleming promised Emma that they would go to Jefferson City for their honeymoon, then on to Florida to spend the winter and then to Colorado to check on his mines.


Only one day of marital bliss, Fleming abandoned his young bride and just disappeared. Emma had the sheriff and some of the miners out searching for her husband. Knowing him to be just a helpless blind man, she couldn't imagine him just up and leaving her. But he had done just that, up and left. Emma's dream had turned into a nightmare. Not only did she lose her husband, but also she had already given her notice at the Webb City Hotel, therefore she was unemployed with no money. You see, since Fleming had been robbed, he had talked her into giving him her savings until he could collect some funds from his mines in Colorado, at which time he would pay her back.


She finally found a job as a waitress and she once again began her search for the man of her dreams, the one who would take care of her for the rest of her life. Only this time…she would make sure she saw the money first before she fell for the stories being told.

                                 Heroes fought villainous fires





Published August 10, 1990


During the days of old, the greatest threat to the area was the threat of fire. A single blaze could wipe out an entire area in just a short time. Bucket brigades were formed to fight the fires, but usually to no avail. The town would lose up to a whole city block before the fire could be contained. Many buildings were being built with brick to try and outsmart the villain known as "fire"


In 1883, there was a big fire, which took the Pacific Hotel and Parker's Saloon along with four other buildings. The bucket brigade was able to put out small fires as they began, but the major fire itself, just had to burn out with the brigade trying to keep it from spreading. 


Then in 1889, under the leadership of Colonel Henry Wonner and T.C. (Tom) Hayden, the Webb City Volunteer Fire Department was organized.


One of the most active members of the organization was Charles W. Evans. Evans recalled being active with the bucket brigade when he was just a youth. During the big fire on the corner of Main (now Broadway) and Allen (now Main), at the Barnes Restaurant, Evans acted in what was referred to as an act of heroism, but in his later years, Evans recalled it as just "youthful" heroism.


It was the custom for grocery stores to carry small quantities of dynamite and the firm of Gammon and Henderson, in the same block of the fire kept an open box of gunpowder on the premises. Evans rushed into try to prevent, if possible an explosion.


"If I had thought about it a moment," said Evans, "I expect I never would have taken the risk. The fire was burning furiously all around me when I went into the grocery store. I found the open box of explosives standing there in the rear end, just where I had often seen it when I bought a dollar's worth at a time. Picking it up, I carried it through a shower of sparks and bits of burning timber as thick as hail. I ran across Allen (Main) and west on Main (Broadway), I tell you nobody was better pleased than I, when I dropped it in front of the old Webb place, later known as the Burgner place, and I found I had gotten free of the tricky stuff without an accident having happened!"


In 1899, under E.E. Spracklen as Mayor, Webb City got its first organized, paid fire department with an auto fire wagon, which cost $5,000. In 1911, Charles W. Evans was appointed fire chief.


Evans was born in West Hackney, County of Middlesex, England, on April 29, 1860, to Samuel and Elizabeth Evans. At the age of 12, Evan stowed away on a ship to come to the United States. He reached Webb City in 1877 and began working the mines.


Along with every other miner, Evans dreamed of mining his own mine. This dream was accomplished. In 1921, Evans served as city assessor, a position he held until his death, September 15, 1929.


Evans married Sarah Elizabeth Yadon. They had seven children, including Harry E. Evans, Nellie May Evans Kohnke, Minnie Evans Shultz, Ina Frances Evans and William Oscar Evans. All of the children were born at the old home place at 21 S. Ball.


Once again, Webb City is able to boast of a brave forefather who helped make our community the great place it is today.


A special thanks to Ted and Smokey Evans and Carol Jane Fox for sharing the information about their ancestor with us.

                     A modern woman once lived in the late 1800's





Published November 25, 1994


In this modern world, we are getting use to the sight of women as doctors, lawyers, highway workers, electricians and plumbers. But in the old days, women were suppose to stay home, take care of the house and have babies. If some misfortune found them without a husband but with children to support, they could take in borders, do laundry or cooking. Some women opened little shops downtown, such as millinery shops or cafes.


But in the late 1800's, there was a lady who stood out among ladies. Her name was Ella Harrison. Ella was born in Upper Sandusky, Ohio in April of 1859. At the age of 10, she moved with her parents, Mr. and Mrs. D.A. Harrison, to Jasper County. They lived on a farm 18 miles northeast of Carthage, later moving to Carthage.


Ella graduated from Carthage High school in 1881 and followed the natural routine for a young single woman. She started her career as a schoolteacher at Summit School, northeast of Carthage. Her mother had named (the school.)


The move to Carthage changed the Harrison's lives tremendously. Ella's father, D.A., had given up farming and made a major decision. He went to law school and became a lawyer, alter becoming a judge. Maybe it was this special spirit of her father's that Ella inherited because she wasn't satisfied with just a teaching career.


And what a career Ella developed. She went to the University of Iowa to study law. She also went to the Stanford University at Palo Alto, California. While there, she met Herbert Hoover, who was a member of the first freshman class of Stanford. She also met Herbert's future wife, Lou Henry, the only woman geology major attending Stanford. After finishing her studies at Stanford, Ella became a roving reporter in New York, Washington D.C., Seattle and other major cities.


Ella Harrison was a strong supporter of the Women's Suffrage Cause from 1890-1900. She was president of the Missouri Women's Suffrage Association and traveled throughout the country organizing suffrage groups.


In 1911, Ella Harrison became the war correspondent for N.Y. American in New Mexico. She was a reporter for the Arizona House of Representatives. She practiced law with her brother, Tom Harrison, in Carthage. She not only followed in her father's footsteps by becoming an attorney; she also became the Justice of the Peace for Jasper, the city that her father had platted.


Ella passed away in 1933, at the age of 74. She had led a full and active life. She was far from the traditional lady that lived in Jasper County during that time. She met a lot of important people, visited a lot of wonderful places and left her mark in history. If she were alive today, she would probably be holding office in Washington D.C. Perhaps she was a lady born before her time!

             Roy Teel: A Webb City businessman of many talent






Published December 2, 1994


Susan A. Murratta was born in Springfield, Kentucky in 1831. At the age of 54, her husband passed away, and being very adventurous, she made the move from Kentucky to Jasper County in 1886 with three of her four children. In 1893, they moved to Webb City.


Susan's son, James who was 28 years old at the time was a druggist at Murratta Drug Store located at 110 North main street. He had two sisters living in the area, Mrs. Belle Yankey and Sue Marratta. They bought a home at 404 North Ball Street. Life seemed to be going pretty well for the prosperous family, until July of 1903, when some fireworks exploded at the drug store and badly burned James' face. He never really recovered from that accident.


IN 1908, at the age of 77, Susan passed away and James continued on with the drug store. He also belonged to the Masons Scottish Rites, Elks, AF&AM and Knights Templar. But his health did not seem to improve. Then in 1911, the doctors decided they needed to amputate James' foot. It took two surgeries from which James did not recover. He died at the young age of 46.


Roy Teel then purchased the Murratta Drug Store and the name changed to the Teel Drug Store. Many memories of the Teel Drug Store have been shared. It seems that Roy Teel is most fondly remembered by Troop #25, of which he was made an honorary member. This honor was bestowed upon him for his kindness and a little for his generosity toward the troop with free ice cream.


The Teel family moved to Webb City from Illinois during the early days of mining development in the area. The children consisted of Catherine, Bob, Lee, Flora, Florence, Elizabeth, Maude and Roy.


Roy not only was known for his drug store, he also operated the Roy J. Teel Real estate, Loans and Insurance located at 117 East Broadway. A man of many talents. 

                          Hats off to Henson for a job well done





Published January 14, 1994


Henry C. Henson was a carpenter and a durn good one. He seemed to excel in any project he undertook. After graduating form school at the age of 16, he learned the carpenter trade, starting our as a journeyman and working up to contractor.


Having been the eighth child of a family of 10 children, Henry learned he had to excel to be noticed. His father had been a farmer, contractor, and a merchant. But the father, William Henson had passed away early in life leaving his wife with the 10 children. Everyone pitched in and did their share to help the family run smooth, even 8 year old Henry.


In 1893, Henry moved from Garnet, Kansas to the booming mining town of Carterville. He accepted a position of bookkeeper with the Carterville Lumber Yard. But, being homesick, he quit after a year and returned to Garnet and tried his hand at farming and livestock.


Even after 5 years, Missouri kept calling for Henry to return. He found he had actually grown kind of fond of the area and he knew it was a promising place to start a new career. So, 1899 found Henry back in Carterville and the same job. Not long after coming back to Missouri, the Carterville Lumber Company was sold to J.H. Leidigh and Mr. Leidigh changed the name of the lumberyard to Mineral Belt Lumber Company. Henry stayed on with Mr. Leidigh as his general manager.


After five years of hard work, Henry C. Henson bought half interest in the lumberyard and it became incorporated. The new name of the lumberyard was Leidigh and Henson Lumber Company.

December 1, 1909, Mr. Leidigh sold his stock to Mr. James A. Daugherty and others and the name of the corporation was changed to H.C. Henson Lumber Company with James A. Daugherty as President.


Henry became one of the masters of the lumber trade. He had knowledge of what was needed since he had been a carpenter. He managed to keep larger amounts of stock on hand for convenience of the local contractors. He was always interested in the new items on the market and would be the first to stock them. He made quite a success of his lumber business.


Henry married Miss Lydia Pontious of Garnet, Kansas and they had two daughters, Olive Van and Osa May. Henry lived to be 82 and had a life to be proud of. He didn't enjoy being involved in politics, but he did serve on the Carterville City Council and he was an active member of the Masonic Lodge. He also had interest in several mining propositions, which brought in a healthy sum of dividends.


Our hats are off to a fine gentleman who not only knew what to do with his life, but also did it exceedingly well.

                    Isaac Hess, one of those who loved Webb City





Published September 6, 1991


Most of the prominent citizens we focus on seem to have one thing in common: their love for the community. One such individual from our past was Isaac C. Hess.


Isaac was born in Shannon County, and his parents were from Alabama. Isaac married Miss Rosa Wisby of Franklin County and they had four children: Lee, Gertie, Earl and Lester.


A well-known Democrat of the area, Isaac was elected a member of the City Council of Webb City in 1898, 1900, and 1902. He was also active with the Odd Fellows and the Knights and Ladies of Security.


Isaac and Rosa lived in a beautiful home at 307 E. Daugherty Street. Their pride in the community showed in their willingness to serve and to put their shoulders to the wheel to help start or maintain any movement that promised to advance the interests of any of the citizens of Webb City.


Isaac was the engineer of the Center Creek Mining Company and in charge of mining station No. 1. The second engineer who assisted him in his duties was his brother, John A. Hess (who was formerly an engineer for the Iron Mountain Railway Company.)


Isaac felt a favorable impression in this community. He proved himself as a worthy elected official and those who knew him believed he could handle any position given to him.

                              Scandal hit Webb City in 1880





Published April 6, 1990


Like a bolt of lightening out of a clear blue sky, the people of Webb City were startled to learn of the arrest of Harry and Frankie Woodard on Saturday, January 11, 1880. At 11 a.m., Sheriff McBride went to the home of William Toms, to arrest the Woodards for the murder of Toms' wife. The charges were filed after Mrs. Toms' son, Charles James Thurnbull, reported that he had proof that the Woodards had plotted to kill his mother.


Mrs. Toms had died the previous week of what appeared to be an overdose of laudanum (a mixture of opium and alcohol). It was suggested that it might have been suicide.


After Thurnbull filed the complaint, the matter was open for investigation. Thurnbull claimed that he had overheard a conversation between the Woodards, leading him to believe that they had killed his mother and that his life was in danger. He said Mrs.Toms had forebodings of upcoming evil and she told him where she had hidden some money. Thurnbull claimed that Woodards gave Mrs. Toms some poisoned wine the day she became ill.


An update on the family shows that William Toms was an Englishman by birth. Business took him to Australia a lot, where he supposedly met Mrs. Toms. They were married in England in 1867. 


Thurnbull said he had never seen Toms before the wedding. He went on to say that he had never remembered seeing his mother before the wedding either. He remembered a lady in a carriage coming by and throwing money out of the carriage for him. He never saw the lady's face. But, after the wedding, his mother told him that she had been the lady in the carriage. 


The Toms and Thurnbull came to America and had some business adventures in Kansas before settling in Webb City. Toms had a lot of energy, but didn't seem too successful with business. He opened a lead furnace on Ben's Branch between Webb City and Carterville in 1876.


Harry Woodard was the supervisor of the crusher for Toms and he and his wife lived in the same house with Mr. and Mrs. Toms. Thurnbull insinuated that Toms was having an affair with Mrs. Woodard.


Thurnbull's testimony revealed many life secrets and aroused lots of curiosity. Everyone began to wonder if Mrs. Toms had been murdered or did she die naturally?


The attorney for the State ordered a committee of physicians to conduct an autopsy. Dr. Brooks, Dr. Hill and Dr. Matthews were appointed. The body was exhumed and the autopsy performed. A report was not given to the public right away and the trial continued.


Thurnbull continued to tell wild and insinuating stories that made the fair ladies blush as they discussed the trial at their social gatherings. Would they ever know the truth for sure? Or did Mrs. Toms take a secret with her to the grave?


Dr. T.C. Miller was the attending physician in the case. He had treated Mrs. Toms for an overdose of laudanum. He had given her Emetric to induce vomiting. A second dose was given later and Mrs. Toms seemed to be doing better.


She asked to be left alone so she could rest. Upon returning to her room, it was discovered that she had take more laudanum and they were unable to bring her out of her drowsy state. Mrs. Luther Wilcox, a friend, assisted Dr. Miller in caring for Mrs. Toms,


Did Mrs. Toms end her own life? Was there a reason for her to do that? Was there an affair going on that she couldn't live with? Or was there someone else who wanted her out of the way? Was she an obstacle in their pathway of fun? Or could Thurnbull have carried a grudge against his mother for the years she seemed to have abandoned him? Could he have seen a way to get Toms and the Woodards out of the picture so he could have all of the inheritance?


The trial continued until January 22, 1880. At 8 p.m., Justice Brown terminated the trial and discharged the Woodards. We'll never know for sure what really happened to Mrs. Toms. But the citizens of Webb City had plenty to talk about in their parlors during the month of January and probably many months to come in 1880.


As for William Toms, his trouble wasn't over yet. His lead furnace was destroyed by fire the same year. If Toms was not responsible for the death of his wife, he deserves some sympathy for having a very bad year.

Register publisher Alice Rozelle was a pioneer business woman





Published August 4, 1997


Many times I have mentioned the first brick home in Webb City which was built by our founder, John C. Webb. The home was located on the west side of Webb Street between Broadway and Daugherty streets. Today 112 North Webb is the location of Myers, Baker Rife and Denham CPAs and the law firm of Myers, Taylor Whitworth and Associates. 


Larry Larsen tore down the original house, in 1936 to build the present building, which housed the Civic Drive-in Restaurant.


John C. Webb had built his new house in 1882 next to the location of his original log cabin that he had lived in for almost 20 years before he discovered lead. This house was his symbol of success, but he didn't get to live in it very long before his death in 1883. His daughter, Mary Sue Webb Burgner lived in the home after the death of her father.


In 1891, a gentleman by the name of W.A. Snodgrass established a newspaper in Webb City known as the Daily Register. He housed his business in the old Webb/Burgner house at 112 North Webb Street. The paper was a highly thought of institution, doing a weekly edition on each Monday.


In the meantime, there was a young man by the name of Arthur B. Rozelle who was making quite a name in the newspaper business. In 1882, at the age of 22, Rozelle founded a newspaper in Iowa, which he operated for about 10 years before heading south into Missouri. In a little northwest town called Tarkio, Rozelle established another newspaper, which he operated until about 1898, at which time he moved farther south to buy the Lamar Leader. After five years in Lamar, Rozelle came to Webb City (1903) and purchased the Daily Register.

One of the first things of business that Rozelle did was to hire a young lady as a reporter. Miss Alice C. Cresswell was 18 years old, fresh out of school and eager to show what a good reporter she could be. She took giant steps in the journalism field, as she became city editor, business manager, and associate editor. But her biggest step was in 1908, when she became Mrs. Arthur Rozelle, which promoted her to co-publisher. This new title gave Alice Rozelle a touch of distinction, as she was one of the earliest women publishers in the state of Missouri.


After only four years of marriage, one daughter and another on the way, (their first child, a boy had died at the age of 7 months), Arthur became very ill. His illness was a result of blood poisoning from carbuncles. Now this man was so highly thought of in the city, that as Arthur lay in bed at his home at 423 North Roane street, Mayor W.V.K. Spencer ordered the streets near the Rozelle home to be roped off, to prevent traffic and noise, that might affect the slightest chance the editor had for recovery. It was the last week of June and children were warned not to shoot firecrackers before the 4th of July. No excess noise was allowed.


Arthur died on June 28, 1912, five months before his second daughter was born. 


The entire town mourned the death of this beloved citizen. There was such a large turnout for the services that the Southwest Missouri Electric Railway Company supplied a streetcar to carry mourners from the Methodist Church to Mt. Hope Cemetery.


In the paper it stated: "If everyone for whom he had done some loving kindness brings one blossom to his bier he would sleep beneath a wilderness of flowers." And that is just what happened. Everyone remembered Arthur Rozelle with a blossom, even small children who knew him, remembered him by placing a blossom on his grave.


For the young widow, life went on. She had a business to run and children to raise. Alice was now publisher and editor, and she took on this responsibility with a strong desire to succeed. At the height of the newspaper's success, under Alice's charge, the Webb City Daily Register had a circulation of 12,000 and was published in 8 to 16 pages, six days a week.


In 1918, the mining industry dwindled and Alice closed down the newspaper but kept the title in hopes of a revival of the mining business, which would create a need for the Register. In the meantime, she kept busy doing free lance writing, advertising promotions, and reporting for other area newspapers.


Many of you may remember that the daughter, born after Arthur's death was Nadine who married P.Don Crockett, one of Webb City's finest mayors. The home that was mentioned at 423 North Roane has been in the family since 1901. Eminger and Elija Jane Cresswell built three houses on Roane when they first move to Webb City with the last being completed in 1906. They had planned on using all three as rental houses, but plans change and they decided to live in one. Their daughter Alice Rozelle lived there, as did her daughter, Nadine and now the daughters of Nadine and Don Crockett live there making it four generations. Alice Cresswell Rozelle lived to the age of 87, having lived in that house for 71 of those 87 years. Nadine Rozelle Crockett lived to the age of 82 and had lived in that house all of her life.


Arthur and Alice Rozelle left their mark in Webb City. Both were well thought of and both were masters in their trade. Arthur left his business in good hands as Alice was a strong pioneer of women in business. At her death, in 1972, Alice C. Rozelle was given the title of "Dean of County's Journalists".


A special thanks to Alice Crockett Ladd for helping fill in the blanks on this wonderful couple that Webb City claims as part of it's heritage.

                                         What a honeymoon





  Hal and Gladys Wise





    Published July 31, 1992


At the turn of the century, many a young newlywed couple would head to Niagra Falls for a romantic honeymoon. Niagra Falls had quite a reputation as being the honeymoon capital of the world.


But one particular young groom had an entirely different view of what a honeymoon should be. Mr. Hal Wise took his lovely fiancée, Miss Gladys Warthen to Galena, Stone County, Missouri. They were wed in the Methodist Church there, at 3 p.m. on Sunday, February 8, 1909.


Bright and early on Monday morning, Hal took his new bride on the most unusual honeymoon. They took a tour day boat trip down 100 romantic miles of the James and White Rivers. Their destination was to be the "Hello Bill" log cabin that Hal had built three years previously at the mouth of Indian Creek.


The log cabin had the barest of necessities. But Hal had a dream to spend the first two weeks of his married life in front of a big stone fireplace (during winter) in the humble cabin just as his grandparents did when they first came to this country.


They would travel into town, I guess on foot, to get their mail at the Notch (Mo.) post office. That ol' Hal had quite a romantic way about him, don't you think? And I have a lot of respect for Gladys to have managed those two weeks without much complaining. But, if you think about it, if their marriage could last through the honeymoon, they were destined to a happy marriage. 

                      Hal Wise grew to be fine newspaperman





Published August 13, 1992


Ann Francis daughter of Robert Jesse and Olive Cox Dale, was born on March 24, 1851. She was the fourth of nine children. On March 25, 1871, Ann Francis married Andrew M. Wise (on her father's 51st birthday.) To this union were born three children; May Wise, Hal M. Wise and Orville Wise.


Only seven years after their marriage, Andrew died an early death, leaving a very young widow with three children to raise alone. The year was 1878 and Ann Francis, being of strong pioneer blood, managed to raise those children in such a manner that they were pillars of the community.


The middle child, Hal M. Wise, started at a young age to be involved in the community. In the early 1890's, football was just beginning to be played in the local high schools. Hal was going to school at Carthage and played on the first football team.


Their coach was a new teacher who had been a football star at the University of Missouri. He got the boys interested in playing the sport of football and they became one of the best teams around, having to play such teams as Drury College.


Besides playing football, Hal was the editor of the Carthage Press, until he started college at the University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia.


After graduating from the University, Hal worked for the Philadelphia Inquirer. In 1904, Hal was working for the St. Louis Post-Dispatch. He covered the World's Fair in St. Louis. In 1905, he was given a special assignment to do a series of features in Oklahoma and Texas.


In 1906, Hal has an opportunity he couldn't pass up. He and an old publishing comrade, James E. Stickney, purchased the Webb City Sentinel. After eight years, James sold his interest in the Sentinel to a cousin, Walter Stickney. Walter lost interest after a couple of years and sold his share of the paper to Hal. As sole owner of the Webb City Sentinel, Hal was able to do things his own way and the newspaper flourished. Hal had a wonderful way with words and his feature articles showed just what a dedicated and loyal citizen Hal was to Webb City.


Hal married Miss Gladys Warthen on February 7, 1909. In a past issue we told of their wonderful honeymoon in the log cabin. Despite that trying honeymoon, Hal and Gladys had four children. They were; Helaine, Hal M. Jr. George, and Andrew.

Hal wrote a feature article on the 25th Anniversary of his being the editor of the Webb City Sentinel. I would like to quote from that article, a paragraph that shows Hal's dedication to the town of Webb City. 


"The Sentinel has urged for 25 years and will urge again, that we of Webb City look upward; not compare ourselves with bigger towns and lament 'what a dinky town with is, what a dumbbell I am to stay in Webb City'…but to buy stock in ourselves, to believe in our own stores and shops, our own shows and parks, our schools and churches; to believe in hometown trade and traditions…and that our town is the best town on earth." (Taken from the Webb City Sentinel, March 19, 1931).


                       Not all politicians fit the stereotype





Published June 5, 1992


Some of the people in our country have forgotten just how lucky they are to be living in this great United States. Sure, there are days that you get disgusted with politics and those in charge, but we still have it better than a lot of other countries.


One of the things that made our country so great is the fact that an ordinary fellow can be in an authoritative position. It use to be an honor to hold those positions, but lately, those honors have been tarnished.


In 1857, Isaac and Sarah DeHart Schooler moved into Jasper County. Isaac was the son of John Schooler, who was an Ohio State Representative. Following in his father's footsteps, Isaac became involved in his community and became a judge. His farming was his life, but being a judge was very important to Isaac.


Isaac and Sarah had two sons who followed their father and grandfather's lead. John N. Schooler became a member of the eastern Jasper County legislature. John was a Republican and an honorary member of the 32nd General Assembly of the State of Missouri. The second son, William R. Schooler, became a judge just like his dad.


In 1869, Isaac's brother Samuel moved to the Jasper County area. He served the county as tax collector. Samuel's son, E. Lee Schooler, did not follow along the political path of his family, instead he became very active in the mining industry, for which Jasper County was well known. Lee was the superintendent of the American Zinc and Lead Smelting Company, Carthage Lead and Zinc Company, Victor Mining Company, Ashcraft & Reynolds Mining Company and handled many mining enterprises for Allen Hardy.


Some have the opinion that only lazy men seek an office of politics, but those particular individuals have never felt the frustration or the exhaustion of being a politician trying to help the ungrateful. Now, I admit there are a few out there who give their positions had reputations, but politicians should not be categorized. Stand behind your representatives. Vote in the election. 


If you have had a politician in your family history, be proud and let the world knew that your ancestor helped to build this glorious country we live in.



              Judge Ray Watson stayed home





Published June 23, 2000


M.H. (Marcella Hayden) Watson and his wife Kate Graham Watson moved to Webb City in 1885. They had a large happy family of four boys and two girls: Claude, Frank, Ray, Dorsey, Ethel, and Valeria. All the children were model citizens of Webb City and left fine legacies, but today's story in about one particular family member…Ray E. Watson.


Ray was raised in a family that wasn't afraid of work. His father worked in the mines, and his mother baked bread and other delicacies that she sold to help support the family. Ray followed in his parent's footsteps. After graduating from Webb City High School in 1910, he went to the University of Missouri School of Law. To support himself while at the university, Ray worked at the bookstore on campus and then during the summer, he worked in the wheat fields of Kansas along with some of his friends, Jack Spracklen, W. Alton Jones, and his brother, Dorsey Watson.


After graduation from law school in 1916, Ray stayed on at the bookstore to save some money to prepare for his future law practice. Upon returning to Webb City, Tom Roney gave him some space in his law office to commence his law practice.


But things weren't meant to be…World War I changed Ray's plans. He entered the U.S. Army Training School and in November of 1917 was commissioned a Second Lieutenant and ordered to France. He served in active duty from January 1918 until February 1919, when he was wounded in both legs by machine gun fire.


In recognition of his extraordinary heroism, the U.S. Government awarded Ray with the Distinguished Service Cross and the Purple Heart. From the French Government, he received the French Croiz-de-Guerre, which read: "An officer of admirable courage. Although severely wounded, he remained in command of his platoon. With coolness and an absolute disregard of danger, under heavy machine gun fire, he repulsed the attack of the infantry of the enemy."


After returning to Webb City, in 1920, Ray helped to organize Battery G of the 203rd Coast Artillery of the reconstituted Missouri National Guard. He accepted a Captain's commission and became the battery's first commanding officer.


1923 was a good year for Ray as he was promoted to major and became Colonel in 1933. Also in 1923, he married his sweetheart, Hazel Gist, of Joplin. Of this union there were two daughters, Lois Watson Spracklen and Frances Watson Lewis.


Ray E. Watson ran for the office of city attorney and lost his first race, but he was undaunted as he said, "You must be defeated to appreciate winning!" Moving on in his political career, he was elected prosecuting attorney in 1930, a position he held for four years. A quote from the Kansas City Star states: "Ray Watson's record as prosecuting attorney stands as one of the most enviable in all of the history of the county. Within a period of only about two years, he handled seventeen capital crime cases and did not lose a single case. During a wave of crime, which swept the county soon after the depression struck, Watson assumed the role of investigator as well as prosecutor. He was 'on the scene' in every crime inquiry."

Ray's career moved from prosecuting attorney into the office of judge of Division No. 1 of Jasper County circuit Court, where he served for 21 years and 8 months until he retired.

When he was up for re-election in 1940, he was out of town with the National Guard, which was federalized 15 months before Pearl Harbor. He won without even campaigning. When he returned to the bench in 1942, he earned the reputation of being a tough but fair judge.

Watson was involved in the community and served in a leadership role in many organizations, such as the Board of Governors of the Missouri Bar Association, Jane Chinn Hospital, and Jasper County Board of Jail Visitors. He also supported many civic organizations such as the Masonic Lodge, elks Lodge, I.O.O.F lodge, and the American Legion.

He devoted many hours to the hospital board throughout the years. He was instrumental in securing grants from the W.Alton Jones Foundation to build two additions to the hospital building. There was an ulterior motive behind his desire to help maintain a good hospital. He felt that the dedicated nurses who took care of him during WWI kept his wounds from becoming disabling. Since Ray couldn't return the favor to the nurses personally, he would help someone else, thus creating a chain of good will. After more than 25 years on the hospital board, he was elected president emeritus.

When Ray Watson walked down the streets in Joplin or on the square in Carthage, many called out a greeting to "Judge" or "Colonel", but in Webb City, the greeting was simply "Ray"…and that was what he wanted. He treated all people with the same respect and dignity, no matter what might be their walk in life. He was constantly being asked for his advice or guidance while at the post office, in a restaurant, or even at home, and when those asking offered to pay for that advice, he never accepted the money. The biggest contribution of his lifetime was his "one on one" with the citizens of Webb City that he considered his friends.

An editorial in the Webb City Sentinel, after Ray's death in 1979, at the age of 87 summed up his life pretty well: 

SMALL TOWNS HAVE BEEN KNOWN to point with pride to sons and daughters who left home and became successful in their chosen fields. Quite rightly so. We reflect in their glory. Less often do we recognize that those who "stayed home" are the ones who make the greatest contribution to our quality of life. They support and give leadership to our civic institutions, our schools, our churches, and our businesses. The Webb City community has been a better place to live and raise a family and our lives all enriched because Judge Ray E. Watson "stayed home".

Judge Watson's service in the Armed forces in two wars, his decorations of bravery, his repeated election to public office as prosecutor and judge, his service on many "Blue Ribbon" committees and his service to his church attest to his dedication and service to the welfare of his fellowman. With Judge Watson, his family always came first, but he was a member of many families: a lawyer, a soldier, a jurist, a church and civic leader. Each of these "families" has suffered a great loss but none greater than the Webb City Community. We point with pride that he "stayed home." He will be missed. 

What a wonderful tribute to a wonderful man! I would like to thank Lois Spracklen for the information she supplied about her father. She has a wonderful heritage of which she and Frances Lewis both have a right to be proud.

            Claude L. Watson, noted as one of the most active 

                 and intelligent promoters of Jasper County


Marcellus (M.H.) and Kate Graham Watson were married April 6, 1879 and had six children, Claude L. (1880), Frank (1887), Ethel (1889), Ray E. (1891), Dorsey (1894) and Valeria (1898). Claude was the oldest and had a head start on the rest of the family. He attended the first school building in Webb City, a one-story frame school located on Webb Street between Broadway and First Streets. As the schools improved throughout the city, After graduation, Claude found himself teaching, but decided that wasn't the profession for him. 


Claude had an interest in real estate but before he could really get his feet wet, he had the opportunity to run for the political position of City Clerk. After winning the election in 1904, young Claude enjoyed his term in office, but soon developed an illness that required him to work outside. The most prominent employment for Clause seemed to be millwork. After a couple of years, Claude decided to get back into real estate, so on July 1, 1909, Claude organized and incorporated the Claude L. Watson Real estate and Investment Company.


Having been married since 1901, Claude and his wife Lutie Cresswell Watson welcomed a new addition to the family the same year that Claude opened his new business. On October 26, 1909, R.E. Watson was born.


Claude's business grew steadily and Claude became noted for his expertise in property within in the city limits and farmland as well. 


But Claude notability seems to come from the fact that he is associated with Webb City Theosophical Society and has a fondness for good literature. Claude had a prized collection of over a thousand volumes of books in his own private library at home. He became a lecturer for the International Philosophical Society and continued in that service for 25 years.

                   Mines and Wells Fargo helped shape young family


At a young age, Orin R. Ward went to work in the mines, as many young men in Webb City area did. Orin was fortunate enough to escape the mines when he went to work for Wells Fargo.


Cargo would come into Webb City by railway. Orin would meet the trains and load the cargo onto his Wells Fargo Wagon to be distributed to various locations.


The west end of town was the hustle and bustle of the railway. Along with the Wells Fargo, there were many liveries, such as the "Frisco Livery" located at 214 North Madison, one-half block west of the Frisco Depot. The Frisco Livery featured carriage and baggage transfer. They boarded horses and stored wagons and buggies. If you weren't traveling by railway, you could "catch a jitney" and ride by wagon for five cents.


Orin married Sophia Brannon on November 14, 1907. Sophia was the daughter of Benjamin and Rebecca Mosses Brannon. The other Brannon children included Annie, who was married to L.M. Long; Kate married Byron Wells; and Birdie was married to Charles O. Connelly.

Not long after their lives were just getting settled, tragedy struck for Orin and Sophia. The mining job that had given Orin his start as a teenager took his life away. Orin got consumption from working in the mines and even though he had changed occupations, the consumption still took his life away at the early age of 28.


Sophia and Orin had a son named Kenneth. While Kenneth was at the CC Camp in New Madrid, Missouri, he met the love of his life, Miss Vivian Simpson. So, he brought Vivian (Pippy, as family members knew her) back to Webb City. This was Vivian's first time to be away from her loving family and she was homesick.


In 1942, Kenneth built Vivian a home of her own at 708 West 11th. Except for the year Vivian and Kenneth went to Lawrence, Kansas to work at the Rocket Powder Plant during the war, they have lived in the home Kenneth built for his bride.


Many young people can remember gathering around the old pump organ with Uncle Kenny and Aunt Pip to sing songs. (Of course, Vivan says she "had a voice for calling pigs, not singing!") There were many hayrides where once again, there was singing and laughing. A good time could be had by all.


Kenneth worked at the Webb Corp for 34 years. His roots were deep in the Webb City soil. Even though Kenny has left this world, his home holds many loving memories of him. 


A special thanks to Vivian Ward for sharing these wonderful memories of her husband and family.




                     W.W. Wampler





   Published April 27, 1990


W.W. Wampler had his home built on the Southwest corner of First and Oronogo Streets. It still stands today, minus several distinguishing architectural features.


Mr. Wampler was an active member of the Presbyterian Church. He was an elder for 24 years, clerk of Session, trustee, Sunday School teacher delegate and a member of various pulpit committees. When he died on January 30, 1939, he was said to have lived a long life with many good deeds.


      Few have lived life and history the way Thomas Sauls did




        Published November 18, 1994


Thomas E. Sauls was born in 1803. By the time he reached the age of 25. Many new things were happening in this great country. One of those happenings was the discovery of lead. This lead was a novelty for Americans who were only familiar with copper at that time. This new discovery captured the attention of many young men who headed west to make their fortunes. The great gold rush for California had not yet occurred.


In 1828, a young Virginian by the name of Thomas Sauls had learned of the wonderful lead mines of Missouri. He was determined to reach this new phenomenon and cast his fortunes with the other dreamers of America.


To get from Virginia to Missouri, when railroads were unknown and most of the roadway was a trackless wilderness, was no small task. But young Sauls had the true grit and one bright summer morning, with all his worldly possessions wrapped up in a yellow cotton handkerchief, he started walking west.


Thomas Sauls was quoted as saying; "I shall never forget the look of sadness, which overspread my mother's face, when I bid her goodbye. She said she "would never again meet me on this earth," and she was not mistaken. She died just a few years afterward.


During his journey, Thomas first had to walk north across the Appalachian Mountains to Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. There he obtained a canoe, and putting his luck in God's hands, set himself afloat down the Ohio River with its rapid current. He stopped in Illinois and for 15 years he put his body and soul into mining.


As word spread about the ore strikes in southwest Missouri, Thomas once again set out on foot in search of fortune. He arrived in the Six Bulls country, later known as Southwest Missouri, and noticed that the few miners who were obtaining mineral had no way of smeltering. The Granby Company backed him as Thomas Sauls constructed the first lead smelter. Known as an air furnace, it was located about two miles south of Parr Hill on Shoal Creek. His only competition came a few years later, when Captain Livingston started one on Center creek. But there was enough business for both furnaces.


It wasn't just the smelter furnace, however that carried Thomas Sauls' name into history. Thomas was a dedicated military person, having served the government in the Mexican War, the Civil War, and the Seminole Indian War. This is quite an accomplishment, but there's more!


Thomas E. Sauls went on to have the title of Centenarian in Webb City and later in Jasper County. When someone lives for more than 100 years, it is amazing, but when you add the special contributions of serving in three wars and being a mining pioneer, it adds to the glory.


In November 1904, when Sgt. Thomas E. Sauls was 102, it was reported that he walked to the polls unassisted to vote for the president of the United States, a habit he had established during every election since he was of voting age. He was also one of the few to be able to say that he had personally met and shaken hands with all but two presidents of that time, President Washington and President Roosevelt.


Sauls received many honors in his life, one of which, was a visit to the Missouri House of Representatives in 1904 where he received three hearty cheers from the assembly. In 1906, during the last year of his life, Judge C.E. Elliott of Oronogo held an honorary celebration for him at the Newland Hotel in Webb City. (The Judge and Sauls had served in the Civil War together in the same regiment.) Sauls' health, however was failing, so instead of him going to the celebration, the celebration came to him at his home on North Liberty. Sauls' bad eyesight prevented him from seeing his friends, but he managed to recognize everyone by the sound of their voice.


So it seems that Thomas E. Sauls was a walking history book. He lived through much of the United States history and participated in it as well. What a wonderful person to claim as one of Webb City's forefathers!


Thank you William H. Perry for sharing this information on Thomas E. Sauls.


   Robert Toutz donated the property for Memorial Park



      And his son directed the municipal band





Published October 22, 1993


Throughout the pages of history about the United States, you read where people came to the United States seeking fortune, fame or freedom. As they gathered in this vast country, they usually sought out others from their own homeland. The Irish, Swedes, Germans all did this. They even formed little colonies to feel closer and not so far from home.


One such gentleman, Robert D.Toutz, had a dream to come to America. His goal was accomplished at the age of 16, when he reached the shores of the United States. The year was 1879, and Robert arrived first in Bloomington, Illinois. Later he ventured into Jasper County, settling in Carthage.


Feeling more at ease with other German families, it only seemed natural that Robert should marry Elizabeth M. Gentes. Elizabeth's family had come to the United States from Germany in 1866, when she was only 4 years old. The Gentes family consisted of five children, Jacob J., Daniel, Lena (Tappana), Anna (Ruitt), and of course, Elizabeth (Toutz).


Robert and Elizabeth moved their family to Webb City in 1891 and bought a house at 315 West Austin Street. All of his children were raised in that house. Robert and Elizabeth both passed away in their family home, Robert in 1936 and Elizabeth in 1929.


Robert was involved in the community by serving on the city council and the Board of Education. Elizabeth was known for her involvement with the War Mother's chapter.


Robert was a mine operator. He operated the Richland Mine and the Marguerite Mine near Carterville and he was the mine superintendent for the American Zinc Lead and Smelting Company and the C.T. Orr Mines.


Robert was responsible for the land being donated for Memorial Park. His son, Robert,Jr. became well known in the area as the Director of the Webb City Municipal Band which played every week at the Memorial Park.


All the children in the Toutz family were musically inclined. The children were: Robert Jr., Carl, Otto, Earl, Alfred, Caroline, Lillian (Davis), Bertha (Malang) and Gladys (Olson).

If you close your eyes, you can just imagine the sound of the band playing on a warm Saturday evening. Young couples walking hand in hand, children running and playing. Those were the good ole days!





The Tholborns

                                              Published August 29, 1997


Joseph Tholborn was 27 years old when he embarked on a great journey with his young wife, Mary and their new baby boy, Walter, born October 23, 1846.They were leaving their homeland of England to travel to the "land of milk and honey"! It's the late 1840's and the land of America is getting pretty settled in by then, but when you reach those golden shores, how do you determine where you'll plant your feet?


Well, it took a little hoppin around as this small family searched out New York (with Mary passing away in this new land). Joseph and his small son went on to Canada and Wisconsin, but happiness wasn't there. They finally found their little corner of the world in Cole County by Jefferson City. The year was 1852.


Walter grew up in Jefferson City and when he reached the ripe old age of 20, he headed to Newton County and dabbled in agriculture for six years. While in Newton County, Walter met a pretty young maid by the name of Hila Katherine Harris and they were married in 1870. With this new family to consider, Walter had to weigh each decision carefully.


In 1872, the young family moved to Joplin so Walter could work in the Murphy & Davis Smelter. It didn't take long for him to realize that the money was in mining, not in smelting. In 1877, he was given the opportunity to be superintendent of the North Creek Mining Company. While he was superintendent, Walter made a name for himself by starting the first steam concentrator works for this part of the country. Walter became a very sought after individual and in 1879 put in the same type of operations for Pat Murphy and Salem L. Cheney at Short Creek.


Cheney recognized Walter's talent in agriculture and took him on to manage the Cheney farms, which Walter seemed to enjoy until about 1883, when the call of the mines drew him to Webb City.


Getting the mining out of his system, in 1887, Walter sold his mining properties and opened a livery barn. This was a good business that financially profited Walter and allowed him to care for his family of four children. But as often happens, when one is feeling content, life deals you some hard blows. A fire burned down the livery barn in 1900 and Walter lost all of his stock and equipment along with the barn. With no insurance, this totally wiped out the family's assets.


Being the type of person he was, there was no time to feel sorry for himself. Walter jumped right into a position as motorman for the Interurban Streetcar Line. This job kept the family on its feet. When life was fairly stable again, Walter headed out into the world of sales. He became a salesman for a powder company and was pretty content until he had a great opportunity to become the postmaster of Webb City in 1906.


By this time, Walter was 60 years old and he had lived a life full of variety. He was content to sit back and enjoy his new career. He had a nice family to share his life. Walter and Hila had two boys and two girls that they raised at 109 North Oronogo Street (now the parking lot of the Baptist Church). 


Their children were Joseph Oliver Tholborn, who married Anna Lee. They lived in Kansas City while Joseph was a Frisco employee and they had one daughter, Ruth. Joseph came back to Webb City when he retired and lived at 810 Broadway.


Cora Thoborn married W.E.Moore, who was a cashier for Webb City Bank. Her sister, Ethel married E.A. Mattes, who was a well-known businessman in Joplin.


But the child that impressed me the most, was Walter (Harry) Tholborn who seemed to be going like his father, for whom he was named after. Harry had a wife named Maude and there daughters, Dorothy, Vivian, and Josephine. They lived at 421 South Madison.


Now, Harry was a postal employee at a young age (I'm sure his father being a postmaster had something to do with that). He became well known in the area by being the leading breeder of pedigreed Jersey cows.


But he became even better known in the community by his concern and activity in the area. He served as county assessor and he was mayor of Webb City in 1928. When he died in 1946 he was serving as President of the school board.


What a great family to have in Webb City. TheTholborns were an asset to our community and worth mentioning, as part of the builders of our past.

              Milton Terry led a distinguished life despite tragic beginning





Published 


On a beautiful farm just two miles from Carterville, Milton Curtis Terry was born. The date was March 5, 1864 and Jesse K. Terry couldn’t have been prouder. This 30-year old father had a beautiful son and a proud Scotch-Irish ancestry.


Jesse moved to this area from Tennessee and his family watched the Jasper County area grow and prosper.


In just four short months, tragedy struck the Terry household when bushwhackers killed Jesse. July 3, 1864 was a dark day in Milton's young life…being left fatherless while just a baby.


Milton was raised on his grandfather's farm until he was 17 years old. He had a natural talent where business was concerned. At a young age, he developed a specialty of raising thoroughbred Jersey cattle and Poland China hogs.


Throughout his life, Milton was involved in many important organizations. He was the director and stockholder of the First National Bank of Carterville; secretary of the Interurban Ice Company; President of the Southwest Supply Company; manager of the Billican Mining Company; stockholder of the Carpenter & Shaffer Commission Company; and secretary of the Henson Lumber Company.


As if that wasn’t impressive enough, Milton also served as a judge of the Western District in 1899. He was a member of the Carterville School Board. He was the school director. He held one term on the city council, was mayor for one term and was the president of the special road district.


Now in his "spare time", Mr. Terry enjoyed being a member of the Masons, and the Modern Woodmen of America. He was also active in the Presbyterian Church.


Somewhere in this busy man's schedule, he married Kate Jackson on November 22, 1892. Kate and Milton had a beautiful family of five with the youngest being born on the 17th wedding anniversary. Mabel Ann (1895), Jessie Kate (1897), Madge (1900), Milton, Jr. (1904) and Paul D. (1909).


The middle child born to this loving couple was Madge Terry. Now most of you will remember Madge from all the Webb City High School annuals; she served as secretary for the school board for many years. And now her son, Terry James, has continued the family spirit as he now holds the title as the school board member who has served the most years (beating out Dr. Slaughter's record of 22 years). 

And we know that Terry James has caught his grandfather's natural ability to be able to handle any project put before him, and he does it to the best of his ability.


Milton Curtis Terry is a forefather that anyone would be proud to claim as an ancestor, but Terry James really gets to claim him as his grandfather. And I'm pretty sure Milton is proud of his grandson also.

Added note: Since this story was printed, there is a school named in honor of Madge, it is the Madge T. James Kindergarten.

      Starkweather opened store across the street from his former employer





Published April 19, 1996


The decision to make a move to a new territory, must have been a tough decision to make in the late 1800's. With so many new towns cropping up all over the western United States, how would you decide where to settle?


John M. Starkweather was a native of Albany, N.Y. and he made such a decision in 1862 when he moved from New York to Kansas. John started a hardware store in Lawrence, Kansas. His young wife, Mary J. Moore hailed from nearby Independence, Missouri.


John and Mary had three boys…what a happy family. Then tragedy struck, as John passed away in 1871, leaving Mary with a family to raise by herself. Charles, her oldest was a big help. Little Bert was only 6 years old and Frank was just a baby.


Bert stayed in school as long as his mother could afford it, then he entered the working world, starting out as a clerk in a clothing store.


Tragedy struck this small family again, as Mary's health gave way and after 12 years of being a widow and main support for her family, she died in 1883.


After a couple of years, at the age of 20, Bert headed west to Colorado where he worked in a clothing store for four years.


In 1889, Bert made the decision to settle in Webb City and to work for Humphreys, "one of the best department stores west of the Mississippi." For five years, Bert worked and learned every aspect of the clothing business.


While working at Humphreys, Bert met and married May Turnpaw in 1890. May's parents, Fannie (formerly Snodgrass) and Solomon Turnpaw were well known and well liked in the area.


After leaving Humphreys, Bert went to work for Sam Morris, learning even more about the clothing business, this time from the small business outlook.


Finally, in 1906, Bert had saved enough money to take the big step. He went into partnership with John T. Albert. They opened a store right across the street from Humphreys at 216 North Main Street (the L.J. Stevison Building). Starkweather and Albert were officially in business.


That same year, Bert's younger brother, Frank moved to Webb City with his wife, Edith. Frank went to work as an accountant for the Webb Corp. Frank and Edith raised their two daughters Caroline and Frances at 1007 South Madison Street.


Business was going so well for Bert and John that they opened a branch store in Independence, Kansas.


Amazingly, the small clothing store, located across the street from Humphreys flourished.


Next door to Starkweather and Albert was Beaman's Shoe store, owned b O.E. Beaman, who also got his start at Humphreys in the shoe department.


Bert's reputation was one of honesty, reliability, and dedication. He knew everything about the business.


Bert and Mary lived at 215 South Liberty. They had no children of their own, but they were proud of their four nieces. Frank had two girls and Charles had two girls.


So, that decision of John Starkweather's to move west from New York to Kansas and Bert's decision to settle in Webb City made a lasting impression on the business district of a small mining town on the rise.

                              Slaughter was a legend in his own time 





Published March 31, 1995


We've had many stories on the ancestors of Webb City but this time we are going to pay tribute to one of our legends!

The Webster dictionary states that a legend is "a notable person whose deeds or exploits are much talked about."


Well this definitely fits the description of our subject, Dr. Melville S. Slaughter.


Melville S. Slaughter came to Missouri from Iowa where his family was some of the original settlers. His grandfather, J.F. Slaughter was born in Ohio in 1820 but became one of those first settlers in Jasper County, Iowa, where he married his wife, Malinda. They lived on their farm until their deaths in 1901 and 1902.

Malinda came from a family of longevity as her father lived to 80 and her mother lived to be 78. Malinda herself lived to be 93. 


J.F. and Malinda had son named Z.T. Slaughter, who was born in Jasper County, Iowa.

He married Margaret Wagner, who moved from Pennsylvania with her parents to the wild area of Iowa. She met and married Z.T. in August of 1861.


Z.T. and Margaret had seven children. Melville had five brothers and one sister. Growing up on a cattle ranch didn't change Melville's dream of becoming a doctor. He attended Iowa State College at Grinnell and then transferred to the School of Osteopathy in Kirksville, Missouri. He graduated in June of 1907. That was quite a year for Melville because he not only graduated in June but he opened his first office in the McCorkle building on Main Street of Webb City. He then married Myrtle V.Shreve in September. Myrtle was from Trenton, Missouri and her father, David G. Shreve was a railroad conductor.


 Melville and Myrtle had one son, Melville Scott Slaughter born January 2, 1910. But that's not what makes Dr. Slaughter a legend. His fame comes from the fact that many of Webb City's citizens born form 1907 up until the 1950's can claim to have been brought into this world by Dr. Slaughter.


Dr. Slaughter stayed in Webb City even when the mining business left and Webb City was on shaky ground. His office was located in the Wagner Building at 205 West Daugherty. His home was at 208 North College Street.


Another step in his fame is that he served on the Webb City School Board from 1921 until 1943 a total of 22 years. That was the record until last year (1994) when Terry James was re-elected and he now holds the honor of serving on the school board the longest. (Does that make Terry James a legend in his own time?)


Dr. Melville Slaughter also served on the City Council but did not enjoy the politics involved. He was also a member of the Yeomen of America and the Elks, and for many years served on the Webb City Commercial Club.


There have been many great doctors in Webb City and the surrounding area and I don't mean to diminish their good works as I brag on Dr. Slaughter. But he holds a special place in my heart as he delivered my husband, Stan Newby, on May 28, 1948 and must be Stan's claim to fame!

A note received after this article appeared in the paper:

Dear Ms. Newby, Your recent column in the Sentinel was passed on to me by my cousin Mary Curtis James Browning. I enjoyed reading about Dr. Slaughter. My family thought he was the finest doctor who ever lived. My mother Lorraine Carmody Terry was working as his receptionist when she met my father, Paul Terry in the early 30's. He must have been one of those doctors who are excellent at diagnosing and also skillful with their treatments. The only time I remember seeing him was in about 1944 when mother was bitten by a dog. She went back almost daily for several weeks. The bite was quite severe and this was surely before antibiotics. At that time, Dr. Slaughter was perturbed about daylight savings time. That is relevant to nothing at all, just my recollection of him. You may get more input on him since the paper has been published and perhaps enough material for another column. I always enjoy the clippings I get from your paper and look forward to more in the future. Sincerely, Karen Terry Perdue. P.S. I am first cousins to that "living legend" Terry James!

 Tappana family's migration to America had a tragic beginning





Published November 19, 1993


The Tappana family legend tells of the first Tappanas to come to America. It seems that there was much religious turmoil in Spain during the early 1800's. Lands were being taken from families, wars were numerous and many lives were taken. So, the head of the Tappanas brought his family, consisting of two sons and one daughter to America for safety. Then he went back to Spain, close to Madrid, to try to recover the family land. It ended sadly as he was beheaded. But his family was safe here in America.


One of his sons, Charles E. Tappana who was born in 1836 in Spain, married Mary Sigler from Peoria, Illinois. They lived in Granby, where all eight of their children were born; Arthur E., Don Carlos, Leslie V., Claude Leroy, Floyd L., Walter, Audra, and Katie May.

Arthur E. lived at 831 North Oak in Webb City. He had been a grocery man most of his life. Arthur married Mary Francis Vaughn. They had two daughters and one son; Lorraine, Christina and Arthur Charles.


Don Carlos was born in 1877 and married Ollie McAboy. Don Carlos had an excellent career of repairing sewing machines at a time when Webb City had several factories to keep him in business. They had three daughters (I only have their married names), Mrs W.F. Collier, Mrs. Edith Miller and Mrs. Wendell Dooley. Don Carlos was an active community person. He served as the City Assessor from 1930 to 1936. He was also a Justice of the Peace.


Leslie V. married Maude Sutten. They had five sons and one daughter; Burl, Herman A., Don A., Leslie (Jobe), Vernon and Betty Lou. Their family home was at 804 North Madison.


Claude Leroy (Roy) was born in 1881 and was employed by the Southwest Missouri Railroad Company as a conductor for 18 years. Then he started his own collection agency. He worked for the Webb City Post Office for seven years, then opened a small grocery store in Brooklyn Heights. Roy was married to Alte Lee Hutchinson in 1909. They had two sons, William and Robert and one daughter, Geraldine. Their son Robert* was a World War II casualty as he fought for his country. Robert was also a songwriter with several published songs before his death.


Floyd L. (Dude) was born in 1884. Floyd was also a Justice of the Peace. He didn't have any children.


Walter Tappana married Lena Toutz from Webb City. They had five sons and three daughters; Walter Levis (Buck), Truman, Paul, Eugene (Gene), James, Pearl, Mary, and Mrs. Dan White.


Audra Tappana Cole had four daughters and three sons; Tressa, Crystal, Mrs. Aloe Yates, Mrs. Valentine Shuey, Floyd, Edwin, and Harlen.


The other daughter of Charles and Mary was Katie May who was born in 1874, but died at a young age on October 10, 1888.


The first generation of Tappanas was born in Granby. Similarly, the second generation was all born in Webb City. Now the number of Tappanas has continued to grow, but space limits the naming of them all. There are still third and fourth generation Tappanas in the area. The Tappanas have been in Webb City since Charles and Mary moved here in 1887.


Tappana was a royal name in Spain with much land and a castle. The Tappanas have a heritage to be proud of. We in Webb City are proud of their American heritage, as they have a part of Webb City's history and you can tell they have added to the population growth.


A special thanks to the many family members who helped me fill in the blanks and told me of the family legend. You have plenty to be proud of.

*Robert Lamont Tappana graduated from Webb City High School in 1939. He died September 8, 1945 (age 23) while serving on the staff of the Admiral Chester Nimitz.

                         Sardius Bates: judge, military man




           Published May 17, 1996


To be able to claim patriotic ancestry is quite an honor. One such gentleman in our local history not only claimed that honor but also added to it.



During the Revolutionary War, Andrew Bates, who had come from England, fought for independence.


His son, Adam married Elizabeth Metcalf of Irish descent and they settled in Sadusky, Ohio where their son William H. Bates was born. William fought in the Civil War serving with the 72nd Ohio Volunteer Infantry. He served under General Sherman and Colonel Bucklan in such famous battles as Shiloh, Vicksburg, and Corinth. William settled in Rising Sun, Wood County, Ohio and married Mary Inman, whose ancestry was also of revolutionary stock. Her family had served in the Revolutionary War and the War of 1812. Her mother's brother, Captain William Jennings served under General W.T. Scott in the Mexican War.

A son, Sardius W. Bates was born to Mary and William. The only boy in a family of three girls, Zela, Estella and Leila, Sardius was born in 1876 and proved to be an avid learner. After finishing school, Sardius spent two years as a teacher. Deciding to continue his education, he attended Heidelberg University in Tiffin, Ohio.


The Spanish American War interrupted his plans, as Sardius enlisted in the 2nd Ohio Volunteer Infantry. He was stationed in Chickamauga, Georgia, Knoxville, Tennessee and Macon, Georgia.


In 1905, at the age of 29, Sardius took a collegiate course and received a degree at Otterbein University in Westerville, Ohio. In the fall of 1905, Sardius made the decision of a lifetime as he started studying law at the Ohio State University, moving to the University of Missouri in Columbia and graduating with his law degree in 1907.


In 1908, at the age of 32, Sardius located in Webb City and began his practice with L.E. Bates (unable to determine if L.E. was related or not). Later, Sardius went into business with Mr. Robertson and then with R.T. Abernathy.


The love bug hit in 1909 and Sardius married Georgie A. Jones Collier. He also settled down with a law partnership with Judge Robertson. Life took on quite a hectic but rewarding pace.


In 1910, Sardius Bates became the city attorney. In 1912, at the age of 35, he was elected as prosecuting attorney under the democratic ticket. Getting re-elected again in 1914. Then in 1916, he received the honor of being selected to serve a one-year term in the Missouri Senate to replace the late Colonel C.H. Phelps.


World War I interrupted any of Sardius' plans as every able body enlisted. Having served in the Spanish American War, Sardius was sent to Officer Training School in Fort Riley, Kansas and commissioned a Captain in the depot brigade. He later advanced to the rank of Major with the 10th Division and went overseas.



Returning home to his law practice, Sardius still had the desire to serve politically and ran for Judge of Circuit Court Division 1 in 1922. He won the election and served as judge until 1929.


In 1932, at the age of 55, Sardius ran for a position on the Missouri Supreme Court, but he was defeated.


Under his belt of accomplishments, Sardius served as chairman of the State Bar Committee of the 25th Judicial Circuit. He was also credited with having been largely instrumental in the success of organizing the Central drainage District of Webb City. With the help of the government, mining fields in Webb City, Carterville, and Oronogo were drained to resume mining. Sardius spent almost five months in Washington D.C. working on this project.


IN 1936, while Georgie was out of town, Sardius became ill. He left his office and went home to rest. Dr. George W. Sanz stayed with Sardius throughout the night and by morning he seemed greatly improved, so the doctor left to attend to other business.


An hour later, Judge Bates called his best friend, C.W. Oldham Jr. and requested that he come see him. When Oldham arrived, the Judge seemed to be resting comfortably and they conversed a few minutes. Suddenly, the judge had a severe heart attack and went unconscious. At the age of 59, with a long list of accomplishments, Judge Sardius W. Bates passed away, another face etched into our monument of Webb City history.

                      Bonds of young love are tough to break





Published January 13, 1995


Pansy Brasuer and Chandos McMullen were very much in love. Pansy's mother did not approve of their courtship and voiced her opinion very strongly. So, Pansy and Chandos decided to elope.


The year was 1903 and all the details had been worked out. Chandos was to sneak over to Pansy's house late in the night and she would quietly tip toe out of the house and meet him in the yard. Well, somehow, Pansy's mother found out about the romantic plans and she put a stop to it. She locked Pansy in one of the bedrooms and poor Pansy couldn't even tell Chandos why she had stood him up. Meanwhile, Chandos patiently waited outside all night for the love of this life to join him. He never doubted for a moment that she would make it.


As daylight dawned, Chandos creeped over to Pansy's best friend's house, Nellie Pratt and he told Nellie about Pansy not showing up. Nellie investigated and found out what Pansy's mother had done. So, that morning, Pansy and Chandos through tears of love, said their good-byes to each other. Pansy just couldn't go against her mother's wishes.


As soon as the good-byes had been said, Pansy was whisked away to the train depot to be sent to visit relatives and get the foolish notion that she was in love, out of her head. Pansy's mother was pretty sure she had everything under control. For the next year, Pansy would come home occasionally for a visit. She hid the fact from her mother that she was still carrying quite a torch for young Chandos. They would meet secretly with the help of Pansy's friend, Nellie Pratt.


Meanwhile, young Chandos had gotten employment at the Hoffman Music House on Webb Street as a piano tuner. In his spare time, he wrote songs and a few of his songs were being sung at the local theatres. Chandos had become pretty well known around town and he was well thought of. Many had sympathy and admiration for the young couple in their romantic dilemma.


In October of 1904, Pansy came into town for a visit. She and her sister Lalah decided to go to the St. Louis World's Fair. They were half way to St. Louis when Pansy told Lalah that she had a surprise for her.


It seems that on October 23, 1904, Chandos and Pansy had said their vows in front of Justice of the Peace T.B. Pratt and his daughter Nellie stood in as a witness along with Fred Baker.

After Penny had told her sister about the wonderful events that had taken place, Chandos joined them and the happy trip made the trip to St. Louis together.


When Lalah returned to Webb City, she made the announcement about the marriage of Pansy and Chandos as the young couple were on their way to Tampa, Florida to visit Chandos' family and to take up residence there.


The acquaintances of the young couple were delighted to know that love had triumphed over all. The best friend, Nellie Pratt and her father, were a big help in this love story.

                          Charley Parker shared his wealth





Published August 12, 1994


Charley Parker was born in St. Charles in 1853. As early miners journeyed to Webb City to make it rich in the mines, Charley joined them. But Charley didn't plan on making it rich in the mines…he had his mind set on owning a business. So, at the young age of 20, Charley opened a saloon to help quench the thirst of the miners.


Business was good to Charley and he became quite wealthy just as had planned to do. But Charley didn't forget how it felt to be without, so he shared his wealth with the poor. He gave out free meals to the down-and-out miner and helped many a young family get started with a roof over their heads.


Before Charley passed away in 1911 at the age of 58, bad luck had found him. Charley died in poverty. I wonder if any of those who Charley had befriended with a meal, home or just some spare change; was there to give Charley a helping hand?

                            A Quaker moved west before coming back 

                                 to be Alba School Superintendent





Published January 22, 1993


After the Civil War when the Quakers were migrating to Southwest Missouri and Southeast Kansas, one of those pioneers was named Daniel Brown Hayes. Daniel was born in 1842 to an Indiana farm couple. Their family had been a pioneer family that had traveled from North Carolina in opposition to slavery. They later moved to Iowa to continue their farming. So pioneering was in Daniel's blood when be made the trek to Southwest Missouri, to join with the Spring River Friends Association.


Daniel had four wives throughout his lifetime and they were all named Mary. Being of the Quaker religion, Daniel named his daughters Grace, Mercy, Peace, Hope, Faith and Charity. His sons were Grover, Truman and Albert.

Daniel and his fourth wife, Mary Smith Hayes went to live in Colorado Springs, where Daniel passed away in 1919. Daniel's son, Truman came back to the area in 1923 and became the Superintendent of the Alba School.


Truman Elliott Hayes was born in 1889. He graduated and taught at Springfield State Normal where he met Etta Grace Spencer. They were married in 1915. Truman served as a principal and superintendent of schools in Mountain Grove, Forsythe, and Oklahoma before arriving in Alba.


Truman was a well-known educator. He coached, taught agriculture and directed the orchestra and glee clubs. While he was superintendent, he helped the school through the difficult period of consolidation and was responsible for the building of the gymnasium. 

It wasn't all work and no play for Truman, he enjoyed many pastime activities, including fishing and music. His term of Superintendent ended in 1929 and Truman moved on to teach school in Webb City.

Truman and Etta had eight children; William S., Truman Daniel, Robert B., Mary Helen Albrecht, Elizabeth G., Homer E., Larry K., and Elma June Meyer. And all of their children went on to become well known in the academic circles.

Once again, there was something magnetic about the Alba area that was a drawing card to bring one of its residents back from the west to live within the boundaries of Alba.




     The Barkleys




Published January 29, 1993

Joseph and Rachel Alice Barkley, along with their one-year-old son, Clive O. Barkley, moved from Joplin to a farm on Northfork, about five miles northeast of Alba in 1884. Within the next two years, two daughters were born to Joseph and Rachel, Olga in 1885 and Alne in 1887.

Meanwhile, on a neighboring farm, two miles north of Alba, Walter and Lou Creech Jenkins were starting their family of five girls, Elsie, May, Arnie, Irene, Ruth and one son named Clarence.

The Jenkins oldest daughter Elsi attended Coonfoot School and graduated from the new high school in Alba. She went on to attend the Normal Training School in Springfield. Elsie taught two terms at Coonfoot and one term at Neck City.

On May 29, 1912, Clive Barkley and Elsie Jenkins were married in the Jenkins home. They started their married life in Preston. Clive cut and sold timber to the area mines. Later, he became a farmer and then decided on this lifetime career of a drilling contractor.

Clive and Elsie had five children, Gerald, Alice, Lavo, Paul, and Melvin. 

Clive passed away on August 18, 1962 and Elsie lived until February 23, 1978. Both were laid to rest in the Paradise Cemetery, three miles south of Jasper.

                   The Clyde and Nettie Baker family




Published February 19, 1993

Clyde Baker moved to the Carthage area in the late 1880's, along with his parents, two brothers, and one sister. While attending the Old Presbyterian College in Carthage, Clyde met and married Nettie Parkell. They moved to Oronogo to begin their married life. Four children were born to this union, Chester, Adelaide (died in infancy), Merrill and Florence Helen.

In 1908, Clyde and Nettie moved to a farm west of Purcell and built their home with lumber located on the farm. The children went to school in Purcell during their elementary years and Carthage for high school.

The first born, Chester, spent most of his 74 years in Purcell. He was in the Medical Corps in World War I, taking his Army medical training in Fort Dodge, Des Moines, Iowa. Chester served our country as a nurse and ambulance driver in France. After the Army released him, Chester worked in the mines at Neck City before moving on to Picher, Oklahoma to work as a hoisterman in the mines. In 1923, he married Mary A. Irwin of Lawton, Kansas and they had four children, Merle, Bill, Shanice, and Shirley Ann. After the death of his father, Chester bought the old home place that his parents and worked so hard to build and farm.

Clyde and Nettie's second child was Merrill E. Baker, born November 26, 1900. Like Chester, Merrill spent most of his lifetime in the Purcell area except for the time he spent serving our country in World War II as a tank expert. In 1940, Merrill married Barbara Henderson Pattison of Purcell. They had two children, Stanley and Charlotte. Barbara passed away while the children were small. Merrill's mother, Nettie assisted in taking care of the children and making a happy homelife for them. Merrill worked the mines until they closed and then worked as Chief Mechanic for Independent Gravel Company. The mining era may have been over, but Merrill kept them alive in his writings. He loved to write about the men and the working days in the mines.

Clyde and Nettie's youngest child, Florence Helen attended elementary school in Purcell, with the first year being at Sunnyside School. She also attended high school in Carthage. She married Robert A. Elliot, July 9, 1921 and they had three children, Robert, Maxine, and Mildred.

It was one more family of the Alba, Purcell, Neck City area that continued to stay and enjoy the good neighbors, the small town community and the beautiful atmosphere of the Tri-City area. 

                       One of our best: W.Alton Jones




Published February 19, 1999

I received a letter from Bill J. Kamler in Columbia, who has taken the time to share some information about a famous Webb City Citizen, W.Alton Jones. Here is his letter.

While there have been several Webb Citians in this century who have contributed greatly to our society or have excelled in their fields, I would have to consider W. Alton Jones to be one of our most distinguished citizens.

Mr. Jones was born in 1891 near Webb City. After graduation from the Webb City High School, as an honor student, he attended Vanderbilt University. He started work in 1912 with Cities Service in Webb City and was promoted to the Joplin Office two years later. In 1921, he was transferred to New York. He became a member of the executive committee of the company in 1922. He was named the first Vice-president in 1927 and President in 1940.

He was chairman of the Petroleum Council during World War II and was largely responsible for the speedy construction of the Big Inch and Little Inch pipelines. These pipelines had a major impact on getting larger volumes of fuel and oil to the east coast during the war, thereby allowing industry to produce war material and supplying the Allied Forces with petroleum. Prior to their completion, many oil and fuel tankers were subject to U-boat attacks and it was difficult to obtain fuel where it was needed. These were mammoth projects, which involved construction over more than half the length of the continent, employing thousands of workers and to my knowledge, was completed in only nine months. The results had a major impact on turning the tide of the war in favor of the Allies.

For many years, he served on the Board of Trustees of the Presbyterian Hospital in New York. During that time, he subsidized numerous interns and resident physicians who without this aid could not have completed their work. When the W. Alton Jones Foundation was established in 1946, one of its purposes was to aid in the establishment and support of programs of medical research and education. Mr. Jones had a deep concern for the welfare of his fellow men and possessed the rare ability to recognize the talents of others and an eagerness to provide the right environment for all the full realization of those talents.

Mr. Jones had a magnetic personality and a remarkable capacity for making friends, from pipeline workers to heads of state. He became a close and personal friend of President Eisenhower, but tragically he was enroute to join President Eisenhower for a golfing vacation in 1962, when his plane crashed and he was killed.

I had heard of W. Alton Jones when I was growing up in Webb City, but frankly, only knew a vague story that he had given several large gifts to establish the very first Endowed Chair in the School of Medicine in 1965. This chair is the W.Alton Jones Distinguished Professor and Chairman of Surgery.

The most recent chairman is Dr. Donald Silver, who retired in July. My position as a surgery supervisor at the University Hospital in Columbia has allowed me the opportunity and good fortune to work with Dr. Silver, who for 23 years has represented the Jones Chair at the University with honor and provided outstanding leadership in that capacity. Dr. Silver became a very knowledgeable student of the life and work of W. Alton Jones and I found it interesting that he was always proud to maintain on his letterhead and to sign all of his official correspondence as the "W.Alton Jones Distinguished Professor and Chairman of Surgery." He also maintained a display case in his office of various memorabilia of Mr. Jones and information regarding the chair.

I hope this information is of some interest to your readers. And I hope that the people of Webb City can take some pride in learning about one of their own from out of the past, as well as this association with the university, which is a part of their heritage and history that most may not have known about.

Thanks so much Mr. Kamler for taking the time to share such a wonderful memory with us. There have been many, who have left our city to go on to make a name for themselves and sometimes…they are forgotten. Thanks for shining the spotlight on a great man who deserves to be remembered.

In a 1908 annual, under the name of Alton Jones is a little verse:



He dares to do what he thinks is right: 



Whatever he does, he does with his might.

Editor's note: There's an Internet Web site about W.Alton Jones and Nettie Marie Jones located at: http://www.igc.apc.org/wajones/ 




          BIBLIOGRAPHY

An Amazing City by Norval M. Matthews (1976) Printed by the Webb City Sentinel

 Webb City Review, The Heart of the World's Lead and Zinc District. (1909) The C.E.Weaver Series

Webb City Souvenir January Edition (1900 F.L. McInnis & Company Publisher, Webb City, Missouri) 

A History and Economic Survey of Webb City, Missouri.  Compiled and edited by Henrietta Crotty ( 1937) Published by the Webb City Daily Sentinel, Webb City, Missouri.  Data gathered by the Students of Webb City High School.

Webb City High School Annual (1922)

Obituaries on file at the Joplin Public Library, Joplin, Missouri

Webb City and Jasper County, Missouri Illustrated (1906-1907) published under the auspices of The Webb City Commercial Club. (A gift from Don McGowan)

The Webb City Topic and Mining Journal (1897)

The Revised Ordinances of the City of Webb City (1905) Revised, collected, arranged, indexed, printed and published by authority of the Mayor and Council of the City of Webb City, Missouri.

A History of Jasper County and It's People by Joel T. Livingston (1912) published by The Lewis Publishing Company, Chicago, New York, San Francisco. Volume I and Volume II

History of the First Presbyterian Church of Webb City, Missouri1877-1942  by Henrietta M. Crotty (1942)  printed by The Switzer Printing Company. Published under the Auspices of the Session of The Church and The Women's Association.

A History of the Pleasant Hill United Methodist Church(1988)

The Southwest Missouri Railroad by Harry C. Hood, Sr. (1976)

The Biographical History of Jasper Count, Missouri by Hon. Malcolm G. McGregor (1901) published by Lewis Publishing Company, Chicago

1899 Webb City Gazette a periodical publication located in the History Room of the Joplin Public Library, Joplin, Missouri 





